


Agenda - Planning Commission
June 28, 2022
Page 2

K. Other Business

1. Commissioners’ Comments
2. Staff’s Comments
L. Adjournment

*Public Hearing Format:
1. Staff Presentation — Introduction of project, Staff Report and Recommendation
Introduction of project representative
2. Project Presentation — By project representative
3. Open Public Hearing (please state name, address and speak at podium, Comments are limited to five
minutes per speaker; exceptions may be granted by the chair for representative speakers and
applicants.)
Close Public Hearing
Commission Discussion — Requests for clarification to project representative, public or staff
Commission decision — Options
postpone decision — table to date certain
reject proposal
accept proposal
accept proposal with conditions.

e A



PROPOSED MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING
OF THE KENTWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION
JUNE 14, 2022, 7:00 P.M.

COMMISSION CHAMBERS

Chair Jones called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Commissioner Pemberton.

Roll Call: ,

Members Present: Bill Benoit, Dan Holtrop, Sandra Jones, Ray Poyner, Mike Pemberton,
Darius Quinn, Ricardo Rogers

Members Absent: Ed Kape (with notification)

Others Present: Community Development Director Terry Schweitzer, Senior Planner Joe
Pung, Planning Assistant Monique Collier and the applicant.

Motion by Pemberton, supported by Poyner, to excuse Kape from the meeting.

- Motion Carried (7-0) —
- Kape absent -

Approval of the Minutes and Findings of Fact

Motion by Commissioner Benoit, supported by Commissioner Holtrop, to approve
the Minutes of May 24, 2022 and the Findings of Fact for: Case#13-22 — Scooter’s
Coffee — Kentwood — Special Land Use and Site Plan Review for a Drive-Through
Establishment Located at 2380 44 Street SE

- Motion Carried (7-0) —
- Kape absent -
Approval of the Agenda

Motion by Commissioner Holtrop, supported by Commissioner Pemberton, to
approve the agenda for the June 14, 2022 meeting.

- Motion Carried (7-0) —
- Kape absent -

Acknowledge visitors wishing to speak to non-agenda items.
There was no public comment.

Old Business

There was no Old Business



Proposed Minutes
Planning Commission
June 14, 2022

Page 2

H.

Public Hearing

There were no public hearings.
Work Session

Case#7-22 — GRR Ancillary M/U Requested Master Plan Amendment from Industrial to
Commercial - Located at the NW Corner of Patterson Avenue and 36™ Street SE

Schweitzer stated the request has been previously reviewed by the Planning Commission.
He stated we are now at the end of the 43 day period for public comment. He stated there
will be a public hearing on June 28" to formally take action on the request. Schweitzer
stated we have not received any additional comments since last discussed on April 12.

Benoit questioned if there were any comments from the neighbors. Schweitzer stated just
the one comment from the Sinke family. They spoke very highly of their interaction with
the developer as they have gone through this process.

Schweitzer stated Elliott Mueller is present and looking at making some changes to the
concept plan. Schweitzer reminded the commissioners that they are only looking at the
land use.

Poyner noted with the subsequent CPUD zone request City staff anticipated difficulty
meeting the 30% open space requirement.

Elliott Muller, with Ben Mueller Realty was present. He stated they have engaged Exxel
Engineering since the last meeting and that will help allocate open space, but all of that
will be part of what the zoning ordinance requires. He stated if that means smaller
building footprints, they will accommodate that. Muller stated they are not going to seek
any variances on the greenspace requirement.

Jones questioned when the traffic analysis would be available. Schweitzer stated the
traffic analysis is generated by the applicant. He stated traffic was highlighted in the
recent consideration of a land use change at 2400 Forest Hill Avenue and it was noted in
the land use decision. In a similar manner the action on the land use change will not
include a traffic analysis condition. The traffic analysis would be part of the subsequent
rezoning and site plan review process. ‘

Case#14-22 - Bretonfield Preserve Phase 6 —Final Site Plan Review of a PUD Phase
Located at 5735 Breton Ave SE

Case# 15-22 — Bretonfield Preserve Phase 6 — Preliminary Plat Review located at 5735
Breton Ave SE



Proposed Minutes
Planning Commission
June 14, 2022

Page 3

Pung stated the requests are for the final PUD site plan of a PUD phase for Bretonfield
and also the associated preliminary plat which will be a recommendation to the city
commission to take final action. Pung stated this request will be the final phase of the
Bretonfield PUD. He stated we are looking at 51 lots on about 23 acres. He stated the
final phase will extend Breton Avenue up to the south line of the Paul Henry Thornapple
trail. He stated the Engineering Department is working on an RFP for the design of the
overpass for Breton going over the trail.

Pung stated as noted in the staff report, there were a few issues. He stated in the current
plan they did not indicate any street trees on the east side of Breton Avenue. The trees
will be added back in after discussion at the staff work session.

Pung stated there were also issues with regard to the design of the trail connection
between Breton Avenue and the Paul Henry Thornapple trail. He stated the trail
connection will be shown at a minimum width of 10 feet and there will be a note on the
plan that final location and orientation would be determined when they work with City
staff to figure out exactly where it is going to intersect with the Paul Henry trail and what
the layout would be.

Pung stated there is an open space area between lots 191-192 currently with no access. As
designed the only way to access is through one of the 3 adjacent lots and this is supposed
to be one of the common open space areas. He stated they will be adding some type of
access whether it is an easement or they modify the property line. But there will be access
for the homeowners association and others to get there. Pung stated since that is part of
the open space the HOA is responsible for maintenance. Pung stated staff wants to make
sure there is access if maintenance is required so the HOA has a way to get to it. Pung
stated there is currently a mowed path proposed to go through the back of lots 191-192
they will be reorienting that so that it does not encroach on those properties therefore it
won’t have to be an easement over them.

Pung stated staff did clarify that there are minimum pavilion dimensions and the pavilion
will be 20 x 32 feet. Another requirement is that there will be picnic tables, that was also
arequirement of the PUD

Pung stated there were issues with lots 208 and 226. The way they have been laid out,
there would be a slender bit of open space that comes up to Breton Avenue. He stated
which in effect makes them not corner lots even though they will have the look of being a
corner lot. Pung stated on a corner lot the minimum building setback would have been 20
feet from the property line. They are going to find a way to have a minimum 20 foot
building setback from the Breton Avenue ROW.

Pung stated another concern is having a large blank wall up against Breton Avenue.
There are options such as enhanced landscaping or adding windows on to the side
elevation so that it is not look like a blank wall on Breton Avenue.



Proposed Minutes
Planning Commission
June 14, 2022

Page 4

Mike West, with Westview Capital/ Allen Edwin Homes, 795 Clyde Ct SW Byron
Center, MI was present. He stated regarding the street trees they will put them back in the
plan. He stated there are some site distance lines where county road commissions don’t
like trees within that area. He stated they will also be deciduous trees. They will add them
back in along the east side of Breton.

West stated regarding the open space area behind lots 191 and 192, they didn’t intend it
to be a functional usable open space rather more of a passive buffer area. He stated that is
a natural low area for that area of the overall site. They are going to have rear yard
drainage from units 204 — 190. It will be a backyard swale and that will drain to the south
in the event of large rainfalls. He stated they don’t see a lot of value for it. They
understand the need to provide access, however, what they would like to do instead of
actually constructing a path to it because it is less than a %% acre; they will put an
easement along the south side of unit 190 so the association can get to it if there is a need
for maintenance.

West acknowledged they have referenced the path connection as 6 feet on the plan but
between now and the public hearing they will revise that and show a 10 foot path. He
stated they are also going to center it within a 20 foot public easement for the City to take
over. They will work with staff on the final location when they get closer to construction
plans.

West stated regarding the side elevations for the homes on the 4 lots 176, 207, 208 and
226. There was some discussion concerning landscaping or some windows to break it up
a bit. They will be adding the landscaping back in so the street trees will go in along the
west side of lots 176 and 207. He stated as far as windows they have previously
submitted a package of elevations to the City. He stated he drove through the
development and there are 12 corner lots and 9 out of the 12 have at least one window,
some have 3-5 windows. He stated they can work with staff on trying to insert windows,
however, it depends on the model of home being purchased by the homeowner. He stated
he doesn’t know if he actually wants to make a commitment to a certain number of
windows. He stated it wasn’t done on the previous 5 phases and this is their last phase.
He stated they can do their best to put in windows but he isn’t sure if he wants to commit
to the amount of windows. However, if it is strongly the will of the commissioners he can
discuss it with their building construction people and see about the minimum number that
might be acceptable, regardless most of the corner lot homes will have windows.

West stated regarding lots 208 and 226, the two lots on the west side of Breton, they
spoke to the Engineer after meeting with staff and they think they can make an
adjustment to the cul-de-sac and push it just a little bit west, modify some of the other
property lines/lot lines to gain more width. West stated staff explained they want it a
minimum of 20 feet off the Breton ROW. He stated they will get it to 20 feet from the
Breton ROW on lots 208 and 226. He stated they will show that on the revised site plan.



Proposed Minutes
Planning Commission
June 14, 2022

Page 5

West stated regarding the proposed path on east side of Breton, they are going to modify
that and push it back into the open space.

West stated the dimensions of the pavilion will be 20x32. He will have the dimensions on
the revised plan that they submit. He stated as far as the tot lot area that is approximately
54 x 58 feet. He stated he will get that on the revised plan as well.

West stated there was a comment regarding fencing between the tot lot and Breton. He
stated they would rather not install any fencing. Most of the people who bring their kids
to the tot lot are going to be accessing it from the path along the west side Breton. He
stated what was shown on the landscape plan will be a connection from the path along
Breton and they have some decorative vinyl fencing and some landscaping and a path
that will lead people to the tot lot. He stated they want to keep it an open area an amenity
that people are going to go to. He stated he doesn’t think a lot of kids are going to be
running out to Breton because the majority will be coming from Breton to go to the tot
lot. He stated they would like to have that extra open space in case someone wants to
throw a Frisbee or football. They would rather not install a fence.

He stated they acknowledge the need for consistency with the PUD agreement.

Rogers noted there was mention they are going to consider pushing the end of the
culdesac to the west to address the corner lot building setback issue he questioned
whether there would then be any problems with the wetlands. West stated they might
push it back 6 or 8 feet and with that with adjustments on the other lot lines they might
be able to pick up another 8 or 10 feet for those lots west of Breton. He acknowledged
that the wetlands may be a limiting factor.

Holtrop questioned what happens to the land between the corner lots 208 and 226
between their lot line and Breton. West stated that will be common just like the roadway
ROW. Holtrop stated it will be maintained under the HOA. West stated that is correct
they will mow it up to that point in addition to the greenspace along Breton.

Holtrop stated the tot lot picture has the walkway to and from Breton. Immediately across
Breton is the other walkway. Is there any thought to an island for safety crossing. Holtrop
stated the walkways are directly across from each other from the east and west. West
stated they can work with the City on something, he doesn’t know what it will be. Pung
stated as part of the road design they are putting in a mid-block crossing. Pung stated
there is a mid-block crossing in so there is a paved landing within that median. He stated
basically we would be looking at doing the same thing put in a crossing within that
median so they can go right across.

Holtrop stated 190, 191 and 192 there is a vacant open space. Holtrop stated it looks like
there is a sidewalk from Breton coming up behind 189 and then into the neighborhood.
He wanted clarification why they don’t want to continue that behind 190, 191 and 192.
West stated the purpose for the sidewalk at the end of the cul-de-sac is to get people into



Proposed Minutes
Planning Commission
June 14, 2022

Page 6

the cul-de-sac out to Breton and then get them to the path. West stated to extend the
sidewalk to the east along the south side of lot 190 you are only going to the open space
area. He stated they will provide an easement but they don’t think it is a lot of value to
put a paved path or mowed path there. He stated there is really nothing there, it is not
going to be a formal connection to the trail system. Holtrop stated how about another
connection to the trail otherwise you are going all the way north and that would provide
another access. Holtrop questioned if the sidewalk could go between 190 and 191and
come across the back and then between 190 and 191 for the neighborhood and then a
gravel trail across the open space to the Paul Henry. It would still be walkable and
bikeable for people. West stated he will discuss with his engineers but at a minimum they
will provide the access easement for the association but he doesn’t know about another
connection to the Paul Henry. Holtrop encouraged West to go look at Baileys Grove and
look at the gravel trail south of the gazebo that leads back into the neighborhood. He
noted that he hasn’t noticed a lot of maintenance, but stated it does get damp at times.

Holtrop questioned the topographical elevations of lots 208, 226,207, and 176 relative to
Breton Avenue. West stated he doesn’t know yet. Holtrop stated a number of people have
been dismayed by the relative topographical elevations of the homes that are fronting
Breton and 60™. He stated they have plain sides. West stated as a former municipal
planner he understands that is not the most desirable look along their major thoroughfare
unfortunately that pre-dated him. West stated the commissioners are not going to get that
same circumstance along;this area of Breton Avenue. Holtrop strongly suggested that
they get more than two windows, it has to be broken up for those 4 lots somehow. West
stated there is a spec home on the corner of Plover and Breton to the south. Thatis a
ranch spec home that has 2 windows on the Breton side. Holtrop strongly urged that he
doesn’t want the homes to look like Breton and 60™ Street. West stated it won’t.

Poyner stated even if it is one home on the road we want to make sure that house doesn’t
look like the homes that are along 60" Street. He stated he as well is going to strongly
suggest that they take a hard look at that and try to make sure that we have a product that
doesn’t look like the homes on 60 Street.

Poyner also questioned why he can’t find access to the Paul Henry Trail on the south
side. Poyner suggested finding a way to do that. West stated they are now at the final
stage and adding another access that hasn’t been envisioned in any of the previous phases
is just difficult. He stated they have homes and don’t want to have another pathway going
through the back of those homes when we have 2 other options that are just up the road.
Poyner asked him to take a look at it because the trail is used by a lot of residents and
having an additional access on the trail he thinks is a real advantage.

Poyner questioned if there is any way to encourage the developer to consider the report
from the planning and city commission recommendations, can we review the facades and
sideyard setbacks to the applicant. Schweitzer stated there has been discussion with Allen
Edwin Home’s indicating to them that there may be new requirements in the future. He



Proposed Minutes
Planning Commission
June 14, 2022

Page 7

stated we haven’t actually come up with the draft requirements, it may be several months
before we do. Discussion ensued.

Quinn questioned if the greenspace behind lots 189 and 190 would be used as a drain.
West stated the small open space area on the southeast side of lot 190 and 191 is going to
be receiving rear yard drainage from the lots along the Paul Henry.

Pemberton stated he would echo the other commissioners to encourage adding some
beautification to blank walls. He stated 60™ Street homes are the primary catalyst behind
discussions that both city and planning commission have had. The homes just jump out at
you and we wish we could have done something about it then. However, we don’t have
the rules yet therefore technically we can’t hold them to it. We can strongly encourage
them to take the initiative to make this look better. Until we make this into an ordinance
we can just encourage more. He stated he likes the use of different materials, colors,
some trims etc. There are a lot of creative things that are out there that aren’t horribly
expensive that can make a big difference in the way things look. He stated if he puts a
little more pizazz in the street appeal it won’t hurt them. Even though it is not the rule of
the land yet, it is going to be eventually and encouraged him to get a feel for what we are
talking about and have an idea of what we want and work into the game plan.

Holtrop questioned if it would be possible for the commissioners to see the full range of
previously approved elevations for the remaining 51 homes. Pung stated yes he can
provide them to the commissioners. West stated there is language in the PUD agreement
that speaks to elevations and variety and architectural diversity etc. He stated they would
like to continue that with the final phase and believe they will meet the commissioners
concerns with those homes following what is in the approved PUD agreement.

Jones questioned if he was aware of the City’s concerns of the current Allen Edwin
development. West stated he has heard the issues with the 60" Street properties. He
stated he doesn’t know of any other ones. West stated he has driven through the whole
development several times and hasn’t been involved with the previous phases, but it is a
very popular subdivision. He doesn’t know if the people that are buying in there share the
same views as he City does. West stated it is one of their bestselling subdivisions, people
like living there. They don’t mind the smaller lots, they don’t mind the smaller sideyard
setbacks in return for the amenities that they have with the trail systems and the
connectivity to the Paul Henry. The amenities they are building in the final phase with the
tot lot and the pavilion is going to be very nice.

Jones stated the concerns are not related to lot size. She stated she thinks the density
makes sense. She is not suggesting that people are unhappy with the homes there. She
stated what she is saying is there are concerns about what you can see from 60" Street.
She stated this development was the impetus for the planning commission and city
commission to come together and have some conversations about what we want to see
and what we don’t want to see. She stated the back side of the homes on 60" Street is
nothing that we would have ever expected and we don’t want to see more of that. Jones



Proposed Minutes
Planning Commission
June 14, 2022

Page 8

stated it is an eyesore to see what has been done there. She stated they have looked at
other Allen Edwin developments and we know what they can do. She stated the
Bretonfield development may be attractive and families are happy moving into it,but,
there are families who are just happy to find a home in Kentwood. However, she knows
this can’t be their best work. She stated she is concerned about the blank walls facing
Breton. She stated the commission cannot compel them to do anything beyond what has
been defined within the PUD, however, we can implore, and we can ask. She stated
please put windows more than one, please continue this development in such a way that it
is more reflective of the kind of work Allen Edwin does in other communities. She stated
she has seen Allen Edwins work in Caledonia, in Byron Center and it is not what they
have in Kentwood. She understand the issues with affordability, price points etc. she just
wants Allen Edwin to get a sense of Kentwood’s level of frustration with the houses on
60™ Street. She would also like to see what he comes back with after he has had some
discussion with their Engineer about the potential of doing a gravel trail connection.
Discussion ensued. She thinks the tot lot should have some fencing around it. In terms of
safety we weren’t expecting a fence along all of Breton Avenue.

West stated he has read the agendas and doesn’t see a clear consensus on what exactly it
is the commission wants. He stated you want to improve elevations and keep the cost of
housing down, it is a difficult balance to get. He stated by being on both the planning and
Allen Edwin sides he can say that the developer just wants to know what the rules are. He
stated he sees the approved PUD language and it is difficult, to try to compare 60™ Street
to the 4 lots on the corner is not a fair comparison. He stated the 60™ Street frontage is
elevated and you have the back sides of those homes, if they were flipped and the front
facing 60" Street he doesn’t think they would have the same concerns. Discussion ensued

Poyner stated we don’t know what the outcome is going to be with these 4 homes. That is
why the commissioners are discussing what we have been discussing and the things we
would like to see and what he can do to make sure that outcome is not like 60 Street
homes. Poyner said he says they are going to be different, but, based on what, we don’t
have an outcome yet. West stated the scenario is different and what they are looking at is
not the situation on 60 Street. He suggested that the commissioners drive through the
development. The commissioners are comparing side elevations off an internal street to
rear elevations on a major street. He stated they have negotiated a PUD agreement that is
very specific. West stated he doesn’t think they will have a problem with a couple
windows and put some more trees in and widen the lots out and get to what the
commissioners are getting at. Discussion ensued.

New Business

Motion by Holtrop, supported by Benoit,, to set public hearing date of July 12, 2022,
for: Case#16-22 - Kum & Go Major Change to the PUD located at 1570 52" Street,
5215 Kalamazoo and 5250 Newcastle; Case #17-22 - Kum Special Land Use and Site
Plan Review for a gas station located at 1570 5279 Street, 5215 Kalamazoo and 5249
Kalamazoo



Proposed Minutes

Planning Commission

June 14, 2022

Page 9
- Motion Carried (7-0) —
- Kape absent -

K. Other Business

1. Commissioners’ Comments

Quinn stated he enjoyed the Food truck event. Quinn stated there is a citizen’s group
holding a fundraiser for the Park and Rec millage going on now.

Holtrop stated the concert in the series is starting on Thursday and along with the
Farmers Market.

Jones let the commissioners know that Brainerd has resigned from the Planning
Commission.

Rogers stated he will be leaving the Planning Commission and moving to Houston,
TX in about 4 weeks.

Jones stated there is a Parks and Rec info meeting on Monday June 20 at Northeast
Park.

2. Staff’s Comments

Schweitzer noted that the Grand Valley Metro Council is in the process of studying the
roadway network in and around the Gerald R Ford International Airport in an effort to
improve accessibility to the airport for both passenger and freight traffic. As the study

progresses staff will share the prospective improvements with the Planning and City
Commission.

L. Adjournment
Motion by Commissioner Benoit, supported by Commissioner Pemberton, to
adjourn the meeting,
- Motion Carried (7-0) —
- Kape absent -

Meeting adjourned at 8:25pm

Respectfully submitted,

Ed Kape, Secretary



PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Golder 6/22/22

PROJECT:
APPLICATION:

REQUEST:

LOCATION:
HEARING DATE:

RECOMMENDATION:

CONDITION:

GRR Ancillary M/U
7-22

Change of Master Plan designation from Industrial to
Commercial

Northwest corner of Patterson Avenue and 36™ Street SE

June 28, 2022

Recommend conditional approval of the request to amend
the Master Plan designation for ten acres of land located at
the northwest corner of Patterson Avenue and 36" Street
from Industrial to Commercial, as described in Case No. 7-
22. Approval is conditioned on the following:

1. Any PUD Plan submitted for the site shall include a traffic analysis
that will be reviewed by the City and the Kent County Road
Commission.

2. The PUD site plan shall include a driveway connection to the north, in
order to connect to the traffic signal at 33 Street/Patterson Avenue.

3. The Patterson Avenue and 36™ Street frontages shall each allow only
one curb cut serving the development.

BASIS:

1. The proposed uses are compatible with the surrounding uses.

The city understands the need to preserve industrial land within
the city. However, a limited amount of commercial use can
provide services for the employees of the industrial sector.

The current zoning already allows for certain services such as
vehicle fuel stations, day care centers and restaurants.

1



2. The proposed use is generally consistent with the Guiding Principles

(98]

identified in the Master Plan for Section 13.

The Master Plan currently recommends Guiding Development
that include:

a. Development of Section 13 as a PUD.

b. Internal roads and trails within the development to provide
connectivity through the site and to adjacent properties.

c¢. Limited driveways on Patterson Avenue.

d. Design guidelines required for a unified and cohesive
development.

e. Restrictions on uses adjacent to residences.

The proposed development meets most of these principles; or will
be able to meet the principles within a future PUD development.

The proposed master plan change has received support from area
property owners.

The Gerald R. Ford International Airport has indicated its
support for the master plan amendment. Adjacent residents have
also indicated their support during the public comment period for
the Master Plan amendment.

The current zoning allows several of the uses that the applicant intends
to include in a proposed CPUD development plan.

Vehicle fuel stations, restaurants, day care, and personal service
establishments are allowed in the current IPUD zoning district.
Other uses that have been proposed, such as a hotel, are subject to
CPUD approval and Special Land Use criteria.

Although the Master Plan is recommended to be amended to allow for
commercial use, the Plan also clearly requires the rezoning to a
Commercial Planned Unit Development. The CPUD zoning, if
approved, will allow the city to address access and use issues that are
of concern for the development.

. The driveway connection to 33" Street will allow the eventual

connection to a signalized intersection for the development. The
allowance for one driveway each to access Patterson Avenue and 36

2



Street is consistent with the qualifying conditions for PUD districts
outlined in Chapter 12 of the Zoning Ordinance. Interior driveways
providing connection between uses is a standard outlined in Section
12.05 4 of the Zoning Ordinance. The PUD rezoning and site plan
review for this site will include an analysis of the types of uses
proposed to ensure that they support the area’s industrial base. In
addition, the traffic analysis and site review will ensure the
development will not have a negative impact on adjacent roadways and
that the internal circulation between uses is achieved.

7. Discussion during work session and public hearing.









. > >
iy

¥

o -;. LANES f{é_‘(‘.?’?ﬂ
s 5‘}?}&%
g

e

v P fo v £
AT Jaag.
By ; b

N L D

e

F

t
e, 2

5
M (A A
7 s §
"“"“'ﬂ { % TN il
N '!; A A -, b G ‘_,,"Sg‘.r‘i’ '
d ERG L e i ol HGEIRE, & Sy 5
oo " Niprchas s St x A “; ! 2 if s
; 2 N £ g 4 ] T &5t ZAY N A
S R R N SO Roch i ol 7 \téﬁw 7
7 et & e P, AARs el Y ) & i fs
. i N E 4 o et A . , kK N
e Vi) 3 FPS . - I ; ra € ? A o 3 F A Sy
PR 1Y TR . W N Rt AT o e |2 | L proal
: : R R & o i1 2! P ey N . ]
N . ¥ g . Y L ) ' ;
N i R O |
3 o s & 4zt Py 2
2 f kA AN e AT P R R

TR TR - e P
‘ A x Vo 80 33 e,
\‘~ 3+ ) “'.7‘“ 5 »\.,.#”&d‘,

&

A 4 ¥ 4
% - ) % 2 3.[
N BAWE A

J . Y ) G [ ‘: ‘-l ,‘l fi\g“ r ‘: "\-p

».3 -
ek

ARES. . L 5, & 5 . 7 " YREA X S )y r?..ﬁ? 0 Nt " 0 |
9 \, ki 4 ',3, ;“ :: x - i '}','?" 2 g [T l‘g'i »(".{ & :... A : . 4&) it ) ; . :-'“ ..
e e e S D B .
B T ‘ N M ;
' . R g S X N e F
- i 5 _ i
Y, ;r .57 lr—‘

o e . .
. % S Bl
K I
,‘%_, et X 1 " 3] S
j R A T

3

&

36t STREET - 0 \ P A

.J?ﬂ
- ¥E
EE

ERTY SIZE | ey -

PROEBF?)-%Z\CACRES /1428,351 J0FTL. N AN
(INCLUDING TO, & 26th ST) &) - B
30.9% ACRES/ 1,247,210 5Q.FT (NE | ,

PARKING T, . .

SES 185 B0 . ;
WAREHOU 187 2 o

205t ST OFFICiz S A=A e
26t STHREET ! L s 5

:(:;_v

R

V4

KRAFT _AVE.

|







Staff Recommendation (Final PUD Plan)

Case 14-22
Page 2 of 3

BASIS:

10.

11.

12.

street tree planting will be required if installation is deferred until
after construction of the homes.

As stated by the applicant at the Architecture Review Committee
meeting on January 6, 2021, and in the letter dated June 17, 2022,
homes on lots 176, 207, 208, and 226 shall be constructed utilizing
an upgraded siding package.

As stated by the applicant in the letter dated June 17, 2022, the
homes on lots 176, 207, 208, and 226 shall have a minimum of two
(2) windows on the elevations facing Breton Avenue.

As stated in the letter dated June 17, 2022, the Developer and City
shall determine the final location of the path connection and public
easement from Breton Avenue to the Paul Henry Thornapple Trail.

As stated in the letter dated June 17, 2022, the homes on lots 208
and 226 shall have a minimum setback of fifteen (15) feet from the
east property lines.

11835, Integrity 2060, and i1560 homes combined shall comprise no
more than twenty-five (25) percent of any phase of the development;
no i1835, Integrity 2060, or i1560 home shall be located within 2
lots (adjacent to or across the street from) another 11835, Integrity
2060, or i1560 home.

Compliance with all applicable City of Kentwood Engineering
Department regulations and requirements.

Compliance with all applicable City of Kentwood Fire Department
regulations and requirements.

To ensure appropriate landscaping and installation of required street
trees.

One of the conditions of approval of the rezoning and preliminary
PUD plan was review and approval by Planning Staff of a final tree
preservation plan prior to construction of each phase of the
development.

To assure adherence to all the conditions and clauses agreed upon in
the Amended and Restated Planned Unit Development Agreement.

To ensure public access from the Breton Avenue to the Paul Henry
Thornapple Trail.



Staff Recommendation (Final PUD Plan)

Case 14-22
Page 3 of 3

10.

With minimum building setbacks of fifteen (15) feet from the east
property lines on lots 208 and 226, the minimum building setback
(as measured at front yard setback line) from the Breton Avenue
right-of-way would be nineteen (19) feet for lot 226 and twenty-
three (23) feet for lot 208. The minimum setback would be twenty
(20) feet for a street side yard of a corner lot.

Based on discussions with the City Engineer, it is staff
understanding that the elevation difference between Breton Avenue
and the lots on the south/west side of Sanderling Court would not be
as significant as the grade difference between the lots on the south
side of Sage Wing Drive and 60™ Street thereby reducing the visual
impact of the homes from Breton Avenue. In addition, there is an
open space area with a width up to 150 feet between the lots and
Breton Avenue which would also help reduce the visual impact.

To ensure compliance with Engineering and Fire Department
regulations and requirements.

The development otherwise meets the requirements of the
Kentwood Zoning Ordinance.

Applicant’s representation at the work session and public hearing.

Discussion at the work session and public hearing.



Westview Capital, LLC

795 Clyde Ct
Byron Center, M1 49315
Joe Pung, Senior Planner June 17, 2022
City of Kentwood
Department of Community Development
4900 Breton Ave

Kentwood, Michigan 49508

Subject: Bretonfield Preserve Phase 6, Revised Tentative Preliminary Plat/Final PUD Site Plan

Dear Joe,

Based on the review comments contained in the June 8" staff reports and the discussion at the June
14" Planning Commission Work Session, attached please find 15 copies (24” by 36”) of the revised
Tentative Preliminary Plat/Final PUD Site Plan and 15 copies (117 by 17”) of the revised Tree
Preservation & Landscape Plan for Phase 6 of Bretonfield Preserve site condominium subdivision. A
brief summary of the plan changes is provided below:

Street Trees (East side of Breton Avenue)
e Street trees have been added along the East side of Breton Avenue.

e A total of 15 additional trees will also be installed within the open space area located along the East
side of Breton Avenue, in addition to the existing trees that will be preserved in this area.

Open Space Area (Behind Units 190, 191 and 192)

e A 10-foot wide easement has been added along the south side of Unit 190 which will provide the
homeowners association access to this open space area for maintenance purposes, if needed.

e Extension of a formal path through this open space area with a secondary connection to the Paul
Henry Thornapple Trail is not desirable for the following reasons:

1) Open space area is small in size (approximately Y2 acre), characterized by shrub growth and is a
natural low area in this portion of the site.

2) Open space will serve as a storm water conveyance area that will receive storm water drainage from
the rear yards of Units 190 thru 204. ‘

3) Creation of a formal path in this open space area would result in pedestrians walking within the
backyards of adjacent residences.

4) The 10-foot wide paved path along the West side of Breton Avenue and associated connection to
the Paul Henry Thornapple Trail (behind Units 220 thru 226) was envisioned as the focal point of
the subdivision to provide safe and convenient pedestrian access, from 60" Street to the Paul Henry
Thornapple Trail, and eventually North to 52™ Street.

5) A secondary path and connection to the Paul Henry Thornapple Trail through this open space area
was not envisioned or identified on the approved amended PUD plan.

Path Connection from Breton Avenue to Paul Henry Thornapple Trail (Behind Units 220 thru 226)
e The path connection has been revised to 10-feet wide with a 20-foot wide public easement. It is
understood the final location of the path and related details will be discussed between the Developer
and the City with submittal of the detailed engineering plans.

!
}






To:

From:

Date:
Re:

Kentwood Planning Department

Brad Boomstra, P.E.
City Engineer

June 17, 2022

Bretonfield Preserve Phase 6
Review of Site Plan Received 6-17-2022

We have completed our review of the proposed preliminary plat site plan dated 6-17-2022 and
received in our office on 6-17-2022 for the above referenced project. While there isn’t sufficient
information to perform a detailed review, we do offer the following comments to be incorporated
as construction plans are developed.

General Comments:

1.

The engineer and developer will need to coordinate the design of future Breton Avenue
with the crossing of the Paul Henry Trail. The City of Kentwood is issuing and RFP
for design services for the Breton Avenue Trail crossing. Coordination with the City
of Kentwood’s engineering consultant will be necessary.

Breton Avenue oversizing agreements, similar to previous phases, will be necessary as
well as utility agreements.

One storm lateral for every two parcels is required and shall contain a wye to
accommodate two (2) adjacent units. These leads can be cored and booted into the
storm sewer pipe and do not need to discharge directly into a manhole.

Kentwood Engineering is concerned with the locations of paths in several locations. In
several areas the paths are shown in low areas and crossing wetland areas. The design
shall locate the paths so that they are adequately drained, and water will not cause
ponding on the paths.

Utilities (Sanitary & Water):

1.

The City of Grand Rapids owns, operates and maintains the sanitary sewer collection
system in this portion of Kentwood. Any alterations, extensions or new connections
will require approval from Grand Rapids. Construction plans (drafting standards) and
specifications for the proposed sanitary sewer must conform to Grand Rapids
requirements.

A construction agreement with the City of Grand Rapids will be required for the new
sanitary sewer.

The City of Kentwood owns, operates and maintains the water distribution system in
this portion of Kentwood. Construction plans (drafting standards) and specifications
for the proposed water main must conform to Kentwood requirements.



Bretonfield Preserve Phase 5
5735 Breton Avenue
Page 2 of 2

4.

Additional comments regarding utilities will be made upon receipt of construction
plans.

Required Permits, Bonds, Fees [and Escrow]:

1.

A Permit for an Earth Change (fee $400) and a $5,000 soil erosion control performance
bond or an irrevocable letter of credit using the City of Kentwood format will be
required through Kentwood Engineering. The Owner/Developer must sign the Permit
for an Earth Change. Both the Owner/Developer and the Contractor must be named on
the bond. Please contact us if you need a permit and/or a bond template form, or one
can be accessed on the City’s website at http://www.ci.kentwood.mi.us (hover over
“CITY SERVICES” and “DEPARTMENTS” then click “ENGINEERING”, then click the “sOIL
EROSION AND STORM WATER” link near the top of the page). There is a 365-day limit to
complete the work under this permit.

An NPDES Notice of Coverage will also be needed as the proposed area of disturbance
exceeds 5 acres. At the time the Earth Change permit is issued by the Kentwood, your
Notice of Coverage will immediately become effective as a “permit-by-rule” as soon
as the NOC has been properly filed and the appropriate fee is paid.

A $30,000 Site Grading and Stormwater Management Bond or an irrevocable letter of
credit using the City of Kentwood format and an administrative fee of $600 will be
required through Kentwood Engineering. This bond is posted to assure that the plan,
once approved, is constructed in the field according to that plan. Both the
Owner/Developer and the Contractor must be named on the bond. Let us know if you
need our bond template, or it can be accessed on the City’s website.

For construction of this plat, an irrevocable letter of credit will be required if final plat
approval is secured (or before building permits for the homes can be issued) prior to
completing all construction. This is to cover all incomplete items, including placement
of monumentation, watermain and sanitary sewer installation, detention basin, storm
system, street construction, right-of-way stabilization, and all other appurtenances that
will become a public entity.

Per City Resolution 37-07, an escrow fund in the amount of $10,000 plus 3% of the
estimated construction cost of the proposed public street and storm sewer
improvements will be required to pay for the costs incurred by the City relating to
construction engineering, testing and inspection services. A construction agreement
between the Developer and the City of Kentwood will be required.

Should you have any questions regarding this department’s review, please feel free to contact our

office.

CC:

Kentwood Engineering Permit Staff

Kent County Drain Commission

Jeff Van Laar, P.E. — Exxel Engineering — jvanlaar(@exxelengineering.com
Dan Larabel — Allen Edwin — dlarabel@allenedwin.com



http://www.ci.kentwood.mi.us/
mailto:jvanlaar@exxelengineering.com
mailto:dlarabel@allenedwin.com

P:\Projects\2022\221240\Drawings\221240-P.dwg, PP, 6/16/2022 7:07:53 AM, jroot

QY \ '
R 770
BENCHMARK ELEVATION 768.61 e \\ II _>| i 60" RIGHT-OF—WAY ) |<—
TOP OF S.W. FLANGE BOLT ON \\L 30" (NORTH & WEST SIDE OF STREET) 30’ (SOUTH & EAST SIDE OF STREET) _
HYDRANT (UNDER "E”). HYD. IS 789 S WALK
N. OF N.W. HSE. COR. OF HSE. N . . 15 15 (TYP)
NO. 2680 60TH STREET 8 N\ 4” CONCRETE SIDEWALK (6 o o
> 3 \\ THRU DRIVES) ON MIN. 4” CL Il ) DOT F4 CURE & 1" (TYP) -
BENCHMARK ELEVATION 756.39 AN SAND SUBBASE (TYP) U,/g S6A HMA TOR COURSE 1:6 MAX. © =0
TOP OF S.W. FLANGE BOLT ON . N 27 3C LEVELING COURSE GUTTER (TYP) 5% MIN 1.5% |
HYDRANT (UNDER "E") HYDRANT g 778 > N 6" 21AA MOD. AGG. BASE > MIN. =
IS BETWEEN HSE. 2750 AND HSE. 770 \¥ N 2% DY 7};‘ % b
2730 60TH STREET - ” T R e .
—— 6” (TYP . : o
/\‘b0 776 \\ ( ) _—l.- h‘_n RTINS R B e T e e g e T T T L ST T e e wevT oL e CID ZA' 4 44 ' :
-l -3 . NG LEY '._‘ S e wWhe N '.‘ fen Cw, ° :l' ..':' A -:-"'-',' ‘\:. ' !.:-. .'-. - :'.. _? ..'4- . pEd :' e o .‘-_. o ey o et CHETAN . :-’ ._‘{ s -:"‘-:"‘;" :-: .".' ~':‘. lh:n . ARCA < . Lo A(‘ -
BENCHMARK ELEVATION 789.64 — OPEN SPACE N BT b WAL T e e T LN, T T % R S L 3 R P R e O T P L A e ?. o J_ 0} 350G ‘PST ColNg‘ Cea ©
TOP OF S.(W. FLANgE”)BOLT ON -~ ~ 5 770 N MAX. 10" ¥(O)1 0o / _/LD/ T < L o
. . 7 BN .
HYDRANT (UNDER "E™). HYD ~ % 77 AN ” 6 INCH SUBBASE MAX. 10% SLOPE ON DRIVE
IS N. OF N.W. HSE. COR. OF o z7 AN o ? AN , MIN. 12" CL I UNDERDRAIN (TYP) 2" MIN. APPROACH (8” CONC) (TYP)
HSE. NO. 2586 60TH STREET IS 4 £ \ ! \ 22 10 & OF STOP BOX ] SAND SUBBASE 10 < OPTIONAL IN &
_ S 40\ AND HYDRANTS (TYP) 17 NOM. SANITARY PERVIOUS SOILS 24" HEAD CURB DETAIL
7 o O ? @ SEWER 1o 6 (PITCHED IN)
e/ o / WETLANDS > 0( \\\ | 19'_TO & | STOeRMTOSE?NER GAS MAN
/ A / ZoT~ WATERMAIN )
/ / S e i 774 631,\\ x 10’ PRIVATE EASEMENT
PP#41-18-34-100-018 / 482 , 74 NS FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES
T Ve Y e, A 30' CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER
2 N /Y EASEMENT FOR . < RN
"I/ a4 = PROPOSED 10’ ' P
& e 4 STORMWATER ~ N ' > AN
A vy ( DETENTION e 1 WIDE BLACKTOP  // /1 LR
Moo/ A257 K N = PATY WTHIN 20" 1] ON SECTION
- N 780- N = I 780 AN
g g . 50 @, 218 [ 219 \ | i 7’0\ REQUIRED FOR STREETS SERVING MORE THAN 10 LOTS 2. Mapping:
/ 4 ] v/ RS \ N 8722 SF. > \ I‘ \ | | '
) S((RANT | NS — 990 W - ’0(6\\\ p GENERAL NOTES a. Boundary is based on ALTA survey by Exxel Engineering dated 3/22/2004.
% ! e | ’ SNl g~ 8411 SF W\
> /7 < NN o \ \ / .
/ 5 ) / |/ 78 N\ e & 17 - / N Q \;\ o o \ \\\ 254 7 NS 1. DESCRIPTION: ) . . b. Existing ground contours and topographical features are based on field work by
II - // o \\ , X or2q SFg l{; & \ %) s \\ N ‘y \ Part of the SW 1/4 of Sect!on_34 and part of the the SE 1/4 of Section 34, T6N, R1 1W, Clty Exxel Engineering dated May 15, 2017 and Feb. 2004.
, / ML / S AW s%eo o A AR\ , /( N\ of Kentwood, Kent County, Michigan described as: Commencing at the South 1/4 Corner of said c. Existing utilities are based on available construction records.
/ / C,,/ / Y _ ' R A A\ OPEN SPACE 2\ N Ve S N Section 34; thence N00°46'24"W 1325.44 feet along the East line of said SW 1/4 to the
/ n / g 780 . ;\\ \d‘ 2292 7 NS / A \\ Northwest corner of Fields of Breton (as recorded in Instrument Number 201902140010062) . _ _ . . _
> Y y / 516 TonS AR XN Y, & 2 N and the POINT OF BEGINNING: thence S72°58'10"W 47.49 feet; thence Northwesterly 293.75 3. Zoning: RPUD-2 Single Family Residential Planned Unit Development
/ / / / / 784/ dg73 SF N 023 PROPOSED ~3 N : feet along a 640.00 foot radius curve to the left, the chord of which bears N30°10'47"W 291.18 o _ S o
FUTURE DEVELOPMENT SHOWN FOR 786 If . / { 3 3 - ) 4\.\ ((\ 5.6827 SF K2 %ESN:(TOSK )/ g ,/ L feet (Central Angle = 26°17'53"); thence Northwesterly 71.29 feet along a 500.00 foot radius 4. Proposed Use: Full service single family residential subdivision homes.
REERENGE, LAYOUTNOT FINAL / / ! / 215 po\ \ v C ‘?0-4, 204 / B )/ S AN curve to the right, the chord of which bears N39°14'38"W 71.23 feet (Central Angle = 08°10'10");
! / . \ G 6885 SF A 57 / / thence .00 feet; thence Northwesterly 73.67 feet along a .00 foot radius . Proposed Zoning: No change
! , , \ 6557 S . & X , ’ \\ hence $54°50'27"W 80.00 feet; thence North ly 73.67 feet al 580.00 foot radi 5.P dz No ch
| ) / 7 ; Eﬁgg‘:g&? 20 2! AP \ @.\¢ Ro 4 Ggsgg | ,//OPEN SPACE curve to the right, the chord of which bears N31°31'14"W 73.62 feet (Central Angle = 07°16'38");
i e / 786 FOR UTILIMES 214 -\ \ A 5o /g ko AN thence S89°13'36"W 299.71 feet; thence N62°01'00"W 139.52 feet; thence N32°50'07"W 6. RPUD-2 District Regulations
! K . 7736 SF ) >N QO 5226/, ) K ERN N\ 273.23 feet; thence N68°33'07"W 140.25 feet; thence N71°47'33"W 47.55 feet to a Statutory
| ! ® o, AN \G”\\ Q N[ 7332 SF ! N Southeasterly corner of Bretonfield Preserve No. 4 (as recorded in Instrument No. a. Lot area 6,500 s.f. min.
| Jes OPEN SPACE 213 ) p Xr sonl 1 / 685 & v \\ 202108030086276); thence N21°08'41"E 217.20 feet along the Easterly line of said Bretonfield b. Lot width 52' (65' for corner lots)
! ! 8177 SF N <\‘ \?\14 / 2077 206 . 0’ N Preserve No. 4; thence S68°51'19"E 10.00 feet along said Easterly line; thence N21°08'41"E c. Front setback 20" min.
157 R 2 / , s4o5sF [ 7638 SF M 79 N\ 94.44 feet along said Easterly line; thence N05°47'52"E 86.60 feet along said Easterly line; d. Sideyard 5'min. (12' total)
' > 8027132F ) se>\ y LNFS 52, 727(99:4, 2 N thence N27°07'39"W 53.59 feet along said Easterly line; thence N31°00'14"E 436.59 feet along e. Sideyard for Units 208 & 226 15' min. (east), 5' (west)
T 9 ' ' T . o S D -— ahvA 7 R . . . . . . . ' ' ’
I 49 | S ~ e 4 said Easterly line to the Southwesterly line of a former railroad right of way (100 feet wide); f Sidevard (street side of corner lot 20" min.
: : I I N 211 Py 25 RN \ 3 o 5< ’ 7%39353 77% 3 \\ thence S43°13'18"E 1676.54 feet along said Southwesterly line; thence Southeasterly 338.46 Re;/r ar(d ) 30' min
: [ | | T 4 7441 SF 525 :52 = ’ X OR % 3 203 sl N feet along said Southwesterly line on a 8000.00 foot radius curve to the right, the chord of which 9 y ’
_____ T : | | 719, 768°3y: o 210 66,5 d 7N A Soi s N N bears S42°00'35"E 338.44 feet (Central Angle = 02°25'27") to the Northeast corner of said 7. Proposed Improvements:
_____ = ! I I 67-603 ” 0> EY o3 7513 SF Is ! m~ o O ) O & > | \\ Fields of Breton and the North line of the SW 1/4 of the SE 1/4 of said Section 34; thence a. Municipal water and sanitary sewer to each lot.
l I'B LOOMING BUI 28 740 55 7e3ssF ] 208 /! | PE%';%SE 7N S W /202 D N N88°57'17"W 618.18 feet along said North line of the SW 1/4 of the SE 1/4 of Section 34 and b. Public streets will conform to the City of Kentwood specifications for subdivision
o | | WETLANDS S 7501 SF [ | H 8U Kl Y d O 6500 SF¢ 27 N the North line of said Fields of Breton to the Point of Beginning. streets - see cross section.
H l | \, b---—g-—-- -] - ' l ] | 853 3 S Ny 201 N AN c. Drainage design will conform to the City of Kentwood and KCDC specifications
: o ! [Py N Q& NG 6500 SF < AN Contains 51 lots, 4 private parks and 22.93 acres for subdivision drainage.
L - — Y ! 11762/ ~Xo0 Y P2 N ' ) . . )
] ) ' 8431SF /177 S S SN 200 d. The front 10" of each lot is reserved for installation of buried power &
| %/ - ' \ 6783 S %o " \\ B 6500 SF ) Part of Parcel Number: 41-18-34-300-031 Address: 5735 Breton Avenue SE communication lines to service each lot.
\ ! 786 ‘ & 178 \ 2 % e. Construction will conform to all applicable state and local cod
| \ S S R ) \ \ N N : pplicable state and local codes.
_ i " :—l : PROPOSED SEAOCPI?ngg l!'gTH \ \ ‘S 79 N \\ N 615(% gF D f. Sidewalks will be installed at the completion of the house construction on each lot.
o ! (] | % ! % ! PA{H 32 ‘\z ° \\.\7) X 65003«": A \ . . 4/ N 98 10 g. Breton Ave street trees shall be planted at 50" increments consistent
| | | o - \ \\\1\\ . 180 N \\ 0 198 D NS TR \ U with PUD plan.
2 6500 SF 3 N \ 5
I I | 1 (I \ \ K \ \ A NJ Lo
<z 3 N .
: ! P | : | : \ \ \ ‘\oz 181 A \ 3:?(/ 61337,: 8. Statistical Summary: (Overall PUD) .
| 2| ik \ \ &. 6500 SF £ N . 3 a. Total area =102.36 ac.
I | zZ I_|_I|r OPEN SPACE \\ ¢ \\-7 & A \\ NS y 196 b. Total site condo units & lots =309
| | 4= | — ) N . =
—— H = ———— \ A 182 N \ >, 6500 SF
DE P \ S, =D \ : . =31. . (30.69
i3 PP ey 5 do & V. 740\ 5136 Ac. 008%
S e PAVILION WALK UP TO AND : Z 183 \ <, 19 d. Net Area (excluding Open Space) = 71.00 Ac.
! RS AROUND TOT LOT \ G & 6509 S Q \\ § 3 309 lots
{ ) ’ A ] N \ .G Density = ———— =3. :
a < NB9°13'36"E  299.71 \ \ & Agals A ANNNS & =ross DENSIY= 10236 Ac, 302 lotsl Ac
| | ’ & N \ N
Ll 2 AR(C=73.67 \ \ N 500 SE R \ N .
__ _L_t_—————l % RO=73.87 N g S\, e S \ \ \\ e. Net Density = ;’?90% = 4.35 lots/ Ac.
[OR T | LD cHD=31°31"1478 158 \ ‘\ o 18 A\ N N AN ' ¢
[al , 73.62' \ . OPEN: SPACE > 6500 SF < . VA
= || 1 Q1 h=7°16'38" \ v \o 760 Phase 6 Only:
- BT I~ 192 a. Total area =22.9 ac.
" : \ b :] N o 10197/SF m
w | | E‘E ,II 7)\_\\‘?‘},_ | b b. Total lots =51
B « W A0 _:TQ————_LI . \ 12 c. Total Open Space =10.9 Ac. (47.6%)
< : roLd : , ) / d. Net Area (excluding Open Space) = 12.0 Ac.
I Iz I Y .
U_) :_ | _: _LT_.‘_ _ ! /[3 121229913|= z e. Gross Density = E;IQLAS\C =2.22 lots/ Ac.
| : 1 Eigh g \ 51 lots
'. '. '. L e - N e.NetDensity= —2° =425 |ots/ Ac.
! ! o ! : 1 90 & 756 AN 12.0 Ac.
-— T | T 1 S \
: : : 1 04 S : 11269 SF OPEN SPACE \
| | | ! & 3 \
i TH| - PLOVERIDRIVE. - -- — { N )
. — P o 60 - -= - = 5 2
¥ \JIt.' PROPOSED 8 WDE\| | l ’ / SN N | &
\ \_ BLACKTOP PATH \ 5oND E|Z  STREET
= \ \ 8 Il x| 10 noy 12 / N \ <N>
1 \\ N72°\58g0"E \ , / / 13 \ \\ :
\ 47.49° PROPOSED 20’ . ' A S
| [ | \ PROPOSED 30 PROPOSED 10’ WIDE I
| i % = ' EASEMENT EASEMENT EASEMENT FOR ACCESS . 6\(\ |
| , b= | FOR UTUTES  E0R%imi mes AND MAINTENANCE OF - . L
i ————— e ——— 0 — AN 7 OPEN SPACE 2
| | ) o= ol | B
| | i el | I\ <
| i C Loy EE s ] I DS | _D __
T T N EEE R
: | : | I | E; ¥ 'l F—— ”” ’ | J \I
: : 1 g8yl : SCALE: 1" = 100 3|e
e i 1 2’ CONTOUR INTERVAL - l b
| | | LLi /71 | |
1 | I Q 1 ! I ! ! | ?g\) |
=4 N |
¥
= \ e = / ' 'S z
S o e T fe \ N il 18 5 2 -PROP. WATERMAIN I-L'G — S —
E gl P ‘ % S 5 HE
= 5 PROPOSED C/L PROFILE GRADES " L S~ L N \J<(/’ / / ’,' L IS:J -- { -PROP. STORM SEWER 5 @
. ARE TO THE FACE OF CURB IN . ) I ' 3 <<
@) 1 o N S~ I ~Np m 1 P
«© S CENTER OF BOULDEVARD « ~ o O -PROP. 8" SANITARY SEWER Z
S </ , I3 N LOCATION MAP £
| 80’ WIDE R/W BN | ," 3 4 ° -
’ ) 0.5 1.5’ ) ) N | wn
— 14.5" PARKWAY 2 12.0° N7 7.0’ 2 12.0° 2 15.5" PARKWAY < '
| F et cPustior ] - I8 -~ - S S A NOTE: REFER TO AMENDED PUD SITE PLAN FOR PRELIMINARY PLAT
1o | O | | 1ss | ‘ZB%TE?( ouRe & | el IRRE = ADDITIONAL DETAIL OF SITE AMENITIES. BRETONFIELD PRESERVE PHASE 6
OR 2% MAX—= , 2.0% %1 - 2 0% 1:6 MAX., 2% MIN. (TYP) o i {760 3 FOR: WESTVIEW CAPITAL, LLC
R s oy e 20 e e e TN ' ' ATTN: DAN LARABEL
L NN S, -, 975 CLYDE COURT
N i T~ '~ NOO®46'24”W xxx’ =S¢ OF Micgm, WC OF Mo,z BYRON CENTER, MI 49315
N T 6" UNDERDRAIN S S0, W gty =
6"\ HNDERDRAIN 2" 13A TOP COURSE F& T, @*o}vxdEFFREY.“Sﬁ’% IN: PART OF THE S 1/2 OF SECTION 34, T6N, R11W,
, ot E £, JAMES A "\, "% N R CITY OF KENTWOOD, KENT COUNTY, MICHIGAN.
MIN. 12" CLASS I 1 NOM. : . 3" 3C LEVELING COURSE S 174 CORNER, Z*/ Swanson X% §x; VANCAAR i *% . ’
: 1 22" T0 ¢ Cnlafel . SECTION 34, T6N, R11W Z- vz §* . *3 REVISIONS:
SAND ABOVE PIPE WATERMAIN LI . 12.57 21AA MOD. AGG. BASE "'{,O ) .>C3 z 3 r: ENGINEER E_ﬁl § . . .
’ . " AL o2 T o ‘w
3 MIN. AN 12”7 SAND SUBBASE MDOT CLASS I (CIP) 4,%% . License No. /& 2 19 No. 2§ e el englnee"ng "‘]CI
T NOTE: BRETONFIELD PH 1 UTILIZED 2” 13A %,<Oy . 4001040163 " & £ 3§, 6201062083 o' §© /
. * ﬂ So P - < ®., Ky é \\ I H
NOTE: BRETON AVE. " . RTINS I OE 2 O, oW planners - engineers - surveyors
, AND 3" 3C AS PAVEMENT CROSS—SECTION We” N e Rt Vol _
CROSS_SLCTION DIFFERS 6 _TO < CURB AND GUTTER IN ""oo»OFESS\0“§ s, OF, ESSTONP Lt 2252 Clyde Park, S.W-. « Grand Rapids, M| 29509
- ! N\ “ ¢ Phone: (616) 531-3660 www.exxelengineering.com
FROM SANDERLING COURT. 3 MI?\ITORM SEWER 3 MIN * CENTER OF BOULEVARD TO AR g one: (616) g g
] ] BE PITCHED OUT
DRAWN BY.  JDR PROJ. ENG.: JSV
BRETON AVENUE BOULEVARD CROSS SECTION (WITH ISLAND) DRAWT 5, PROT NG 3oV S;HEf_E1T
FILE NO.: 221240E DATE: 06 /17 /2022 0




BLOOMING BUD LANE

P:\Projects\2022\221240\Drawings\221240.dwg, TREES, 6/16/2022 7:16:49 AM, jroot

TREE PRESERVATION AREA
(GREEN SHADING)

EXISTING DECIDUOUS TREE
EXISTING EVERGREEN TREE

S
B
e

PROPOSED STREET TREES

§% RED MAPLE
&% PRINCETON ELM
€% AUTUMN BLAZE MAPLE

' LINDEN GREENSPIRE SCALE: 1" = 150°

TREE PRESERVATION AND
LANDSCAPING PLAN

BRETONFIELD PRESERVE—PHASE 6

5252 Clyde Park, S.W. » Grand Rapids, Ml 49509
Phone: (616) 531-3660 www.exxelengineering.com

ﬁre elengineering, InC.

\ planners - engineers - surveyors




S S

BRETONFIELD PRESERVE PH. 6

ex>QI engineering, inC.

planners - engineers - surveyors
5252 Clyde Park, S.W. ¢ Grand Rapids, Ml 49509

Scale 1” = 50 Phone: (616) 531-3660 www.exxelengineering.com
FILE NO.:  221240F DATE: 06/22/2022
P \Projects \2022\221 240 \Drawings \221 240 P.dwg— SETBACKS— roo







Staff Recommendation (Preliminary Plat)

Case 15-22
Page 2 of 3

BASIS:

10.

11.

12.

13.

Street trees shall be installed in accordance with the approved
landscaping plan, the Planned Unit Development Agreement, and
the requirements of the Kentwood Zoning Ordinance. A
performance guarantee, in an amount determined by the City, for
street tree planting will be required if installation is deferred until
after construction of the homes.

As stated by the applicant at the Architecture Review Committee
meeting on January 6, 2021, and in the letter dated June 17, 2022,
homes on lots 176, 207, 208, and 226 shall be constructed utilizing
an upgraded siding package.

As stated by the applicant in the letter dated June 17, 2022, the
homes on lots 176, 207, 208, and 226 shall have a minimum of two
(2) windows on the elevations facing Breton Avenue.

As stated in the letter dated June 17, 2022, the Developer and City
shall determine the final location of the path connection and public
easement from Breton Avenue to the Paul Henry Thornapple Trail.

As stated in the letter dated June 17,2022, the homes constructed on
lots 208 and 226 shall have a minimum setback of fifteen (15) feet
from the east property lines.

11835, Integrity 2060, and i1 560 homes combined shall comprise no
more than twenty-five (25) percent of any phase of the development;
no i1835, Integrity 2060, or i1560 home shall be located within 2
lots (adjacent to or across the street from) another /1835, Integrity
2060, or i1560 home.

Compliance with all applicable City of Kentwood Engineering
Department regulations and requirements.

Compliance with all applicable City of Kentwood Fire Department
regulations and requirements.

To ensure appropriate landscaping and installation of required street
trees.

One of the conditions of approval of the rezoning and preliminary
PUD plan was review and approval by Planning Staff of a final tree
preservation plan prior to construction of each phase of the
development.

To assure adherence to all the conditions and clauses agreed upon in
the Amended and Restated Planned Unit Development Agreement.



Staff Recommendation (Preliminary Plat)

Case 15-22
Page 3 of 3

10.

To ensure public access from the Breton Avenue to the Paul Henry
Thornapple Trail.

With minimum building setbacks of fifteen (15) feet from the east
property lines on lots 208 and 226, the minimum building setback
(as measured at front yard setback line) from the Breton Avenue
right-of-way would be nineteen (19) feet for lot 226 and twenty-
three (23) feet for lot 208. The minimum setback would be twenty
(20) feet for a street side yard of a corner lot.

Based on discussions with the City Engineer, it is staff
understanding that the elevation difference between Breton Avenue
and the lots on the south/west side of Sanderling Court would not be
as significant as the grade difference between the lots on the south
side of Sage Wing Drive and 60" Street thereby reducing the visual
impact of the homes from Breton Avenue. In addition, there is an
open space area with a width up to 150 feet between the lots and
Breton Avenue which would also help reduce the visual impact.

To ensure compliance with Engineering and Fire Department
regulations and requirements.

The development otherwise meets the requirements of the
Kentwood Zoning Ordinance.

Applicant’s representation at the work session and public hearing.

Discussion at the work session and public hearing.



Westview Capital, LLC
795 Clyde Ct
Byron Center, MI 49315

Joe Pung, Senior Planner June 17, 2022
City of Kentwood

Department of Community Development
4900 Breton Ave
Kentwood, Michigan 49508

Subject: Bretonfield Preserve Phase 6, Revised Tentative Preliminary Plat/Final PUD Site Plan

Dear Joe,

Based on the review comments contained in the June 8" staff reports and the discussion at the June
14" Planning Commission Work Session, attached please find 15 copies (24” by 36”) of the revised
Tentative Preliminary Plat/Final PUD Site Plan and 15 copies (11”7 by 17”) of the revised Tree
Preservation & Landscape Plan for Phase 6 of Bretonfield Preserve site condominium subdivision. A
brief summary of the plan changes is provided below:

Street Trees (East side of Breton Avenue)
e Street trees have been added along the East side of Breton Avenue.

o A total of 15 additional trees will also be installed within the open space area located along the East
side of Breton Avenue, in addition to the existing trees that will be preserved in this area.

Open Space Area (Behind Units 190, 191 and 192)

e A 10-foot wide easement has been added along the south side of Unit 190 which will provide the
homeowners association access to this open space area for maintenance purposes, if needed.

o Extension of a formal path through this open space area with a secondary connection to the Paul
Henry Thornapple Trail is not desirable for the following reasons:

1) Open space area is small in size (approximately ¥ acre), characterized by shrub growth and is a
natural low area in this portion of the site.

2) Open space will serve as a storm water conveyance area that will receive storm water drainage from
the rear yards of Units 190 thru 204, A

3) Creation of a formal path in this open space area would result in pedestrians walking within the
backyards of adjacent residences.

4) The 10-foot wide paved path along the West side of Breton Avenue and associated connection to
the Paul Henry Thornapple Trail (behind Units 220 thru 226) was envisioned as the focal point of
the subdivision to provide safe and convenient pedestrian access, from 60" Street to the Paul Henry
Thornapple Trail, and eventually North to 52" Street.

5) A secondary path and connection to the Paul Henry Thornapple Trail through this open space area
was not envisioned or identified on the approved amended PUD plan.

Path Connection from Breton Avenue to Paul Henry Thornapple Trail (Behind Units 220 thru 226)
o The path connection has been revised to 10-feet wide with a 20-foot wide public easement. It is
understood the final location of the path and related details will be discussed between the Developer
and the City with submittal of the detailed engineering plans.

[N
) Y






STAFF REPORT: June 6, 2022

PREPARED FOR: Kentwood Planning Commission

PREPARED BY: Lisa Golder

CASE NO.: 16-22 Kum and Go Major Change to a Commercial PUD

GENERAL INFORMATION

APPLICANT: Kum & Go L.C. rep by: Michael McPherson, Atwell LLC
Ryan Halder 12745 23 Mile Road Suite 200
1459 Grand Ave Shelby Twp MI 48315
Des Moines IA 50309

STATUS OF

APPLICANT: Owner and owner’s representative

REQUESTED ACTION: Applicant is requesting a Major Change to a Commercial Planned
Unit Development located at 5215 Kalamazoo Avenue, 1570 52
Street and 1549 Kalamazoo Avenue (part)

EXISTING ZONING OF

SUBJECT PARCEL.: CPUD Commercial Planned Unit Development

GENERAL LOCATION:

PARCEL SIZE:

EXISTING LAND USE
ON THE PARCEL:

ADJACENT AREA
LAND USES:

ZONING ON ADJOINING

PARCELS:

5215 Kalamazoo Avenue, 1570 52“d Street and 1549 Kalamazoo
Avenue (part)

2.28 Acres

Existing automotive repair, two single family residential homes

N: 524 Street and gas station

S: Duplex

E: Kalamazoo Avenue, vacant land
W:Single family homes

N: C-2 Commercial

S: R-2 Two Family Residential

E: C-4 Office

W:R1-C Single Family Residential



Kum and Go-Kalamazoo and 52nd Street
Major Change to an Approved PUD
Page 2

Compatibility With Master Plan ,

The Master Plan recommends commercial use for this location. The 2010 Master Plan
incorporated a charrette process to obtain neighborhood input into the development of the major
intersections along the Kalamazoo corridor. Neighborhood commercial uses or office uses were
recommended. The 2020 Master Plan recommends small-scale development to serve the
immediate residents as well as convenience for commuters. The 2020 Master Plan also
establishes some development concepts for the intersection of 5274 Street and Kalamazoo
Avenue, as follows:

o Establish opens space (green or hardscape plaza) at the intersection corners

e Provide parking behind buildings, if possible

e No expansion of commercial or office

e Landscaped buffers/screens for residential uses adjacent to commercial or office uses

e Area must be walkable

e Shared access must be provided between buildings

o Ensure that access to public streets works with boulevard design of Kalamazoo Avenue.
e A traffic analysis will be required with the development.

e Commercial uses to serve the immediate area or commuters

e Plan is long term and marketable.

Relevant Zoning Ordinance Sections
Section 12.05 addresses the purpose and development requirements for the CPUD district.

Zoning History

The site was initially developed as a gas station, and then approved as an automotive repair
establishment called Don and Sons in 1995. At one time the site was also considered for a
pharmacy. In 2003 the Planning and City Commissioners approved a city-sponsored rezoning of
the site to Commercial Planned Unit Development (CPUD). The CPUD approval was based on
a PUD Statement dated February 6, 2003 and February 24, 2003 (See attached PUD Statement
and City Commission approval). The rezoning was for property of approximately 3 acres in size;
this is larger than the acreage proposed for the Kum and Go development because the rezoning
included the 52M Street and Kalamazoo Avenue rights of way (extended to the centerline).
Excluding the rights of way, the proposed site is 2.28 acres in area. :

Ve

The 2003 PUD Statement specified a preference for Permitted or Special Land Uses that would
not generate significant traffic in the peak hour of operation for the intersection. The CPUD also
specifies that the hours of operation for any use be compatible with residential uses, from
approximately 7:00AM-10:00PM.

The 2003 PUD statement was intended to be utilized in the review of future proposed plans for
the corner. A plan for Thompsons Auto Repair was approved by the city in 2004. The use was
seen as an interim measure prior to a development project that would incorporate all of the land
zoned Commercial Planned Unit Development.



Kum and Go-Kalamazoo and 52nd Street
Major Change to an Approved PUD
Page 3

The proposed Kum and Go plan was reviewed by the Land Use and Zoning Subcommittee in
January of 2022; the Committee was generally in favor of the concept.

TECHNICAL INFORMATION

Street and Traffic

The site is located at the southwest corner of 52 Street and Kalamazoo Avenue. Kalamazoo
Avenue at the 52" Street intersection is a 4-lane road that includes two northbound and two
southbound lanes and a right turn lane at 52° Street. Lanes for indirect left turns are located north
and south of the intersection; only the north indirect left crossover is suitable for truck traffic. A
grass median prohibits left turns into and out of the proposed Kum and Go development from
Kalamazoo Avenue. 52" Street is a two-lane road with a center turn lane. At the intersection
with Kalamazoo Avenue, 52° Street allows for direct left hand turns for both northbound and
southbound traffic. There are dual left turns onto Kalamazoo from west-bound 527 Street.

The Kum and Go development proposes two driveways. The Kalamazoo driveway allows right-
in and right-out movements only. The width of the driveway is 50 feet. The applicant shall provide
turning templates to confirm the need for this width. Pavement markings may also be employed
to ensure that vehicles entering and exiting the site remain in their designated lanes; a deceleration
Jane may be necessary to allow traffic to get out of the through lanes and make a turn into the site
at a safe speed. Slower speeds are also safer for pedestrians walking through the area.

The 52nd Street driveway allows full movement of traffic in and out of the site. The applicant must
address any issues this may create with left turns into Newcastle Drive. The proposed 520 Street

driveway is also 55 feet in width. Again, the applicants shall provide information to justify the
need for this width.

Trip Generation and Traffic Analysis

Applicant has submitted a Traffic Impact Study as required by the Zoning Ordinance and by the
conditions of the CPUD approval for this site. The traffic analysis was based on 2018 traffic
volumes of 20,065 vehicles per day on Kalamazoo Avenue and 2016 traffic volume of 16,469
vehicle trips per day on 527 Street. The analysis reviewed current conditions, and then estimated
future conditions, given the proposed gas station use. The study concluded that all intersection
approaches continue to operate at an acceptable level of service (LoS D or better). The study also
identified between 16% and 35% of the traffic volume as “pass-by” trips, or trips by vehicles that
were already on the roadway and therefore not created by the new development. In addition, the
study concluded that there were adequate gaps in through traffic to allow turns left into and out of
the 52" Street driveway without excessive queueing. A summary of the traffic analysis is attached.
The city is working with a traffic consultant to review the conclusions of the traffic study and to




Kum and Go-Kalamazoo and 52nd Street
Major Change to an Approved PUD

Page 4

determine whether the Commission should require the developer to make additional improvement
or changes to the proposed plan.

Staff Review

1.

The Kum and Go development is proposed on a 2.28 acre property at the southwest
corner of 52 Street and Kalamazoo Avenue. The property owned by the applicant also
includes an attached residentially-zoned property with frontage on Newcastle Drive (not
part of the 2.28 acres). The parcel is intended to be split from the CPUD parcel and
developed as single family residential.

The Kum and Go store is a gas station with 6 pumps (12 pumping stations). The proposed
floor plan includes food preparation and sales, a seating area, and retail area for
convenience items. The applicant has indicated their desire sell packaged beer and wine
at the site. The applicant shall provide a floor plan for review.

Major Change to an approved PUD plan

3. In 2003 the Planning and City Commission approved a city-sponsored rezoning of the

site to Commercial Planned Unit Development (CPUD). The CPUD approval was based
on a PUD Statement dated February 6, 2003 and February 24, 2003 (See attached PUD
Statement and City Commission approval). The rezoning was for property of
approximately 3 acres in size; this is larger than the acreage proposed for the Kum and
Go development because the rezoning included the 52M Street and Kalamazoo Avenue
rights of way (extended to the centerline). Excluding the rights of way, the proposed site
is 2.28 acres in area.

The 2003 PUD Statement specified a preference for Permitted or Special Land Uses that
would not generate significant traffic in the peak hour of operation for the intersection.
The CPUD also specifies that the hours of operation for any use be compatible with
residential uses, from approximately 7:00AM-10:00PM. The applicant is proposing a 24
hour operation.

" The 2003 PUD statement was intended to be utilized in the review of future proposed

plans for the overall site. A plan for Thompsons Auto Repair was approved by the city in
2004. The use was seen as an interim measure prior to a development project that would
incorporate all of the land zoned Commercial Planned Unit Development.

 The 2003 PUD Statement states that the building roof elevation should be low in profile

and residential in style with a peaked roof or another roof style to be approved by the
Planning and City Commissions. The building was not to overpower the residential uses
to the west. The proposed Kum and Go building is between 18-21 feet in height; it should
not overpower the residential uses to the west. The building itself is 87 feet from the
common property line with the single family residential homes on Newecastle Drive. The
roof style is not a peaked roof; this roof type would likely result in a taller roofline.



Kum and Go-Kalamazoo and 52nd Street
Major Change to an Approved PUD

Page 5

The gas station includes a canopy over the pump islands. The canopy is between 17°-21°
in height.

The 2003 PUD Statement indicates that servicing the building would occur between the
hours of 9:00AM-3:00PM. The applicant is proposing servicing between 8:00AM and
8:00PM. The 2002 PUD Statement also indicates that service traffic would be kept as far
away from residential uses as possible. The proposed gas station extends the driveway
around the west side of the building. It may be possible to relocate the building further to
the west in order to remove the service driveway from the west side of the site. This
would also increase the width of the average greenbelt along the public streets to the
ordinance-required 30’ average width.

Site Plan Review

8.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15,

Access to the site for fuel trucks will be from Kalamazoo Avenue only. Since 52™ Street
is not a truck route, commercial trucks or fuel trucks delivering to the site would have to
travel south to the site from 44™ Street, or north to the site from the M-6. A crossover -
exists north of the Kalamazoo/52™ Street intersection to allow northbound vehicles make
an indirect left to access the Kalamazoo driveway. The crossover south of the proposed
gas station is about 2000 feet to the south.

The applicant shall provide information on truck circulation through the site. Trucks
must both enter and exit from the Kalamazoo Avenue driveway.

The lighting plan does not meet city standards; the lighting under the canopy exceeds 70
footcandles in some places; a maximum of 22 footcandles is permitted.

The landscape plan appears to meet city requirements. It is unclear where gravel is being
used in the planting beds.

The applicant has indicated the desire for exterior sales of ice, propane, firewood,
packaged water and other similar materials. Outside storage of merchandise is not
permitted. Other fueling stations have allowed the sale of some of these items (ice,
propane, etc.) on the sidewalk adjacent to the building. The location of these sales, if any,
should be noted on the site plan.

The proposed convenience store building will be 5,620 square feet in area. The use will
require 24 parking spaces, provided as per the proposed plan.

The applicant shall indicate how the proposed building meets the architectural guidelines
of Section 12.05 7 of the Zoning Ordinance.

The site has been a gas station and an auto repair establishment for many years; the status
of the any known remediation efforts should be provided.

























































Leg Kalamazoo Kalamazoo 52nd 52nd
Direction Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound
Time L T R U App L T R L T R U App L T R U App|nt
Hourly Total| 0 383 122 0 505] O 369 94 = °0% 95 176 54 0 395 72 168 30 0 270| 1563
11:00AM| 0 89 21 0 110 0 101 33 0 24 32 9 0 65 30 40 11 0 81} 390
11:15AM] 0 115 25 0 140 o 82 25 0 107] 16 51 10 0 77} 40 41 9 0 90| 414
11:30AM| 0 120 35 0 1550 O 91 36 0 127 18 57 9 0 84 29 58 11 0 98] 464
11:45AM| 0 103 30 0 133] o0 102 33 0 135 20 56 11 0 87| 44 45 18 0 107} 462
HouwlyTotal] 0 427 111 0 538 0 376 127 0 503] 78 196 39 0 313 143 184 49 0 376 1730
12:00PM| 0 122 32 0 154/ ©0 100 49 O 149 28 61 23 0 112y 40 58 11 0 109] 524
12:15PM| 0 129 33 o0 162 0 113 33 0 146 33 49 27 0 109 41 71 13 0 125| 542
12:30PM] 0 96 46 0 142] o0 115 27 0 142 23 69 23 0 115} 39 5 17 0 113 512
12:45PM| 0 120 44 0 164 0 115 31 0 146 17 61 20 0 98] 43 64 12 0 125| 533
HowlyTotal] 0 467 155 0 622 O 443 140 0 583] 101 240 93 0 434] 169 250 53 O 472) 2111
1.00PM| 0 104 46 0 150] O 115 29 0 144 34 67 19 0 120 47 59 22 0 128 542
1:15PM| 0 117 39 0 156] O 108 30 0 138/ 24 70 14 0 108) 38 51 15 0 104] 506
130PM| 0 120 53 0 173] 0 136 28 0 164 23 76 22 0 121f 40 69 22 O 131) 589
1.45PM| 0 161 53 0 214/ o 125 33 0 164 22 80 23 0O 125 41 77 14 0 132 635
HowlyTotal] 0 502 191 0 693] O 484 126 O GI0] 103 293 78 O 474 166 256 73 0 495| 2272
200PM| 0 130 58 0 188] o0 121 27 0 148 30 72 18 0 120 47 114 30 0 191 647
2:15PM| 0 160 45 o0 205/ O 129 41 0 170 33 84 21 0 138 4 98 20 0 160f 673
230pM| 0 146 73 o 219 0 180 43 0 223 28 97 16 0 141 50 99 29 0 178 761
2:45pM| 0 138 60 0 198 O 183 42 0 225/ 25 8 28 0 13} 50 98 23 0 171} 732
Howly Total| 0 574 236 0 810 O 613 158 0 766] 116 338 83 0 537| 189 409 102 0O 700| 2813
3:00PM| 0 151 63 0 214 o0 180 44 0 224/ 25 94 23 0 142 89 132 39 0 260] 840
315PM| 0 164 50 O 214 o0 166 32 0 198] 31 109 25 0 165] 62 140 46 0 248} 825
3:30PM| 0 176 43 0 219/ 0o 184 45 0 229 21 72 23 0 16| 71 112 29 0 212| 776
3.45pM| 0 157 46 0 203 o 177 52 0 229 36 77 30 0 143} 69 102 16 0 187} 762
Hourly Total| 0 648 202 0 80] 0o 707 173 0 880| 113 352 101 0 566} 291 486 130 0 907 3203
400PM| 0 160 43 0 203] o0 175 34 0 209 42 64 28 0 134f 60 91 33 0 184} 730
4:15PM| 0 150 54 O 204 0 168 41 0 209 36 8 25 0 143 72 9% 19 0 181 737
430pM| 0 156 55 0 211] o0 154 42 0 196 23 77 32 0 132 63 124 35 0 22| Y6l
445PM} 0 187 62 0 249 o0 145 51 0 196 31 77 20 0 128 70 96 22 0 188] Y6l
Howly Total] 0 653 214 0 867] O 642 168 0 810] 132 300 105 O 537/ 265 401 109 0 /75| 2989
5:00PM| 0 165 55 O 220/ O 171 54 0 225/ 34 70 26 0 130 82 116 33 0 231| 806
5:15PM| 0 182 63 0 245 0 188 44 0 232] 22 8 21 0 129 70 109 29 0 208 814
5:30PM| 0 149 64 0 213 0 142 46 0 188) 34 63 32 0 129| 65 88 28 0 181} 711
5:45PM| 0 159 58 0 217 o0 152 54 0 206/ 29 71 23 0 123] 43 93 17 0 153] 699
Howly Total| 0 655 240 0 895 O 653 198 0 851] 119 290 102 O ©511| 260 406 107 O 773 3030
6:00PM| 0 132 62 0 194/ O 136 25 0 161y 26 79 31 0 136} 37 60 19 0 116 607
6:15PM| 0 150 53 O 203] O 129 46 0 175/ 24 47 18 0 83 44 76 17 0 137| 604
6:30PM| 0 136 38 0 174 o0 113 33 0 146 36 43 19 0 98] 37 69 16 0 122] 540
6:45PM| 0 140 46 0 186 O 103 50 O 153] 27 46 20 O 93] 37 56 12 0 105] 537
Howly Total| 0 558 199 0 757 O 481 154 0 635| 113 215 88 O 416/ 155 261 64 0 480f 2288
7:00°PM| 0 104 35 0 139 o0 97 29 1 127/ 26 42 22 0 90} 28 55 13 0 96| 452
715pM| 0 98 33 0 1311 0 9 36 0 132f 27 47 17 0 91| 26 40 11 0 77} 431
730pPM| 0 91 53 0 144/ 0 103 23 0 126 22 35 12 0 69| 34 42 11 0 87| 426
7.45PM| 0 8 29 0 114f 0 94 31 0 125{ 13 38 14 0 65{ 31 53 6 0 90 394
HoulyTotal| 0 378 150 0 528 0 3% 119 1 510 88 162 65 0 315/ 119 180 41 0 350 1703
goopmM| 0 8 26 0 115{ O 75 20 O 95 28 47 19 0 84f 27 31 7 0 65 369
g15pM| 0 79 35 0 114] 0 89 24 0 113] 19 29 18 0 66] 26 34 7 0 67| 360
830PM| O 82 33 0 115/ 0 8 19 0 99 23 42 18 O 8| 50 37 9 0 96| 393
845PM| 0 57 21 0 78 O 64 24 0 88 11 30 8 0 49 19 2 9 0 50| 265
HowlyTotal|l 0 307 115 0 422] 0 308 87 0 395 81 148 63 0 292} 122 124 32 O 2/8] 1387
900bM| 0 59 23 0 8| o0 54 11 0 65 16 31 3 0 50l 18 18 10 0 46{ 243
915PM| 0 58 18 0 76f 0 75 11 0 86 9 26 12 0 47/ 13 22 6 0 41| 250
930PM| 0 4 19 0 60 0 38 15 0 53 8 37 5 0 50 12 25 0 M@
945PM| 0 37 17 0 54 0 49 14 0 63 18 4 0 30 6 35 0 46
Houwly Total| 0 195 77 0 272 0 216 51 0 267] 41 112 24 0 {77] 49 100 25 0 174
10:00PM|f 0 37 12 0 49 0 40 9 0 49| 10 29 3 0 4 13 51 18 0 &2
10;15PM] 0 39 15 0 54/ 0 39 13 0 52{ 11 28 4 0 43 5 29 6 0 40
10.30PM| 0 33 22 0 s} 0 39 12 0 51 5 33 4 0 42 10 14 9 0 33
10:45PM| 0 28 12 0 40| 0 31 8 0 39 5 24 30 32 12 17 8 0 37




Leg Kalamazoo Kalamazoo 52nd 52nd
Direction Northbound Southbound Eastbound ‘Westbound
Time L T RU Ap] L T R U App L T R U App L T R U Appjnt
HowlyTotall 0 137 61 0 198] o0 143 42 0 191} 31 114 14 0 1597 40 111 41 0 192 740
11:00PM| 0 25 9 0 34 0 34 8 0 42 13 13 50 31 9 38 19 0 66| 173
11:15PM!{ 0 26 8 0 34 0 32 ] 0 41 7 18 0 28 14 38 0 61 164
11:30PM{ O 22 0 30 0 25 10 0 35 2 14 0 22 12 17 0 34 121
11:45PM| 0 18 0 23 0 14 5 0 19 3 12 30 18 3 8 5 0 16 76
Hourly Total|{ 0 51 30 0 121 0 105 32 0 137 25 57 17 0 99 38 101 38 0 177 534
Total] 0 7836 2855 0 10691 5 7541 2058 1 9645{ 1523 4386 1184 O 7093| 2589 4423 1199 0 8211] 35640
% Approach |{0% 73.3% 26.7% 0% -10.1% 78.2% 21.8% 0% -121.5% 61.8% 16.7% 0% -131.5% 53.9% 14.6% 0% - -
o4 Total [0% 22.0% 8.0% 0% 30.0%| 0% 21.2% 5.9% 0%27.1%| 4.3% 12.3% 3.3% 0% 19.9%| 7.3% 124% 3.4% 0% 23.0% -
Lights| O 7663 2824 0 10487 5 7380 2057 1 9443| 1504 4327 1121 0 6952 2551 4363 1169 O 8083) 34965
9% Lights 0% 97.8% 98.9% 0% 98.1% [100% 97.9% 98.0% 100% 97.9%{98.8% 98.7% 94.7% 0% 98.0%|98.5% 98.6% 97.5% 0% 98.4%1 98.1%
Articulated Trucks| 0 15 00 15 0 26 0 0 26 3 6 3 0 12 2 4 3 0 9 62
9% Articulated Trucks [0% 0.2% 0% 0% 0.1%| 0% 0.3% 0% 0% 03%] 02% 0.1% 03% 0% 0.2%| 0.1% 0.1% 0.3% 0% 0.1%| 0.2%
Buses and Single-Unit Trucks | 0 158 31 0 189 0. 135 41 0 176 16 53 60 0 129 36 56 27 0 119 613
% Buses and Single-Unit Trucks [0% 2.0% 1.1% 0% 1.8%| 0% 1.8% 2.0% 0% 18%]| 1.1% 1.2% 51%0% 1.8%| 1.4% 1.3% 2.3% 0% 1.4%| 1.7%

*L: Left, R: Right, T: Thru, U: U-Turn

3of 10



May 18, 2022

City of Kentwood
4900 Breton Ave SE
Kentwood, MI 49508

Subject: Site Plan Review
Applicant: Kum & Go, LLC.
INTRODUCTION

Kum & Go, L.C. (The developer) has an option to purchase a +/-2.52-acre property at the southwest corner
of 52nd Street SE and Kalamazoo Avenue. The developer proposes to construct a convenience store with
vehicle fueling to include alcohol sales and 24-hour operations. The parcels are within a Commercial Planned
Unit Development (CPUD) that is further described in a PUD Statement memo dated February 6, 2003. The
following is a written description to be included as part of the supporting application materials for the
development including commentary on standards outlined in the PUD memo.

NATURE OF PROPOSED USE

The proposed development will include the sale of typical package convenience store items, preparation
and sale of food, and alcohol sales. Exterior sales may include ice, propane, firewood, packaged water,
road salt, and other similar items typical of exterior sales at a convenience store with vehicle fueling. The
vehicle fueling is proposed with six fuel dispensers that can accommodate up to twelve vehicles. The
development is proposed to have 24 hours of operations. Up to five employees may occupy the facility.
Vehicular traffic will consist of typical passenger traffic with corresponding peaks during morning, lunch,
and afternoon commutes.

SITE AND BUILDING LAYOUT

The proposed development sites the convenience store building on the western-central portion of the
property. Six fuel dispensers under a canopy will be centrally located to the east of the building. Parking is
located to the north and east of the building. Driveway entrances are proposed along 52nd Street SE and
Kalamazoo Avenue.

The proposed floor plan includes food preparation and sales, a seating area, and retail area for typical
convenience store items in the front of the building. Storage areas are located in the rear of the building.

Landscaped areas are proposed along each of the street frontages and along property boundaries abutting
residential zoning. The dumpster area will be screened in accordance with applicable ordinances. Six foot
vertical screening wall or fence is proposed along the property boundaries adjacent to residential zoning.

12745 23 Mile Road, Suite 200, Shelby Township, Ml 48315  Tel: 586.786.9800
www.atwell-group.com



Page 2

Adjacent property uses include a gasoline dispensing station to the north and residential use to the
northwest, beyond 52nd Street SE, vacant land, and a medical office to the east, beyond Kalamazoo
Avenue, and residential use to the south and west.

SITE PLANS, BUILDING ELEVATIONS AND FLOOR PLAN

Please refer to the enclosed site plan set. This set contains all the information required per the City site
plan review information requestions within the zoning ordinance (Section 14.04).

CPUD STANDARDS

The following provides a summary and responses to the items outlined in the February 6, 2003 PUD
Statement for the Southwest Corner of 52nd Street and Kalamazoo Avenue from Lisa Golder, Economic
Development Planner to the Kentwood Planning Commission.

Standard #1. Compliance with the Master Plan.

Master Plan recommends commercial and office use for the site. The proposed CPUD zoning permits uses
in both the C-4 Office Zones as well as the C-2 Community Commercial zone. The Master Plan also
recommends neighborhood commercial uses that are walkable for the surrounding residences.

The zoning ordinance for Commercial PUD further states that any “permitted use” within C-2 and
C-4 districts and customary accessory uses as permitted in the C-2 or C-4 districts are permitted
uses within a CPUD. Further, uses permitted by Special Land Use in the C-2 and C-4 districts may
be permitted when all applicable standards as cited in Chapter 15 are met. The proposed
convenience store is a permitted use under C-2 and vehicle fuel stations are permitted under C-2
with a Special Land Use determination. The site plan layout is designed for pedestrian access from
each of the street frontages.

Standard #2. Use Restrictions.

It is the intent of the City of Kentwood to exercise flexibility in the review and analysis of any proposed use
of the property. The uses proposed for the CPUD should be permitted or Special Land Uses that are mid
to low traffic generators that do not create high traffic volumes during peak hours for the road system (7:00-
8:30 AM and 4:00-6:00 PM). The City will require a traffic analysis to determine the impact of the use on
the surrounding road system, to evaluate traffic flow, and to determine the changes to the intersection that
may be required to accommodate the use.

The proposed use is anticipated to support, but not significantly increase, existing traffic patterns.
As noted in the Traffic Impact Study, a majority of the traffic that will visit the property will be
generated by “pass-by” trips that do not add new traffic to the area. A review of proposed site
conditions and existing road and intersection conditions indicated that no modifications are
required to maintain the existing acceptable operation.

Standard #3. Site Requirements.

All three parcels must be combined into one parcel under a single ownership. The westerly portion of the
southernmost parcel shall be split and combined with the small residential lot on Newcastle to create a
usable residential lot on that street.

The parcels will be split and combined as required and depicted on the site plans. The lot
split/combination is to be conducted concurrently with the site plan submittal.

12745 23 Mile Road, Suite 200, Shelby Township, Ml 48315 Tel: 586.786.9800
www.atwell-group.com



Page 3

Standard #4. Driveways.

All existing driveway on Kalamazoo and 52nd Street will be removed. One driveway will be permitted on
Kalamazoo and one driveway will be permitted on 52nd Street. The driveway on 52nd Street shall be
located on the westernmost side of the development and is anticipated to allow both left and right turns in
and out of the driveway. The driveway on Kalamazoo shall either align with the driveway to the east, of
shall be located further south than the driveway to the east. A traffic impact analysis will be required in
accordance with Section 13.02 of the Kentwood Zoning Ordinance to evaluate traffic flow and final driveway
location/alignment.

The proposed layout follows the requirements to remove all existing driveways and place driveways
as described at the westernmost area along 52nd Street and the southeastern portion along
Kalamazoo. As described in the Traffic Impact Study, a review of proposed site conditions including
driveway locations, and existing road and intersection conditions, indicated that no modifications
are required to maintain the existing acceptable operation.

Standard #5. Architectural Features.

Building roof elevation shall be in a low profile residential style with peaked roof or another roof style
approved by the Planning and City Commissions. The buildings shall not overpower the residential uses to
the south and west. The building shall be primarily of brick on all sides, with architectural features that
create interest and break up large expanses of wall area.

The proposed building height is consistent with a single-story commercial building with a top of
parapet height of 18 feet with architectural features at the entrance extending to 21’ and a feature
wall up to a height of 22’-8”. The proposed features and windows break up large expanses of wall
area. Refer to the included color elevation in the site plan for additional information

Standard #6. Site Design.

The building(s) shall be designed to avoid the appearance of overcrowding on the site and the adjoining
homes. At least 25% green space shall be provided on the site, but less green space will be considered if
other site amenities area provided. The main building shall be limited to approximately 11,000 square feet
in area, with an additional 6,000 square foot office building permitted along the south side of the site. The
Police and Fire Departments must review and approve the building location for the safety and security of
the building occupants and area residents.

The building must be residential in scale and design. Parking shall be held to a minimum for the planned
and potential uses; deferred parking shall be encouraged as long as it can be shown that the deferred
parking can be provided at a later date on site needed without impacting the total required green space.
Servicing/loading within the buildings shall occur between the hours of 9:00 AM to 3:00 PM. Circulation
around the site shall ensure separation of pedestrian and service vehicles, and shall provide easy access
to sidewalks on Kalamazoo Avenue and 52nd Street. The site will allow for bicycle access and parking.
Service traffic shall be kept as far away from residential uses as possible.

The proposed development requested an extension of the servicing/loading hours to 8:00 AM to
8:00 PM based on the additional landscape buffering and screening to be installed.

Sidewalks shall be constructed on the subject property outside the public right-of-way and public easements
will be provided to allow public access to the sidewalks.

The proposed 5,620 square foot building is centrally located with landscaping around the perimeter.
At least 25% of green space is provided with the proposed layout. The proposed building is

12745 23 Mile Road, Suite 200, Shelby Township, Ml 48315 Tel: 586.786.9800
www.atwell-group.com



Page 4

consistent in size and scale for a single-story commercial building and is further depicted in the
included building elevations. Sidewalks provided access from 52nd Street SE and Kalamazoo to the
proposed building with designated crosswalks when crossing internal driving lanes. A bicycle rack
is provided near the proposed building.

Standard #7: Hours of Operations.

The hours of operation for the businesses within the PUD shall be limited time that are compatible with
residential uses, from approximately 7:00 AM to 10:00 PM.

The proposed development requests approval 24 hours of operation. The proposed layout includes
landscape and wall or fence screening along the property boundaries that about residential use.
Proposed lighting will include shielding and placement to control light intrusion to adjacent
residential properties.

Standard #8: Lighting Standards.

The site lighting shall be in compliance with Chapter 20 of the Kentwood Zoning Ordinance. After the
businesses are closed daily, the lighting for the site shall be reduced to serve for security purposes only.
The proposed site design shall comply with the requirements of the Kentwood Zoning Ordinance.
Should 24 hour operation be approved, lighting design will include consideration for control of light
intrusion to adjacent properties.

Standard #9: Landscaping/Parking

Landscaping shall be designed to provide a pleasing, permanent look for this corner. Parking shall be
limited in the front setback area along the 52nd and Kalamazoo rights of way. Parking shall be screened
by landscaping and berming. The landscaping shall be low enough to provide visibility from the street for
both customers and employees. Landscaping shall meet or exceed Zoning Ordinance standards along the
western and southern property lines. Landscaping shall be maintained at all times, including replacement
of dead and damaged plants and regular to maintain proper plant heights.

The proposed landscaping adheres to the requirements of this section and comply with buffer
requirements for commercial properties. Refer to the included landscape plan and details for
additional information.

Standard #10: Adjacent uses.

The site shall be designed with the clear intention that commercial uses will not be extended further south
and west of the parcel.

The proposed layout includes perimeter landscaping and screening along with curb surround the
developed area in a manner with a clear intention the site will not be extended further than
proposed.

12745 23 Mile Road, Suite 200, Shelby Township, Ml 48315 Tel: 586.786.9800
www.atwell-group.com



PROJECT TEAM:
DEVELOPER BUILDING GAS
KUM & GO KENTWOOD DTE

1459 GRAND AVE.

DES MOINES, IA 50309
CONTACT: RYAN HALDER
PHONE: 515-457-6232

EMAIL: ryan.halder@kumandgo.com

ARCHITECT

BRR ARCHITECTURE, INC.

8131 METCALF AVE., SUITE 300
OVERLAND PARK, KS 66204
PHONE: (913) 262-9095

CIVIL ENGINEER

ATWELL, LLC
12745 23 MILE ROAD, SUITE 200
SHELBY TOWNSHIP, Ml 48315

CONTACT: MICHAEL McPHERSON

PHONE: (586) 786-9800
EMAIL: mmcpherson@atwell-group.com
PLANNING

KENTWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION

4900 BRETON AVE SE
KENTWOOQOD, MI 49508
CONTACT: TERRY SCHWEITZER

4900 BRETON AVE SE
KENTWOOD, MI 49508
CONTACT: TERRY SCHWEITZER
PHONE: 616-554-0710
schweitt@kentwood.us

WATER

CITY OF WYOMING PUBLIC WORKS
2660 BURLINGAME AVE SW
WYOMING, MI 49509

CONTACT: KARI MINKUS

PHONE: 616-530-7260

EMAIL: minkusk@wyomingmi.gov

STORMWATER

CITY OF KENTWOOD

1300 MARKET AVE SW

GRAND RAPIDS, MI 49503
CONTACT: JIM KIRKWOOD, P.E.
PHONE: 616-554-0739

EMAIL: kirkwoodj@kentwood.us

ACCESS & ROAD

KENTWOOD PUBLIC WORKS
5068 BRETON RD SE
GRAND RAPIDS, M| 49508
CONTACT: CHAD GRIFFIN

4100 DOERR ROAD

CASS CITY, M| 48726

CONTACT: LISA GREMEL

PHONE: 989-670-4460

EMAIL: lisa.gremel@dteenergy.com

ELECTRIC

CONSUMERS ELECTRIC
CONTACT: TANYA GILROY
PHONE: 616-251-0574
EMAIL: tanya.gilroy@cmsenergy.com

SIGNAGE

CITY OF KENTWOOD

1300 MARKET AVE SW

GRAND RAPIDS, MI 49503
CONTACT: JIM KIRKWOOD, P.E.
PHONE: 616-554-0739

EMAIL: kirkwoodj@kentwood.us

WHERE MEANS MORE!

PRELIM. SITE PLAN DRAWINGS

K&G STORE #2614

5215 KALAMAZOO AVE SE
KENTWOOD, MICHIGAN 49508

Sheet List Table

REV [ Number

01

Sheet Title
COVER

02

LAYOUT PLAN

03

ALTA SURVEY

04

ALTA SURVEY

05

DEMOLITION PLAN

06

PRELIMNARY GRADING PLAN

07

PRELIMNARY UTILITY PLAN

08

PRELIMINARY LANDSCAPE PLAN

09

L ANDSCAPE DETAILS

10

PHOTOMETRIC PLAN

11

SIGN DETAILS

12

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

13

TRASH ENCLOSURE ELEVATIONS

14

CANOPY ELEVATIONS

PHONE: 616-554-0710

. : PHONE: 616-554-0825
EMAIL: schweitt@kentwood.us EMAIL: griffinc@kentwood.us
BENCHMARKS
BENCHMARK #1:

THE NORTHWEST FLANGE ON THE FIRE HYDRANT LOCATED ON THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF

THE PARCEL. WEST SIDE OF KALAMAZOO AVENUE.

ELEVATION = 742.34' (NAVD88)

BENCHMARK #2:

THE X LOCATED ON THE NORTHEAST BOLT OF THE LIGHTPOST BASE (NO LIGHTPOST
CURRENTLY ATTACHED). LOCATED JUST SOUTH OF THE SWC OF KALAMAZOO AVE AND 52ND

ST.
ELEVATION = 740.27' (NAVD88)

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

LAND IN THE CITY OF KENTWOOD, KENT COUNTY, MIl, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

PLEASE SEE PAGES 3 (ALTA SURVEY) FOR LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS OF ALL FOUR PARCELS THAT
CONSTITUTE THE PROPOSED SITE.

FLOOD ZONE:

PROPOSED LOCATION DOES NOT LIE WITHIN A FLOODPLAIN (AREA NOT MAPPED).

WETLANDS

NO WETLANDS IDENTIFIED ON THE SITE.

SITE BENCHMARKS

BENCHMARK' #1:
NORTHWEST FLANGE BOLT ON FIRE HYDRANT
ELEVATION: 742.34 (NAVD88)

BENCHMARK' #2:

"X” ON NORTHEAST BOLT ON CONCRETE
LIGHT POLE BASE, NO POLE ON BASE
ELEVATION: 740.27 (NAVD88)

N

(0] 15’ 30

" "

SCALE: 1°=30’

SITE DATA

STORE TYPE MARKET

CANOPY / DISPENSER ARRANGEMENT

6 DISPENSERS (SINGLE)

CONVENIENCE STORE WITH

TYPE OF USE FUEL

HEIGHT TOP OF BLADE WALL 22'-8"

BUILDING 18'-0"

CANOPY 21'-10" (MIN.)

GROSS FLOOR AREA 5,620 S.F.

GROSS CANOPY AREA 3,936 S.F.

+109,760 S.F.

GROSS LOT AREA +2.519 ACRES

+96,660 S.F.

KUM & GO PARCEL +2.219 ACRES

13,100 S.F.

EXCEPTED PARCEL +0.30 ACRES

FAR (INCLUDING CANOPY) N/A

BUILDING COVERAGE 5,620 S.F. (5.12%)

LANDSCAPE COVERAGE 53,190 S.F. (48.5%)

PARKING/DRIVE/SIDEWALK COVERAGE

50,950 S.F. (46.4%)

BICYCLE PARKING 2 SPACES

REQUIRED PARKING

STANDARD 23
ADA 1

TOTAL 24
PARKING RATIO =1 CAR/250 S.F.

PROVIDED PARKING

STANDARD 24

ADA 2

TOTAL 26
PARKING RATIO =1.16 CARS/250 S.F.

ZONING INFORMATION

ZONE

MARWOOD DR SE
SITE
BRIDLE CREEK ST SE
52ND ST SE 52ND ST SE
L
(7]
oc
a)
L
: V//
0 Z
Z
%
O
Q
<
>
<
|
<
Y
HARDWICK DR SE
VICINITY MAP

NOT TO SCALE

MINIMUM LOT AREA

MINIMUM LOT WIDTH (FEET)

SITE AREA PER UNIT (SQUARE FEET)

FRONT YARD SETBACK (FEET) (NORTH)

FRONT YARD SETBACK (FEET) (EAST)

FRONT YARD SETBACK (FEET) (WEST)

REAR YARD SETBACK (FEET) (NORTH)

MAXIMUM HEIGHT (FEET)

MAXIMUM BUILDING COVERAGE

MAXIMUM IMPERVIOUS COVERAGE

MAXIMUM FLOOR AREA

Know what's below.
Call before you dig.

CALL 811 SEVENTY-TWO HOURS PRIOR TO
DIGGING, GRADING OR EXCAVATING FOR THE
MARKING OF UNDERGROUND MEMBER UTILITIES.

CONFIDENTIAL DOCUMENT:

INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS DOCUMENT IS
PROPRIETARY TO KUM & GO, L.C. AND SHALL NOT
BE DISTRIBUTED.

JOB # 22000815

(586) 786—9800

12745 23 MILE ROAD, SUITE 200
SHELBY TOWNSHIP, MI 48315

866.850.4200 www.atwell-group.com

DRAWN BY: JA

©

P.M.: MMc

1459 Grand Ave
Des Moines, |IA 50309
P: 888-458-6646

2614 - KENTWOOD, M|
SWC OF 52ND ST SE & KALAMAZOO AVE SE
COVER

KG PROJECT TEAM:
RDM: DAVE LEMONS
SDM: RYAN HALDER

CPM: SCOTT NEWBURY

REVISION DESCRIPTION

REVISIONS

DATE

<

DATE:

05-19-2022

SHEET NUMBER:

01
01 OF 14

CAD FILE: K:\22000815\DWG\PLAN SETS\SITE—PRELIMINARY\22000815-01-C



LEGEND .
J 4
- —_— VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT OF WAY I g ©
PROPERTY LINE ﬂ * ’ PAVEMENT MARKINGS VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT OF WAY g §u,—) %
PROPOSED CURB & GUTTER — 2B S
= 5
EXISTING CURB & GUTTER X m g os8 S
STOP BAR & SIGN oup O (.p. = i ST
Nt @x v m
CONCRETE SIDEWALK S % WE Q
Q 20
CONC o < =F 0
¥ PROPOSED SIGN I . O U.P. / / P S nxe -
< CONCRETE - iy 1\ B — - oo =
A [ o] CONC WALK £ * S Y5 5
I — ] n o
@ ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACE — — < ® 2
CONCRETE ROLLOVER CURB N~ © s
[e3 <
[ @
()]
# EX / PR LIGHT POLE - - —_— @@ NORTH LINE OF SECTION 32
COLORED CONCRETE — - \
E— - @ 0= 3]
_ _ =
EXISTING UTILITY POLE - - ~ s
OVERHEAD ELECTRIC 52ND STREET — =
(VARIABLE WIDTH SE \r‘ < gEC%%TINEE —
PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY) VARIABLE WIDTH_RIGHT OF
. (SPEED _LIMIT: 35 MPH) CONCRETE || WAY PR poc Tol, RITIW awTmi,
OUTHERLY RIGHT oF way || 20070504—0047900 & (FND REMON) (e OF Micy, 7,
DOC. 20070629—0066419 4\%,\?\..'.......,.{@44:},,’
" .'. [
ﬁ VARIABLE WIDTH GRADING
VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT OF WAY — ‘ : I EASEMENT 0
D o[ T T — — — ¢ EASEMENT ™ o\
N 0
LOT 1 : | O Ui
E;(gsUTISr\IEG ” / =S O U.P.
ZOND R1—¢ |V = . T TTm———__ 2
] 5l -8 R [
< — |
.D_Dl 16 e T S
VARIABLE WIDTH GRADING : L) 8 9 9 | 1 | <
EASEMENT : | | | |
H; 5 7| ta) ] | | | O
25 | ®|® | HE
| ezp | 1SRN f@@i <! |
_ — oup > = %% | | | T Eﬂl |
o E i | ——— | o J
E s NS Y % o, 3| | B
Z 1 S
= I8k I I | &
T —. 1°© O = O | | l
© NI | ; @ ® B © e
E x LOT 2 HII EIRIN ] 4 iy 1 | l
6% P : | 1§ %“’. S S SN — 1 - 1 |
> % | | 5
a _ a | bt
ﬁ'ﬂ ZONED R1-C 2 H | *| = (}’r | | =
(]
S g 7 | & wEeY | | =
o S 2 b s i 2 T NN | 3
N o i | 53 i o A — | L
2 HoOE: - = T —
7 — | | R] 22 : = 1 | 1459 Grand Ave
_ G ’ | 3| @—H I 35 s Des Moines, IA 50309
' 3 | | % ' % e | 7 ’
< I3 | | gd S A ONE av 111 o P: 888-458-6646
=) S N‘é | ] 13 |
1 | | L Ll
o LOT 3 | : 12 ' NS TN | @\D o 5 (@p)
(@) >
O ] 8T N O [ O z >
T ZONED R1-C /Q I : s N %% : = = g
. O L
j PROPOSED & VERTICAL —/| T { l103.0 _ [10" GRADING — 5 ° <C
EXISTING SCREENING FENCE (SEE - e ——— S = \ L |\ EASEMENT T —e
CONC _ HOUSE DETAIL THIS SHEET) I * X | . %m. | 'T ® ~ E S
« . - 5 M L
S o | . . e | % " > >
NOTES: T - © I | l 63.0' | @ : IIKE; 25 LEle, | R 5 8= =N
FENCE DETAIL DETAIL oo s s e - s*r& : <5 | ! [ = 22 | N () g s -
2. COLOR SHALL BE BLACK. & 50 f —_— — — |_L _________ : - = %< O 2
NOT TO SCALE - —| ©ouAj ] — — -é 7/ I 2 U=
] 4 L NOR%EET NORTH B79" OF TH | ~ TN N N e = T — g <C
o © _u APT| 1/4 OF |SECTION 3 ™ o) NO) 2 | S | Sy - ; § —
SITE DATA © = OUTLOT A o Eoa \ | (As MPNUMENTED) ) = \ I 2 . & &
S = m ONE S (1) b 'fﬁI? B S I o
STORE TYPE MARKET ° a v =z EXCEPTED | H; I & z J1ost] B = < | W D
pens RESIDENTIAL | | | * = O) g1 NI 8K | N g LU S
CANOPY / DISPENSER ARRANGEMENT 6 DISPENSERS (SINGLE) Do Wz PORTION | | | 5 @-\ * 35 J IREIAREIRE S N LLl o»» =
Loy = | | ” 4 N CHUCIRCIRICINIC 5 18)) TIE \¢ |— —
CONVENIENCE STORE WITH FoQw | g Ol=
TYPE OF USE FUEL 822 |0 I | 3 v [ [/ xS y D
O w rROwW oF 6"~10~ ‘1 0y e _ T | 21 <o¥
BUILDING 18'-0" W E N CEDAR TREES | : ———————— T \ [ /7 /| | 8 Bl § E < 0
=E2u = - — = e ol = o
HEIGHT TOP OF BLADE WALL 22'-8" “3S8 lé | aF M @/ | | '\ == = ~— %
- L = O
CANOPY 21'-10" (MIN.) e g | 'L | | | ek S g LO
_______ =
GROSS FLOOR AREA 5,620 S.F. ] | e e [ : : M |__ E_)
_________________ [aa] O
GROSS CANOPY AREA 3,936 S.F. E ‘ | | — 4 —- é = O
[J— o <t &
£109,760 S.F. L L —~— | 5] | | S
GROSS LOT AREA ’ . Z
12.95612 éAE)CSRII:ES . \ 0% l ————— —{ 11— ‘HEI\D— : = ;
190, .F. | ] | O]
KUM & GO PARCEL +2 219 ACRES <;( §gg,TH LINE OF THE NORTH ! PROPOSED 6’ VERTICAL TUNAAANANL - —
+13 100 SF. g : OF THE NORTHEAST / SCREENING FENCE (SEE EXISTING SHED KG PROJECT TEAM:
EXCEPTED PARCEL ) > /4 OF SECTION 32 DETAIL THIS SHEET) HT.. 7.0'+ | RDM: DAVE LEMONS
+0.30 ACRES S o 4 (AS MONUMENTED) ——e-
FAR (INCLUDING CANOPY) N/A l CONC . SDM: RYAN HALDER
1= CPM: SCOTT NEWBURY
BUILDING COVERAGE 5,620 S.F. (5.12%) ZONED Ri—C I LOT 22 / & 3
=
LANDSCAPE COVERAGE 53,190 S.F. (48.5%) O U.P. /I / =
- — ZONED R2 5
PARKING/DRIVE/SIDEWALK COVERAGE 50,950 S.F. (46.4%) = S
- — 45’ CONSUMERS ><
BICYCLE PARKING 2 SPACES - — / ROW EXISTING ~
STANDARD 23 — = / HOUSE “ Q
< ou e
ADA 1 g 90U o o
REQUIRED PARKING TOTAL o4 L % § >
= —o© a O
PARKING RATIO =1 CAR/250 S.F. 50' RELEASE OF RIGHT OF > % -
STANDARD 24 WAY PER L.713, PG.484 %) @
S =
ADA 2 NOTES FLAG NOTES ! 2 Ly
PROVIDED PARKING 4
TOTAL 26 o
- 1. REFER TO THE ALTA/ACSM LAND TITLE SURVEY FOR ADDITIONAL EXISTING FEATURES AND PROPERTY
PARKING RATIO = 1.16 CARS/250 S.F. BOUNDARY INFORMATION. (1) PROPOSED 40' FLAGPOLE PAINT CURB YELLOW ALONG FRONT OF TANKS ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACE WITH BOLLARD MOUNTED ADA SIGN w
2. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE TO EDGE OF BUILDING, FACE OF CURB, OR EDGE OF PAVEMENT, UNLESS OTHERWISE © PROPOSED 25’ MONUMENT SIGN @ PROPANE CAGE P AD—MOUNTED TRANSFORMER '<DT:
NOTED.
SITE BENCHMARKS § 3. REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL / FOUNDATION PLANS FOR BUILDING DIMENSIONS. @ 14'—8" X 24'-8" TRASH ENCLOSURE WITH NICHIHA ® ICE MERCHANDISE @ STOP SIGN
4. ALL RADIl ARE 5 UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. ALL RADII ARE DIMENSIONED FROM BACK OF CURB. O PROPOSED SITE SIDEWALK @ FIREWOOD @ UNDERGROUND FUEL STORAGE TANKS <
ﬁgﬁ?ﬂ%@g F#|_1 /; GE BOLT ON FIRE HYDRANT 5. A SEPARATE SIGN APPLICATION TO THE CITY OF KENTWOOD IS REQUIRED FOR ALL SIGNS. ©) PROPOSED INTEGRAL CURB MISC. MERCHANDISE @ DESIGNATED FUTURE EV STALLS ——
ELEVATION: 742.34 (NAVD88) @ PROPOSED ZERO CURB WITH BOLLARDS @ REDBOXE(S) ROLL OVER CURB 05-19-2022
BENCHMARK #2: 0 15 30 @ PROPOSED LOADING ZONE PROPOSED CROSSWALK @ STANDALONE VENT RACK SHEET NUMBER
"X” ON NORTHE-AST BOLT ON CONCRETE ﬁ PROPOSED BIKE RACK — WAVE STYLE @ PROPOSED AIR MACHINE ON 4’X4’ PAD 02
LIGHT POLE BASE, NO POLE ON BASE
, PROPOSED CONCRETE PAVEMENT PROPOSED ADA RAMP
ELEVATION: 740.27 (NAVD88) ®© 02 OF 14

CAD FILE: K:\22000815\DWG\PLAN SETS\SITE—PRELIMINARY\22000815—02-L



1:\22000815

40TH ST SE

A
AVE SW

[SITEl \

|

\N 68TH ST SE

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

RESPONSE: EASEMENTS AS SHOWN HEREON.

ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEY

frin, \

¢

NORTH LINE OF SECTION 324

%

SITE BENCHMARKS

248.447.2000

e e A b | Vi

N

&

©F
xF
OFIR
OFCIR
OFIP
OSCIR

SECTION CORNER

FOUND MONUMENT
FOUND MAG NAIL

FOUND IRON ROD

FOUND CAPPED IRON ROD
FOUND IRON PIPE

SET CAPPED IRON ROD

BOUNDARY LINE

p.com

P.M.: CPK

03
03 OF 14

CAD FIL




IMPROVEMEN |
SURVEY.

[SITEl \

ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEY

SITE BENCHMARKS

AN | ¢

04
04 OF 14




J ;
Q
60678 a
VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT OF WAY SANITARY RIM 738.53 38, ©
VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT OF WAY 40573 E. 8 INV. 729.90x J o5 §
HYDRANT F.G. 733.80 N. 8" INV. 728.29x L E® 8
2 N
LEGEND | o | x 60493 m 2 353 N
[ve)
CUT, CAP & ABANDON UTILITY A < VALVE RIM 738.48 £ 5.3 "
: P. 60683 3 2o 3
—_ - TY LINE SERVICES AT PROPERTY LINE. 60677 . O OT ©
—_— PROPER CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE WITH SANITARY RIM 737.77 g@ofg,, FT‘NMV 773352;“ o2R S
STORM SEWER C-P— OHE\OHE\OHE o UTILITY SERVICE PROVIDERS (TYP.) W. 8" PVC INV. 728.37 / % N. 12”7 INV. 734 05s 3'9%\
OME ' "INV, 734, S =
SANITARY SEWER CONC ‘ \/%@%\OHE OHE 2\ one L ?/,OHE/ E. 157 INV. 1572175* S RE «
® T < \ 1] { — e O | P ¥ Q% -
- = VALVE RIM 738.18 ..
WATERMAIN \QHW\Q”W\ » . FO T e e— 0} FL ~FQ CONC WALK ‘ ”—F*— FOI/ = OHE — B — 8 RU) >
12"W ———— 1"y 12°W 12°W 127w 27w 12" .i. — W 5 20 ot —— y 12w ¥ 12"W 112"W 12"W 12w @ @
UNDERGROUND DATA/TELE ! = =+ > \SE — — | . g z
zD s"EEI (@] [+3] <
GAS STORM RIM ?Ségﬁ < (VARIABLE WIDTH PUBLIC RIGHT OF Y) = &
. ) (SPEED LIMIT: 35 MPH) APPROXIMATE COCATION OF 0
. NORTH LINE gF SECTION 32 GPR ANOMALIES PER z 60675
ASPHALT TO BE REMOVED - — - Q\ﬁ« BLOODHOUNDINEORMATION = A STORM RIM 738.38 =
40492 — 4 — g ¥ T g = — T e W. 15" INV. 735.83« =
— =3 4 - . _ > » ..
BUILDING TO BE REMOVED SANITARY RIM 728.12 —_——7 4 T | ’ S. 12" INV. 735.93« :
S. 8" CLAY INV. 718.97 | COORDINATE UTILITY < =S — T I —=—< ¥ u < EQCORNER =L E. 12" INV. 735.93x =
E. 8" CLAY INV. 719.12 | POLE & TRANSFORMER- e . CARABLE WTT micer o | 9 | SedToN S 4
-5 e ON : H o T6N, R11W o
CONCRETE TO BE REMOVED W. 87 CLAY INV. 718.87 A ey Dk T | CONCRETE | WAY PER DOC. 1 (FND REMON) & g,
26 e — ) —— SOUT] , 20070504—0047900 & - Wec OF Micy,, 4,
476 476G 46— 47 S —— S \Hm RIGMT OF WAY |IN ~ DOC. 20070629—-0066419 \\\'\&?‘5?'..--"--.?’@4 %
TREE LINE / BRUSH TO BE REMOVED -— 2 == . _ - | . ( | Aoy -
OO >< ITEM(S) TO BE REMOVED - — — F ¥ > ; S === g . =
F— _— — — Q4T ; 8°G 8¢ — 8"G \8”@0
—-—e e e CORNER FALLS IN UTILITY POLE ot u‘ \
PROP. LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE FIBER OPTIC RIM 73590 ;“ VARIBLE WD ORADING
A ' “ EASEMENT G — 60666
0N VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT OF WAY —{ | | N OHE OHE y STORM RIM 738.04
GRAVEL PATH TO BE REMOVED i 0 © | e N — SIGNAL
0 % - = - CA o=t G CONTROL
— C
~ b Ul q BOX
i LOT 1 / \\\\O#
L T P. TELEPHONE RIM 739.01
RANDY D. GUMBERT EXISTING i >~ Mairuminous G O bs SHED | & ™ |
PIN: 41-18-32—229-001 HOUSE oy o ‘\‘ HT. 8.0 — ~_ \\F
~ ELT s \ 480+ W Bl o
P<HORCH T | M/\- | T |™— 60466
Yo\ L,:':,,_,__‘_-j._._. o) ‘\“ —\‘ / 4&1 4 )"é;’% %sg/ — REMOVE, CUT, AND CAP © STORM RIM 739.22
NOTES VARIABLE WIDTH GRADING EXISTIN 5 | = UTILITY SERVICES (TYP.) T/WATER 733.92
I EASEMENT _ WOoD. 4 A : RECESSED PIPES—COULD NOT OPEN
1. ANY ITEM NOT INDICATED AS BEING REMOVED SHALL REMAIN. l 50 HT.: 17,22 —~ 0T 28880, : NE 12" INV. 736.30s
2. FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REFERENCE THE STANDARD NOTES SHEET, A S5 . ' 2 ! SE 6" INV. 73793
STANDARD DETAILS SHEET(S), AND ANY MUNICIPALITY AND/OR JURISDICTIONAL W™ OO / = 2 N
DETAILS ATTACHED TO THIS PLAN SET. ¥ e :g z o e o ‘ e ; oo
”» ” ] - < &) QO Ll |: REMO 9 ) I i \ X \
3. CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL "MISS DIG” AT LEAST THREE (3) WORKING DAYS g o CEQ UTILITY SERVICES (TYP.) . & \ APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF
PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION /DEMOLITION. 6& z ., n EXISTING WOOD GARAGE = L UNDERGROUND FIBER LINE PER
Suu X g N o ACD MAP RECEIVED 02/11/2022
4. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE ALL UTILITY REMOVAL AND ABANDONMENT I N -S5 394 SQFT.4 g : |
ACTIVITIES WITH LOCAL GOVERNING AGENCY OR UTILITY COMPANY PRIOR TO 2. 5 RS i
STARTING DEMOLITION TO INSURE COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNING AGENCY AND % @ LOT 2 =M - REMOVE ALL CURBING, BOLLARDS, LIGHT — — ] ZK\APPROX‘MME LOCATION OF
UTILITY COMPANY REMOVAL AND ABANDONMENT STANDARDS. SN “ LEP\llLll) 821M,16\8RTH32 cé QCAM(I;OS P POLES, CONCRETE BLOCKS, AND SIGNS SOSTIE | G | = GPR ANOMALIES PER
5. CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBLE FOR COORDINATING UTILITY TERMINATIONS & 0§ ¢ 41718-32-229-002 0 WITH'SNIEHgsLI(’)A’II'LSER%SEISNTgsE%ANCE BRICK BUILDING I i BLOODHOUND INFORMATION
OBTAINING DEMOLITION PERMIT FROM THE CITY OF PORTAGE PRIOR TO E"J 2 HT.. 20.0'+ & \‘R_\%
BEGINNING CONSTRUCTION. - % ; 1,575 SQ.FT.+ P 1S UNKNOWN UTILITY LINE PER
6. CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY AND ADHERE TO, AS APPLICABLE, ANY % A . B b 5 BLOODHOUND INFORMATION
REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO INTERACTING WITH OR MANAGING ENVIRONMENTAL o) 3 o 2 _J EXISTINGJ ) T — 60295
N— /—
CONTAMINATION THAT MAY COINCIDE WITH DEMOLITION ACTIVITIES. H = 18.0'X20.5’ REMOVE EXISTING LIGHT 2 ! w W @ HYDRANT F.G. 741.96 1459 Grand Ave
0 2 REMOVE EXISTING CARPORT POLE (TYP.) s : Des Moines, IA 50309
N A @) TREES (TYP.) HT.: 10.0'+ VALVE RIM ;31. 1w_/ b L L P: 888-458-6646
_ ; S ;
pltl W—d < ) BUILDING AND ALL ABOVE AND BELOW S k.l ¢F o5
S0 o geriet i 1, S : L
e A LOT 3 FOOTINGS, FOUND : : o <l o |
omd BRANDON J. & MEAGAN C. FRIERSON "« WALLS, CANOPIES, Po?qucs:k f%ﬁ?ﬂﬁéﬁ?& Ex'snwogboggé% Z| m > 3 LLl
Sz 1 PIN: 41-18-32-229-003 ' ' FENCING, AND MECHA : HT.: 8.5+ & " =
Lo
B “ , ' ~ ‘ ALL UTILUTY METERS TO BE REMOVED PER 64 SQ.FT z o) =
2 G G OOD UTILITY COMPANY STANDARDS. 2 —
~ EXISTING ‘ 06 ER FIELD LOCATE EXISTING UTILITY AND ,}/ = N : 2 (@)
o CONC _ HOUSE a 4{» SERICE_LEADS. CUT AND CAP SERVICE > "y @)
o= ~ "»" LEADS TO BE ABANDONED. o & z< -~
. : Lo : @ PNIND, S i 28I Q<
_\
= s i — ——
@ s & — - B 'l(‘?‘ / & % o \\ O <1 <ZE
— — o4& NORTH GNE OF THE SOUTH 100'—/> =1 olv.p __J Lﬁ'§ i O —1 —
=a oD OF JRIE NORTH 379’ OF THE / Suw o o
2 o 5 . NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 32 y 53 3 =
] © - TO __ MONUM - <
2 = OUTLOT A Sey B T ST R D S = i 8 = o3 =
5 q 05 FRAME GARAGE 5 < = =
S = ?z-E o SRS m = ] i — =z —
40374 © A T="7 HT.: 15.0'% 1,788<SQET.£ 15204 SQFT S e | L S i LLI —
SANITARY RIM 731.41 : WG s ¢ : AN G\O‘—V‘(——— a— 1 LL] on o
N. 8" INV. 721.31x A : SEFD2 = =
S. 8" INV. 721.31% G m\ﬁé o w 52 g S 9 3 N — %
o 9 s ) o = (I )
:Szg ROW OF 6"—10” ¥ | W /4 <%¢§ = il ' ‘=)
K o u ‘. L ] @D = L i 2
g‘; §EE?‘) CEDAR TREES 4 - —_@ fj g 8§§§ § 33 ﬂ'z
A o 288 EXISTING COORDINATE UTILITY POLE T E 5 N
o B w5 X —REMOVE EXISTING 18.0X10.2 o REMOVAL/RELOCATION WITH o O o
g4 REMOVE EXISTING FENCE (TYP.) ~ o ;SSEDSQ T ° UTILITY PROVIDER [/ =% \\ N L1
~ ) TREES (TYP.) ; ; ol ; - ;C o= O
= < =
: \ = O
G —G ’ Q;:: O ( )
| 2 3
FalAY — ;
i T T T T = Lol T Z
T M o0 T T 1
2 AT A TN E
: SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH = .
N , :
379 OF THE NORTHEAST i EXISTING SHED — | 4G PROJECT TEAM
40356 ol 1/4 OF SECTION 32 HT.: 7.o.i\D /F RDM: DAVE LEMONS
(] .
STORM RIM 731.41 E,ZGOSJ'S'\::G LOT 4 (AS MONUMENTED) l CONC i i SDV:RYAN HALDER
40567 DONNA L. POWELL 15 d I CPM: SCOTT NEWBURY
STORM RIM 732.23 PIN: 41—18—32-229—005 LOT 22 / 3 q |z
N. 127 INV. 725.80« l BRUCE VANDERVENNEN
S. 12" INV. 725.80% A PIN: 41-189-32-229-023 >
40368 5 . — ﬂ g 3
STORM RIM 731.68 . — k “;<
40353 . — 45’ CONSUMERS ROW : &
HYDRANT F.G. 733.29 — — I EXISTING = 2 -
_ — — HOUSE o)
—_— ONUNS =
40438 l o
SANITARY RIM 732.40 0 60010 x 5]
N. 8" INV. 722 15% \ JAN L VALVE RIM 740.38 m Z
S. 8" INV. 722.15% T o O
E. 8" INV. 726.83x 1} 50" RELEASE OF RIGHT OF z %)
WAY PER L.713, PG.484 % 7
\ | > a
o
A \ 4
\ 0 =
~ o 3
BENCHMARK #1:

DATE:
05-19-2022
NORTHWEST FLANGE BOLT ON FIRE HYDRANT
ELEVATION: 742.34 (NAVD88)

SHEET NUMBER:
0] 15’ 30’

05
BENCHMARK' #2: 5:;

"X” ON NORTHEAST BOLT ON CONCRETE SCALE: 17=30'
LIGHT POLE BASE, NO POLE ON BASE

05 OF 14
ELEVATION: 740.27 (NAVD88)

CAD FILE: K:\22000815\DWG\PLAN SETS\SITE—PRELIMINARY\22000815—04—DM



£
O
LEGEND VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT OF WAY 4 g
VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT OF WAY g < :
4 ® S %
o Lo Q
——— = o= c— PROPERTY LINE @ wp 8
‘ ‘ ' 5 °© aj o N
EXISTING CONTOUR | g F o
O U.P. Oy 60683 ® S0 "y
900 PROPOSED CONTOUR z STORM RIM 739.21 259 0
S SW 127 INV. 735.51x REN S
M NN NN NN NN NN NN BN BN BN BN BN | \T OF DISTURBANCE CONC w.P. // Pl N. 12" INV. 734.05% =
O U.P. \ 3
_ | — E. 157 INV. 734.15x 8 L
v 1—— f—— \\/
N <
EXISTING MANHOLE /CATCH BASIN L T i CONC _WALK ,{ A /v\ : N\ P 3 o0 N
= ! ] 2 = A [ ® 3 NO 5
® B PROPOSED MANHOLE/CATCH BASIN 40493 = E\h@e.& @Q - o
STORM RIM 728.31\ ¥ 4 Z
Q <
_— ~ &
NOTES T —= /— Sy
1. ALL ELEVATIONS SHOWN ARE TOP OF PAVEMENT/FINISH GRADE UNLESS OTHERWISE ! - ~ S 15" NV e oo =
NOTED 52ND STREET SE | - . 127 INV. 735.93« -
: | (VARIABLE WIDTH PU ' / T = 120NV 735934 5
e ) 1732.57T Srean LIMIBL,C RIGHT OF WAY) ) VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT f o
PO T —— g — —_ -~ SOUTZRL T 35 MPH) | ONCRETE ABAS S & win
STORMWATER NARRATIVE R i 1 = DO Y 20070504 0047900 & n ° T,
T A E— =W e A DOC. 20070629—0066419 e of Mfc;,,@”:,,
— \Tb/ ] — 8“@ e—— == 4y % = Al .."..--‘."o, %,
ON-SITE STORMWATER WILL GENERALLY SHEET FLOW TO A SERIES OF CATCH BASINS WHERE _ j e : — : — —< §o. "%
IT WILL BE CONVEYED TO THE ON—SITE UNDERGROUND DETENTION BASIN WHICH OUTLETS — N , > , . 5
TO THE CITY STORM SYSTEM VIA A CONNECTION TO AN EXISTING CATCH BASIN TO THE ST = — — /0 3 o . 3 45 _— G s G : ) _
WEST OF THE PROPERTY. THE PROPOSED PAVED AREA IS EQUIVALENT OR LESS THAN THE CORNER FALLS IN UTILITY POLE qr (W \ RN K6 W ~ ’ " I
CURRENT PAVED AREA. STORMWATER FROM THE ROOF TOP AND CANOPY WILL BE I > |l 13® A A
CONVEYED TO VIA DOWNSPOUTS TO THE STORMWATER SEWER SYSTEM. VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT OF 'WAY —" | 1 \ o5 NH ONW ~— e \ F Q /;\60666
Lﬁ\_ ‘_ y ’ A 7\ © L ’ 4 STORM RIM 738.04
- 1 K ——xo'— 73%8‘” L 739,361 is
iy I_’\ ‘/ (‘5 / J00B 1 73070008 _— : —
V737237 738377 £ o/ 2 >
LOT 1 STING I |‘(136.7/39/;3,7,873 ]
" 739.307 O U.P.
I JONED Ri_C HOUSE ] P : \ & Y 738808
7 1, Pom2 738.71 m oW 73801 vyl X BT s04ss
. . . ©
VARIABLE WIDTHEAGQREADJN%;—/ H I RIM (736.64 A A% 3 . 739.938 : 2 STORM RIM 739.22
~ SEME @ K 19 > T/WATER 733.92
] I A 738.36T \3/7 9.20 73845 ~ [~ 739.12% I 1o RECESSED PIPES—COULD NOT OPEN
1 N 737.86B & 38.71 I S NE 12" INV. 736.30%
] " g e \ g s | SE 6" INV. 737.93«
- AS'_‘ I o | L AW oy / I b
— OuPr < o . / IT ] I o I
> 1) L I / = ; 5 o o o o . —— . \y %\ N I
e LAY . |
o 1 ¥ e & ! | ®
& LOT 2 ] © I 5
o o 1 Q - A aw ] \
§ & ! | [ \ - & / I | 3
a 0 - = <
& NED R1-C 2 ‘* N _ S 25 1 =
a > ] 22 o © d < O, fa] 0 = | n |2
s x | QI ER " ° |3 % [ ¢ | ;e
\S_i : E I K_"l\)"l\) —_— —u'\p (5(9 03‘ g N °_,i %% X b I — ¢ G ;
o | \ 531 ™ I o 739.20 274t g —— i
) 2 x—— I ] el 1K OB s diHme T
i & T I 2 ga| - — DR ¢ : e 1459 Grand Ave
§ 5 Y \ =F - N 6 % 5 Des Moines, |A 50309
3 s s AN ’ 0= / \ 739.96 | N —1"| o ue P: 888-458-6646
T 2 g] ’ \ . \ \
LOT 3 | L 0% | w
9 2= 3w ! 3 > e (@p)
(@) ~ I - o@ @—@O l <§( <
B o ZON%D R1-C l 738.45T » ; . ) © 45_x I o = LIJ
o 737.958B I L
G —H— G — W 1 ( 5 = I 10" GRADING —~| /N gl ;1}.32@ =
1 T \ : EASEMEN . <C
cdne EXISTING | r— = - L dss B ) % I Bci_p —
., HOUSE 1 | 2% | : | RIM 73878 ' | x g 2 @)
; (Y] — o, ® >
15 y : T | | L/ .lemd N O
~ R - — l,’ . / | . i E% % }\§ | E ~N =
] &) é&i\\:’j i P %ﬂ@f f I | L. —_—— — _‘—__—. i —T e I |-|;-' D < 5
| s T i > / 742.1 " . = =
— ouj | ! W/ 7 § $ [ | 74 : I o &
a) » ~
) ? co d ' g = - | oI |2
I 2 ‘“: | i RIM 73703 N Y/ - 0 =
¢ | - ! | T e ]S / Z SIE
O z | | o <3 ]
= = OUTLOT A | " 740.50T gl 3 . - © ; é
3 = 740.00B g p sl oB / —
L @ 0] 1 739 — —— S SUE] sl B 7a2.201 S I L o O
| 740 — Bl 81 M1 81 8 741708 . W N AT Z LU >
€ G o« l I |_ Py —_—_— T T = 23 Y3 6oy | e ) 7 \O—:S—_ tr———0—1 o=
I ) ;3 | UGDT2 \ _— k@ e * =T LLl o <C
| RIM 740.34 [ —~— T ~— s x : : =
?U 2= _ I
\ : " | UNDERGROUND L — . | N W & = =
ROW OF 6”—10" | DETENTION " N - NI RY) = 9p) =
CEDAR TREES | i BASIN e < 7 3. 3 = i I Tl
~ i | UGDT! — < B o il - o
L | H § M 74032 —— =33 5 3 < = oh
= 5 <~
R|M734f {j I] l ----------------------------------------- 110%66 E@m @] \ ©C\I
T aaeall SRR RS | I ) ) = &
---------|+--_-. I gll;:‘274026 gv ‘ i C\IL'_
L | . 2 |4
. _Ll- - *&_,‘; e *U_ <>( &) O
o —C= N W—D\D X
G J__———“ Si‘i g ” o VY v v V T % ‘D—— Ol J /7/ ;
N o
™ < AANNT — — —— Ul b
[ £yl -
40356 | STING \ | S EL | KG PROJECT TEAM:
STORM RIM 1302_217 HOUSE LOT 4 | T /% RDM: DAVE LEMONS
STORM RIM 732 95 \ | cone | 4 o SDM: RYAN HALDER
N. 12" INV. 725.80x NED R LOT 22 n dE i CPM: SCOTT NEWBURY
S. 12" INV. 725.80+ 0 | ZONED R1—C l |‘ / ° i :
40368 OU.P. \ _ L l% 3 15
STORM RIM 731.68 — ZONED R2 &
- - — ] g 2
— O
! - 1
— l 45’ CONSUMERS ROW >< o
— — EXISTING i
_ — HOUSE =
~ l O U.P. 8
o
L : 2
m ) _ o Z
50’ RELEASE OF RIGHT OF o~ O
WAY PER L.713, PG.484 5 n
(7) —
! 2 >
o
o
L
'_
<
o

BENCHMARK' #1:
NORTHWEST FLANGE BOLT ON FIRE HYDRANT DATE: 05-19-2022
ELEVATION: 742.34 (NAVD88)

0 15’ 30 SHEET NUMBER:

BENCHMARK' #2: 5:;
06

"X” ON NORTHEAST BOLT ON CONCRETE SCALE: 17=30'
LIGHT POLE BASE, NO POLE ON BASE

ELEVATION: 740.27 (NAVD88) 06 OF 14

CAD FILE: K:\22000815\DWG\PLAN SETS\SITE—PRELIMINARY\22000815—05-G



£
O
LEGEND VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT OF WAY 60678 4 S
GHT OF WAY RIM 738.53 o 0
VARIABLE WIDTH RI 0 SANITARY 8
573 E. 8" INV 9 Qu %
o HYDRANT F.G. 733.80 -9, INV.729.90x L2 S
—_ e e PROPERTY LINE EXISTING / PROPOSED MANHOLE I N. 8” INV. 728.29% e S
0 X 60493 3 > o Q
EXISTING OVERHEAD LINES P EXISTING / PROPOSED HYDRANT A < VALVE RIM 738.48 m 2 "=3 o
G-d-R—OHE 60677 o y.p | = 60683 % 9.0 3
STORM SEWER ® EXISTING / PROPOSED VALVE OR STOP BOX T T OHE—— p 5 SANITARY RIM 737.77 % STORM RIM 739.21 %8 )
T OHE— W. 8” PVC INV. 728.37 9 SW 12" INV. 735.51+ wE™ S
EXISTING SANITARY SEWER EXISTING / PROPOSED LIGHT POLE CONC ‘ 0 E\/@rﬁHL.\OHE — o Al N. 12" INV. 73405+ =
T\~ OHE A ] E. 157 INV. 734.15« o 0
EXISTING WATER > QHE : xS
B EXISTING / PROPOSED CATCH BASIN W o - ® el = y " i OuE — 0 o § A <
_ —12"w 12"W 12"wW 127w ” ; — —£0 — rQ—L j* —OHE N
> > > PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER ¢ PROPOSED CLEANOUT e 2 2y S W ——ow——— oW 20 —— _ VALVE RM 73818 g & 5
w w PROPOSED WATER 40493 — © - @
EXISTING UTILITY POLE STORM RIM 72831 N < © z
WA WA UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC = S © =
_ o
R R GAS T | PROPOSED TRANSFORMER - « ; .
- o - -
40492 g _ —  ° STOR!\SA RI 0
T T T UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE /DATA SANITARY RIM 728.12 e T — | I RIM 738.38 Q
S. 8” CLAY INV. 718.97 I g ] —  — W. 157 INV. 735.83x =
PROPOSED SAND BACKFILL E. 8” CLAY INV. 719.12 5Q2ND STREE 35\4 < ——< ) - ———— T 2 E 127 INV. 735.93+ =
W. 8" CLAY INV. 718.87 A ~ (VARIABL(ESF\:\gEgHL UBLIC RIGHT OF WAY) VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT OF | 2 T 1IN 73585 a
4" 4 - . % IMIT: 35 MPH) CONCRETE ’ WAY PER DOC. %
4G e e N i SOUTHERLY RiGHT OF WAY LINE PROPOSED RELOCATED UTILITY 20070504—0047900 & o \\\\\uummm,,,,
. 8 2 — = POLE & TRANSFORMER oY ’ DOC. 20070629—0066419 ™ ?'.‘E’o.'.:.ﬂ,c’f/@”,'&
NOTES A — T e e =i Sy,
F R 8 ——— T _—
1. FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REFERENCE THE STANDARD NOTES SHEET, STANDARD DETAILS SHEET(S), AND ANY dr WALK G — e —
- G ” 0
MUNICIPALITY AND/OR JURISDICTIONAL NOTES/DETAILS INCLUDED WITH THIS PLAN SET. CORNER FALLS IN UTILITY POLE = b} —_— &'¢ = 5
2. ALL 6" DIAMETER SANITARY SEWER SHALL BE PVC SDR 23.5. LA B T ST 70 BE ABNE WIDTH GRADING BV 42 56643, .-
VARIABL ] i \ o’
3. NO FOOTING DRAINS SHALL BE CONNECTED TO THE BUILDING SEWER. £ WIDTH RIGHT OF WAY ONW ONW {VERlFlED WITH EASEMENT o % 60666 '0.9“‘;’:{
—— 7 \ Ny
4. NO CONNECTION RECEIVING STORM SEWER, SURFACE WATER OR GROUND WATER SHALL BE MADE TO THE SANITARY SEWER. %P — —_ it UTILITY COMPANY % STORM RIM 738.04 "a,,z: 553\(::\\\
— TE
5. ELECTRIC, TELEPHONE, AND DATA CONDUIT SHALL BE SCHEDULE 40 PVC OR TYPE DB DIRECT BURY TELEPHONE DUCT. oA I AT e
6. A GALVANIZED PULL WIRE OR PURPLE PROPYLPOLYETHYLENE ROPE WITH A MINIMUM PULLING TENSION OF 100 POUNDS R| * \_ Z
SHALL BE INSTALLED IN THE CONDUIT RROPOSED SANITARY
: > > SEWER CONNECTION i
PULL BOX SIZE SHALL BE 17”x30°X28” "QUAZITE” OR APPROVED EQUAL. ~ ZONED Ri—C - PROPOSED GREASE N £
N INTERCEPTOR PROPOSED * N iy
8. THE MINIMUM CONDUIT BURIAL DEPTH SHALL BE 24”. / T (¢ ¢ ———=n SANITARY SEWER o2 ™~ 60456
4l m
9. AN ORANGE DETECTABLE HAZARD TAPE WITH INTEGRAL "BURIED CABLE” WORDING, SHALL BE INSTALLED 12" ABOVE CONDUIT. VARIABLE WIDTH GRADING g STORM RIM 739.22
~ EASEMENT H Y T/WATER 733.92
: | g RECESSED PIPES—COULD NOT OPEN
A 6 l: g NE 127 INV. 736.30%
L 4o ) @ N i SE 6" INV. 737.93«
ne '3 f . : E =8
SANITARY NARRATIVE our. %l | !
= & [El )
THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT WILL CONNECT TO AN EXISTING SANITARY LOCATED NORTH OF WA
THE PROPERTY. ON—SITE SANITARY WILL CONSIST OF A 1,000 GALLON GREASE INTERCEPTOR ° ¢
AND 6" PVC SDR23.5 PIPE. CLEANOUTS WILL BE INSTALLED AT ALL CHANGES IN DIRECTION & Q T \ N
ON RUNS OVER 100". 2 z H ! "~ "@ 3 i
] L >
O « - - —— —
=A { G ig PROPOSED By NS S Y
5 & v N— PROPOSED 3
D STORM SEWER it FFERQPOSE T 3
S GREASE WASTE X
WATER NARRATIVE a ZONED R1-C * L - | comecron © p R =~-proposo 2
. - = H S STORM SEWER o
ON—SITE WATER SERVICE WILL BE SUPPLIED VIA 2” TYPE 'K’ COPPER LEAD CONNECTED TO = " = ] i 5 s | o % E & b=
THE NEAREST ALLOWED TAP LOCATION. THE TAP IS CURRENTLY PROPOSED TO A WATER LINE S — ! W [0 ° > 13
TO THE EAST OF THE PROPERTY. = © S Z _|o T G
=
¢ : Se| R | boE 60225
A 0 v R] o W @ " HYORANT F.G. 741 96 1459 Grand Ave
A @A L e e —| ACH .
= Q i _— 0 .
|| W N ~_ éﬂf b- = % o] € VALVE RIM § Des Moines, |A 50309
s o~ 3 i@*\ y 02 \ su #1411 P: 888-458-6646
1 K ?] gg%ggg%smw 1 TON T HYDRANT F.G. [741.49 W
oI > > = [ [-CONNEC N P
g7 | CONNECTIONS (TYP.) ROOF DRAIN PER SIS 2| o 5 | LLd
O | = A v | ARCH. PLANS Mo o0 PROPOSED 271 2| m > =) @p)
) ZONED R1—C < SO @, \| WATER SERICE \ = LLI
S H ~ LINE CONNECTION W
q & G G ] 10’ GRADING © =
It o \ EASEMENT - <C
02 & . : > : = O
= . NoE ¢ - > @)
m A ! > oY =M [
o M® =S = ~N
n N =< m
= = = 32 o 3 0 < =
B T N i L = |3
—
¢ &.h — - S O o
== f\mA I —_— e — = _/ g: < >
o & | Y YaYaYea T T . C) 1 -
ezl 15l g ! — I : =32 |2
— \J ol —
40374 s i 2 T | 4 3 81 ¥ A, o = Iy — 5
= & uw — i
SANITARY RIM 73141 | oo It R[] SR 1o N | s 3 o3 >
N. 8" INV. 721.31x 1 | * B * I A I I ) I = G L 4 T T Z LLl o
S. 8" INV. 721.31% G G = [ @ l 3 E«S Eé ES 25 ENS * \S_k B LLl o» <C
(]
HII | UNDERGROUND | z > 2 7 — =
o PROPOSED 20’ WIDE STORM | DETENTION o R\ NI = dp) 1
i SEWER EASEMNT BASIN : \ 5.3 o 4 |lo 1 L
| | | | I Q3e 2 o 4 28 = e
= o
n : I 1’; ) a5 % % © d Z (ol
2w 2w 2w 2w | © T 5 <~
— _ - ] jm Alm @ O C\l
| _ I ﬂ s 4 O 1o
. wn
oo Ll N~
— ¢ 5 J NL AN
LG e C G G G e c c < ii,él : ;
- : : ©
. N e N ey > o @)
/ \al
G | R |t \~PROPOSED RELOCATED ;
L 2l unoTy PoLe ﬂ//
b | 2 o 9P,
= m (o
40356 KG PROJECT TEAM:
STORM RIM 731.41 RDM: DAVE LEMONS
40367 Pl '
STORM RIM 732.23 SN o mT SDM: RYAN HALDER
N. 127 INV. 725.80% 16 o 9% .
S 12 NV van aor ZONED R1—C S “ § CPM: SCOTT NEWBURY
40368 2 o
STORM RIM 731.68 ZONED R2 O £ §
40353 m™
HYDRANT F.G. 733.29 45 CONSUMERS ROW d 1
= o
40438 Z
SANITARY RIM 732.40 0 du.rp 2
N. 8" INV. 722.15% JAN 60010 o
S. 8" INV. 722.15x VALVE RIM 740.38 o) N
E. 8" INV. 726.83+ o Z
~ , L
50° RELEASE OF RIGHT OF > O
| WAY PER L.713, PG.484 o 2]
& Zz
~ > a
o
o
L
|_
<
o

BENCHMARK' #1:
NORTHWEST FLANGE BOLT ON FIRE HYDRANT DATE: 05-19-2022
ELEVATION: 742.34 (NAVD88)

0 15’ 30 SHEET NUMBER:

BENCHMARK' #2: 5:;
07

"X* ON NORTHEAST BOLT ON CONCRETE A
LIGHT POLE BASE, NO POLE ON BASE
ELEVATION: 740.27 (NAVD88) 07 OF 14

CAD FILE: K:\22000815\DWG\PLAN SETS\SITE—PRELIMINARY\22000815—06—U



o oHE—— o W G 1Yo MY, s eU.os
OHE £
CONC OHE -P——OHE OHE 5 \Z I o
‘ - .ﬁ, HE Lpur—— g
= i i 4 3 O (e}
12w " ko —Fo——— 0 Fgw —EQ CONC WALK 5 * % Fol/ ro 4 g S 2
12"W ——————12"w 12°W 12°W 12°W 127W 27W 12°W } W2 3 b 122w7 ¥ 12w 12" 12°W @ Ll S
( A = £% S
2 N
) ! 247HT. m 2 Z§§ o
2.5” Cal. /18 Ht\ 24" SPR. ) 3354 |F
o 18" Ht. . % 258 @
‘ — KT (3) QS 2.5” Cal. 4$- |8
— =
4049 —9 - ——-d—— g 4 B R — - 2.5” Cal. /—(‘LA")JM'D O L,y 0
SANITARY RIM 728.12 < e 4——q g - — / 18" Ht. Q < <
S. 8" CLAY INV. 718.97 4 ht 5<2ND SE Y=< ) | , _ ] &x’ g E% >
E. 8” CLAY INV. 719.12 . " (VARIABLE \MIDTH BUBLIC RIGHT F WAY) VARIABLE/ WIDTH_RIGHT QF = o o s
W. 8” CLAY INV. 718.87 A I 4 2.5" Cal. s CONCR WAY PER DOC: @
(SREED LIMIT: 35 MPH ETE R
e o 6 Ht & 20070504—0047900 & 4" HT 0 @ z
c #'G PRIS e e - _ (1,076 sf) PPK DOC. £0070629—0066419 1) oUT L o ® 2
: sod T C C C C C o
| T : —X 4( 24" SPR. (5281 =) PPk NOTES TO CONTRACTOR
A — = L s 7
_ < G G =45 PE ., ~ d sod %, FO — 1. ALL DISEASED, DAMAGED, OR DEAD PLANTING MATERIALS SHALL BE REMOVED IN ACCORDANCE WITH §
_ &e 8" 8'c ————g7c"— STANDARDS OF THE CITY OF KENTWOOD ZONING ORDINANCE. =
CORNER FALLS IN UTILITY POLE e 2. ALL PLANTS SHALL CONFORM TO THE CURRENT ISSUE OF THE AMERICAN STANDARD FOR NURSERY STOCK e
A Mg y G PUBLISHED BY THE AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF NURSERYMEN AND SHALL HAVE PASSED INSPECTIONS o
m VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT OF WAY —] AT g E OHE o o REQUIRED UNDER STATE REGULATIONS.
N / 3. MULCH MATERIAL: ALL MULCH TO BE 4”"—6" ROUNDED RIVER BED GRAVEL.WITH 8" MIN. DEPTH WITH WEED
24" Ht. ]Ei — G 7 PREVENTION FABRIC. MULCH ALL PLANTING BEDS, 2'—0” STRIP ADJACENT TO LANDSCAPED AREA AROUND
~A %/////II N\ (‘””TC 0 BUILDING AND TRASH ENCLOSURE, ALL EVERGREEN AND DECIDUOUS TREES TO RECEIVE 8" DEEP STONE
LOT 1 " 2.5° Cal. | U.p. MULCH WITH NO STONE IN DIRECT CONTACT WITH TREE TRUNK. EXTENT OF MULCH TO BE 4'-0" DIA. AT
RANDY D. GUMBERT 2.5 Cal. > 5 TREES.
PIN:  41-18-32-229-001 (1) PQ M 4. SITE IRRIGATION TO BE PROVIDED FOR ALL PROPOSED LANDSCAPE IMPROVEMENT AREAS AND LAWN AREAS
m ZONED R1-C 6 Ht C Ie ) _(.’LZ)JM.D ©
ZA / R 18" Ht.
VARIABLE WIDTH GRADING e
EASEMENT(6) VD | > 55" Cdl
f 24” Ht. o ; 5" Cal.
A (861 sf) PPK ] ® L 1 1:8;» Ht g
1 N .
sod \ s
Nea ”
— oupr > o (_‘?_)_BFL = 24" SPR.
= S 6 Ht. O
&5 D _ m
2! g 24" Ht. ST 8
M x LOT 2 3 = (2) 1C 3.
Q (o Y, ”» —
SUN L LEVID & MARTHA G. CAMPOS » 7 2.5 Cal, <
@ ° PIN: 41-18-32-229-002 24 HU q S =
z ZONED R1-C (1) PO 3 3 S 24" SPR. | |2
L 6° Ht. e S % [m| P13
= = S Z G
% A 2 =S 2 o — 1
[©)] [e] o » C | % \\\\§ fEﬁ_ T N —N— —
I e S EXISTING 16” HICKORY —~2.2  Cal. JNI Qs | B o
TO REMAIN = -
| —I\ s (5) Bop &
<8 2——>" T -2 [ €7 18" Ht. K
| = I N (6) VD od ad_ ——— == == e PROPERTY LINE V 4} TRAFFIC FLOW ARROWS
0 | > [ n= R
W : 24" Ht. ?i — — PROPOSED PROPERTY BOUNDARY - PROPOSED SIGN
] a "~
(2)-PS = SIS 18" Ht | EXISTING CURB & GUTTER PARKING ROW COUNT
o A LOT 3 2.5 Cal. : oo,
=z m BRANDON J. & MEAGAN C. FRIERSON L O o] o © PROPOSED CURB & GUTTER ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACE
S |2 iy PIN: 41—18-32—229-003 : }* g {Tfk
& ZONED R1—C 6" Ht. [ \ T 10 GRADING — 4"—6” GRAVEL IN PLANTING BEDS % EXISTING / PROPOSED LIGHT POLE 1459 Grand Ave
e s — A (16,849 sf) PPK :((E EASEMENT MIN. DEPTH OF 8 ] :
g & > 7 \\ PROPOSED RAMP Des Moines, IA 50309
A SO I~ .\ P PROPOSED TOPSOIL AND SOD .
J CONC (_3_)_53]\ L X\ b LOCATIONS P: 888-458-6646
@] é: 24" Ht- [~ @ -?_DE: G;@ l’ﬂ' ®O 2 i
T =S m o
T sl ® L 55 Ca. - %
5
] | 4l — i 11, =
<@ SN N\ N Y _(3) PS © =
« g 2.5” Cal 3 —
] O o) 2 o 5 [ — ~
o z E 2 i S o > m < )
22 =Ll g outtoT A 18" Ht. e o | & =Y L2 < Ik =5 |=
40374 S = & § 61 8 3 W i - <C
FaYA & M i o 7J G o\ d a N
ITARY RIM 731.41 & T = - ~ | D <C —l
I 8" INV. 721.31% | © CT o 0
5. 8" INV. 721.31# G G e 5% cal o= 2 O = E
. al. =
N g3i¢ o | o3 |3
ROW OF 6"-10" I 8 o 2 o b2 O
CEDAR TREES 25 = & |G ; § n
< = 5 I_ %
m 5 E m &) Oés <C
= —1
. #
: b N Zw |
1, m i
_— ¢ ¢ c c ® T < 5 LLl »» QEC
¢ ¢ < . T — =
///”/// M\ : ; \>"E g 3 |_— §
—" 6 Ht AT I - 1
G ’ i < — LLI
- . 54 it ~—(4) HPL N %
_ 24" Ht. - | 24" Ht. O o
2 il
‘ ” T
3 LOT 4 6" Ht. 2.5” Cal. CONC o : N L
= DONNA L. POWELL & X @
o PIN: 41-18-32—-229-005 LOT 22 24”7 Ht /‘E_ ON| @ <;( o
8 ZONED 21 BRUCE VANDERVENNEN O &)
PIN: 41-189—-32—229-023 z S % ;
ZONED R2 % o U)
» ot
- 724 HL 45" CONSUMERS ROW E 9 o KG PROJECT TEAM:
-— EXISTING VEGETATION ,
. — (E RDM: DAVE LEMONS
_ — Up. TO REMAIN
40438 — | SDM: RYAN HALDER
SANITARY RIM 732.40 \ A CPM: SCOTT NEWBURY
N. 8" INV. 722.15%
» TREE TO REMAIN L —
S. 8" INV. 722.15x%
E. 8" INV. 726.83% 50’ RELEASE OF RIGHT OF
m WAY PER L.713, PG.484
: PLANT LIST
Quantity |Botanical Common Size Container Remarks Percentage 5
, — , =
8 Carpinus caroliniana American Hornbeam 2.5" Cal. | B&B orCont. Full, well balanced canopy 3% o
6 Picea omorika Serbian Spruce 6" Ht. B&B Full to ground 3% LAN DSCAPE REQUIREMENTS SUMMARY % 7))
, : %)
5 Picea pungens Colorado Spruce 6" Ht. B&B Full to ground 2% LéJ %
4 Pinus strobus White Pine 6 Ht. B&B or Cont. Full to Ground 2% LEM REQUIREMENT QLY REQUIRED QLY PROVlDE[() FORMULA Y pd 7)
- - : " ) GREEN BELT 10" WIDE— 1 CANOPY TREE AND 52ND ST. = 6TREES, 52ND ST. = 6TREES (4 LINDEN,[ 52ND ST. = 210 LF/40=5.25 o
0, ’ —_—
8 Platanus ocadent'z?llls American Sycamore 2.5" Cal. B&B Stra!ght trunk, full crown 3% 2 SHRUBS FOR EVERY 40 LF 47 SHRUBS 2 0OAK) AND 52 SHRUBS —6 TREES, 6 X 7 = 42 SHRUBS ® S
6 Quercus shumardii Shumard Red Oak 2.5" Cal. | B&B or Cont. Straight trunk, even crown 3% OF FRONTAGE ?AlT_QIEAEASZOA?Q AS\I/—I|-:|§U=BS KALAMAZOO AVE.=7 TREES (3 LINDEN, | KALAMAZOO AVE.=272 LF/40=6.8 0 1
9 Tilia cordata Littleleaf Linden 2.5" Cal. B&B Well balanced head, Straight trunk 4% ' 2 0AK, 2 SYCAMORE), 58 SHRUBS =7 TREES, 7 X 7 = 49 SHRUBS @ o
Quantity |Botanical Common Size Container Spacing |Remarks BUFFER 30' WIDE — (B) 1 CANOPY TREE, |WEST=8 CANOPY & EVERCREEN| WEST=8 CANOPY & EVERGREEN |WEST 299LF/40=7.48=8 CANOPY &
45 Cotoneaster horizontalis 'Tom Thumb' Tom Thumb Cotoneaster 24" SPR. Pot 36" o.c. |Full pot 19% 1 EVERGREEN TREE AND 5 SHRuUBS |TREES AND 40 SHRUBS | TREES AND 40 SHRUBS EVERGREEN TREES AND 40 SHRUBS w
- T N " " - o PER 40 LF SOUTH=7 CANOPY &EVERGREEN| SOUTH=7 CANOPY &EVERGREEN |SOQUTH 276LF/40=6.9=7 CANOPY & [
19 Hydrangea paniculata ‘Limelight’ TM Limelight Hydrangea 24" Ht. Pot 60" o.c.  |Full Pots Specimens 8% TREES AND 35 SHRUBS | TREES AND 35 SHRUBS EVERGREEN TREES AND 35 SHRUBS <DE
N AN n n 0,
SITE BENCHMARKS 8 |llexglabra compacta’ Compact Inkberry 18 Ht. Pot 36 o.c. Full 3% PARKING LOT 1 CANOPY TREE AND 100 SF OF |3 TREES AND 300 SF |3 TREES (2 HORNBEAM, 1 OAK)| 21 SPACES =21/10=2.1=3 TREES
9 Miscanthus sinensis Mornlng nght Eulalia Grass 24"HT. Pot 48" o.c. Full pOt 4% LANDSCAPE LANDSCAPE AREA FOR EVERY OF LANDSCAPING AND 545 SF OF LANDSCAPING 3 X 100 SF=300SF LANDSCAPING
22 Physocarpus opulifolius 'Donna May' TM  |[Little Devil Dwarf Ninebark 18" Ht. Pot 48" o.c. |Full 9% 10 SPACES <]
BENCHMARK #1: 47  |Taxus x media ‘Densiformis Dense Yew 18" Ht. | Pot or Cont. 48" o.c. |Full evenform 20% PARKING PERIMETER PARKING SHALL BE SCREENED SEE PLAN SEE PLANS N/A
NORTHWEST FLANGE BOLT ON FIRE HYDRANT 3 Taxus x media 'Hicksii' Hicks Anglo-Japanese Yew 24" Ht. Pot or B&B 60" o.c. |Full and even 1% LANDSCAPE BY LANDSCAPING AND BERMING DATE: 05-19-2022
ELEVATION: 742.34 (NAVD88) 40 Viburnum dentatum 'Arrowwood' Arrowwood Viburnum 24" Ht. Pot 60" o.c. |Full evenform 17%
0 - 30 239 Total 100% POND PERIMETER 1 CANOPY OR EVERGREEN TREE N/A N/A N/A SHEET NUMBER:
BENCHMARK #2: 5:; . . . A N AND 9 SHRUBS FOR EVERY 50 LF '
" ON NORTHEAST BOLT ON CONCRETE TS Quantity |Botanical Common Size Container Spacing |Remarks OF POND PERIMETER 08
LIGHT POLE BASE, NO POLE ON BASE : 43 Euonymus fortunei "Coloratus’ Purple Wintercreeper 4" Pot 24" o.c. |Full pot
ELEVATION: 740.27 (NAVD88) 24267 |Poa pratensis Kentucky Bluegrass sod 08 OF 14

CAD FILE: K:\22000815\DWG\PLAN SETS\SITE—PRELIMINARY\22000815—08-LS



ON CENTER (0.C.) DIMENSION E
VARIES (SEE PLAN) 8
| | 8
3 8 le}
Q qw %
Teg g
G EN ERAL N OTES PLANT MATE RIALS 4. PROVIDE GRASS SEED THAT IS FRESH, CLEAN, NEW—CROP SEED COMPLYING WITH STAKE LANDSCAPE FABRIC e 553 N
TOLERANCE FOR PURITY AND GERMINATION ESTABLISHED BY OFFICIAL SEED \ FORM SAUCER 2" § =®
1. LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR (CONTRACTOR) SHALL VISIT SITE, INSPECT EXISTING 1. PROVIDE PLANTS OF QUANTITY, SIZE, GENUS, SPECIES, AND VARIETY SHOWN AND ANALYSTS OF NORTH AMERICA. PROVIDE SEED TYPE OR SEED MIX WITH BEST WRE & TURNBUCKLE 3" THICK MULCH LAYER DEEP TO HOLD WATER 8 207 3k
CONDITIONS AND REVIEW PROPOSED PLANTINGS AND RELATED WORK. LANDSCAPE SCHEDULED AND IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF ANSI Z60.1 RECORD OF SUCCESS IN LOCALITY OF PROJECT OR PER PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS. 8£ 8 m
CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY ALL UTILITY LOCATIONS ON PROPERTY WITH THE ”AMERICAN STANDARD FOR NURSERY STOCK”. PLANTS SHALL HAVE BEEN GROWN REFER TO PLAN PLANTING PIT AR EDENE \ wE™ S
GENERAL CONTRACTOR AND BY CALLING 811 PRIOR TO STAKING PLANT IN A RECOGNIZED NURSERY IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOOD HORTICULTURAL RUBBER HOUSE _ > FINISH GRADE EIOG
LOGCATIONS. IN CASE OF DISCREPANCY BETWEEN PLAN AND PLANT LIST, PLAN PRACTICE. 5. APPLY SEED AT THE APPROPRIATE RATE, PER M.D.O.T. SPECIFICATIONS, FOR CENTER OF TREE NN ° o . \/\\<\\/ o .8
SHALL GOVERN QUANTITIES CONTACT LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AND/OR OWNER'S ESTABLISHING A NEW LAWN. SOW SEED USING A SPREADER OR SEEDING MACHINE. ROOT BALL HAND TAMPED NS oy ° " </>\// S Rx~ <
REPRESENTATIVE WITH ANY CONCERNS. SIZES SPECIFIED IN THE PLANT LIST ARE 2. ALL PLANTS SHALL BE FULL, WELL—BRANCHED PLANTS CHARACTERISTIC OF THE DISTRIBUTE SEED EVENLY OVER ENTIRE AREA BY SOWING EQUAL QUANTITY IN 2 PLANTING MIXTURE N -® o] / S q Qd <
MINIMUM SIZES TO WHICH THE PLANTS ARE TO BE INSTALLED. SPECIES. PLANTS SHALL BE FREE OF DISEASE, INSECTS, EGGS, LARVAE, AND DIRECTIONS AT RIGHT ANGLES TO EACH OTHER. RAKE SEED LIGHTLY INTO TOP (SEE NOTES) "V)Igio e el e o5 S Y5 5
DEFECTS SUCH AS KNOTS, SUN—SCALD, INJURIES, ABRASIONS, OR DISFIGUREMENT. 1/8-INCH OF SOIL, ROLL LIGHTLY, AND WATER WITH A FINE SPRAY. GUY DETAIL PLAN LGS < n N P
2. PRIOR TO ANY LAND CLEARING OR CONSTRUCTION, TREE PROTECTION FENCING IS I /x\//>\// 7 UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE g ~
XA
TO BE INSTALLED BY THE CONTRACTOR. THIS FENCING SHALL BE INSTALLED AT 3. PLANT STOCK SHALL HAVE BEEN GROWN UNDER CLIMATIC CONDITIONS SIMILAR TO 6. PROTECT ALL SEEDED AREAS AGAINST EROSION BY SPREADING A CLEAN, SEED h © =
THE DRIP LINE OF ALL TREES AND SHRUBS AND MUST BE MAINTAINED AS CONDITIONS IN THE LOCALITY OF THE PROJECT. FREE SALT HAY OR THRESHED STRAW OF WHEAT, RYE, OATS, OR BARLEY. NOTES NOTES * =
APPROVED FOR THE DURATION OF THE PROJECT. NO CUTTING, FILLING OR SPREAD UNIFORMLY TO FORM A CONTINUOUS BLANKET NOT LESS THAN 1.5 1. PLANTING DETAIL APPLIES TO ALL DECIDUOUS TREES 1. CONTRACTOR SHALL PRUNE CROWDED, BROKEN, OR STRAY BRANCHES. CUT FLUSH, LEAVING CAMBIUM EDGE CLEAN %
- — 1
TRESPASSING SHALL OCCUR INSIDE THE FENCED AREAS. 4. LABEL AT LEAST ONE PLANT OF EACH KIND WITH A SECURELY ATTACHED INCHES LOOSE MEASUREMENT OVER SEEDED AREA. AND LARGE EVERGREEN SHRUBS. 2. :f;ﬁl?ojfgii[;TiLéENgliRM\é(JSE:E YS/;;/;LLOEEB;C;:ELT ésPES:ggvggGS/\UNg(;T:\ATGTTTEER 4—PARTS NATIVE SOIL, 3 LB
WATERPROOF TAG BEARING LEGIBLE DESIGNATION OF BOTANICAL AND COMMON 2. SHRUB MULCH RING AND PLANTING PIT SHALL BE TWICE
3. LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE THE PHASES OF CONSTRUCTION NAME. 7. TREATMENTS SUCH AS JUTE MESH, EXCELSIOR MATTING, OR FIBERGLASS ROVING THE DIAMETER OF THE ROOT BALL. o
AND PLANTING INSTALLATIONS WITH OTHER CONTRACTORS WORKING ON SITE. SHALL BE USED TO STABILIZE DITCHES OR STEEP SLOPES SUSCEPTIBLE TO 3. CONTRACTOR SHALL PRUNE CROWDED, BROKEN, OR LOW §
5. PROVIDE FRESHLY DUG BALLED & BURLAPPED PLANT MATERIALS. DO NOT DROP EROSION. THE TREATMENT SHALL BE INSTALLED PRIOR TO THE MULCHING BRANCHES. CUT FLUSIT LEAVING CAMBIUM EDGE CLEAN. /r CONTAIN ER SH RU B PLANTI NG DETAI L
4. WHERE EXISTING TREES AND/OR SIGNIFICANT SHRUBS MASSINGS ARE FOUND ON BALLED & BURLAPPED STOCK DURING DELIVERY. OPERATION. A / s
SITE, WHETHER SHOWN ON THE DRAWING OR NOT, THEY SHALL BE PROTECTED 3 LOOPS OF REINFORCED "/-<‘ NOT TO SCALE a
RUBBER HOSE AT FIRST ‘\
AND SAVED UNLESS NOTED TO BE REMOVED AND/OR ARE IN AN AREA TO BE 6. DO NOT REMOVE CONTAINER—GROWN STOCK FROM CONTAINERS UNTIL PLANTING SEEDBED PRE PARATION BRANCHING ]
GRADED, ANY QUESTION REGARDING WHETHER PLANT MATERIAL SHOULD REMAIN TIME.
OR NOT SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT 0
AND/OR OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVE PRIOR TO REMOVAL. 1. ALL DISTURBED AREAS SHALL BE DRESSED TO THE TYPICAL SECTIONS AND/OR .
INSTALLATION GRADES SHOWN AND PLOWED TO A DEPTH OF 5 INCHES. THE TOP 2 INCHES 49 GA. ALUMINUM OR N \ PERENNIAL PLANTING 5’-‘
. 1/2” x 7" GALV. TURNBUCKLE — =
5. ALL EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN TO BE FERTILIZED AND PRUNED TO REMOVE DEAD SHALL BE PULVERIZED TO PROVIDE A UNIFORM SEEDBED FLAGG\NGG%RVA%EPUTWY‘RETHVQEE . ‘ E/ACH \WRe giwéﬁwébsW/ETRET%EROWN 5
WOOD AND DAMAGED OR RUBBING BRANCHES. 1. INSTALL TREES AND SHRUBS ACCORDING TO STANDARD DETAILS SHOWN ON THE GUYS PER TREE ) — FORM SAUCER 3" DEEP IN THE NURSERY =
PLAN. 2. REMOVE ALL LOOSE ROCK, ROOTS, AND OTHER DEBRIS LEAVING SURFACE ) Souns 106 oF BALL
REASONABLY SMOOTH AND UNIFORM. SOIL LEVEL SHALL BE APPROXIMATELY 1 WRAP_TRUNK WITH HEAVY 70 HOLD WATER
6. NO PLANT MATERIAL SUBSTITUTIONS WILL BE ACCEPTED UNLESS APPROVAL IS INCH BELOW ALL TOPS OF CURBS AND WALKWAYS. TREATED CREPE PAPER OR . MULCH AS SPECIFIED :
REQUESTED OF THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AND OWNER BY THE LANDSCAPE 2. ALL TREE SAUCERS SHALL BE SOAKED WITH WATER AND MULCHED IMMEDIATELY STRIP BURLAP . 3" THICK MULCH LAYER ‘
FOLLOWING PLANTING. x
CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO INSTALLATION. 3. APPLY LIME AND FERTILIZER WITH NECESSARY EQUIPMENT TO ENSURE UNIFORM THREE 2" x 2" x 2'-6" g LANDSCAPE FABRIC M.
DISTRIBUTION OF THE MATERIALS. THE HAND/BUCKET METHOD IS NOT HARDWOOD STAKES o P
7. ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL COMPLY WITH THE LATEST EDITION OF THE AMERICAN > ALL TREE SAUCERS AND SHRUB BEDS SHALL BE MULCHED WITH A 3=INCH LAYER ACCEPTABLE. THE RATES AND TYPES OF MATERIALS TO BE APPLIED ARE AS 0 SPADE EDGING Y, OF €.
OF ORGANIC TRIPLE SHREDDED HARDWOOD BARK MULCH. NON—ORGANIC MULCHES . S YAV iy N (/T
STANDARD FOR NURSERY STOCK, AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF NURSERYMEN. ALL SUGH AS GRAVEL CRUSHED BRICK LAVA ROCK. ETC. ARE UNAGGEPTABLE FOLLOWS: FINISH GRADE s e s oo FINISH GRADE 1908 gkt
LANDSCAPING SHALL BE INSTALLED AND MAINTAINED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CH AS GRAVEL, C CK, CK, ETC. cc : 7 \ o lany 7 & T0PSOL FOR ALL

STANDARDS OF THE AUTHORITY HAVING JURISDICTION AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH

//\//\\/\\ e ; SEEDED,/SODDED AREAS (MINIMUM)
CURRENT INDUSTRY STANDARDS IN A NEAT, HEALTHY AND WEED FREE CONDITION. 4. TREE GUYING SHALL BE REMOVED AFTER ONE FULL GROWING SEASON. RETE THAT WILL PROVIDE 5 LBS. OF PHOSPHORUS PER 1000 SQUARE HAND TAMPED OO T e - °o o % INY 7
o = o o : PROVIDE 6" DEEP x 1/8" STEEL
LIMESTONE — 75 LBS. PER 1000 SQUARE FEET PLANTING MIXTURE N N /\\X\ o o /\\\/ EDGING PER SPEC\FX\CA/NONS

8. CONTRACTOR WILL SUPPLY FINISHED GRADE AND EXCAVATE AS NECESSARY TO 5. APPLY 12 CUBIC FEET OF PEAT MOSS PER 100 SQUARE FEET AND 20 POUNDS (SEE NOTES) SRA e ° .o ////

SUPPLY 4" TOPSOIL DEPTH IN ALL PLANTING BEDS AND 4" TOPSOIL DEPTH IN OF 8—8-8 FERTILIZER PER 100 SQUARE FEET OF GROUND COVER PLANTING BEDS. (LUMESTONE MAY BE WAIVED IF EXISTING PH IS GREATER THAN 5.5.) © v . ° o L UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE PLANTING SOIL MIXTURE AS SPECIFIED

" ROTOTILL THE BEDS TO A DEPTH OF 6 INCHES AND SMOOTH TO AN EVEN AND >

ALL LAWN AREAS. BACKFILL AND CROWN PARKING LOT ISLANDS 6° ABOVE UNIFORM SURFACE. PLANT GROUND COVER MATERIALS, APPLY 2 INCHES OF RO =t =1 —

ADJACENT CURBS WITH TOPSOIL. BACKFILL DIRECTLY BEHIND ALL CURBS AND OROANIE MULEH aND WATER ' 4. MOISTEN PREPARED LAWN AREAS BEFORE PLANTING IF SOIL IS DRY. ALLOW NEEIEEEIENE

ALONG SIDEWALKS AND COMPACT TO TOP OF CURB OR WALK TO SUPPORT ’ : SURFACE MOISTURE TO DRY BEFORE PLANTING LAWNS. DO NOT CREATE A MUDDY L LEAVE BURLAP ON BALL, LOOSEN e T =0

VEHICLE AND PEDESTRIAN WEIGHT WITHOUT SETTLING. SOIL CONDITION. AT BASE OF TRUNK | EE — —

PLANTING NOTES s
9. ACCEPTANCE OF GRADING AND SOD/SEED SHALL BE BY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT - CONTRACTOR SHALL PRUNE CROWDED, BROKEN, OR STRAY BRANCHES. CUT FLUSH, LEAVING CAMBIUM EDGE CLEAN SPACE_AS INDICATED SPACE_AS INDICATED
2. HAND TAMPED PLANTING MIXTURE SHALL BE 1-PART APPROVED ORGANIC MATTER, 4—PARTS NATIVE SOIL, ; LB

AND/OR PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE. THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSUME
MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITY UNTIL FINAL ACCEPTANCE HAS BEEN RECEIVED.
MAINTENANCE SHALL INCLUDE WATERING, WEEDING, REPLACEMENT OF WASH-OUTS
AND OTHER OPERATIONS NECESSARY TO KEEP SOD/SEED IN A THRIVING
CONDITION. UPON FINAL ACCEPTANCE BY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AND/OR
OWNER'’S REPRESENTATIVE, THE OWNER WILL ASSUME ALL MAINTENANCE
RESPONSIBILITIES.

10. PLANT MATERIAL LOCATIONS SHOWN ARE DIAGRAMMATIC AND MAY BE SUBJECT
TO CHANGE IN THE FIELD AS REQUIRED.

11. REPAIR ALL DAMAGE TO PROPERTY FROM PLANTING OPERATIONS AT NO COST TO
THE OWNER.

12. OWNER OR OWNER’'S REPRESENTATIVE SHALL INSPECT LANDSCAPE INSTALLATION
AND HAVE THE RIGHT TO REJECT AND WITHHOLD PAYMENT ON ANY PLANT
MATERIAL(S) OF DAMAGED OR POOR QUALITY OR NOT MEETING SPECIFICATIONS.

13. LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR CLEAN—UP OF SITE AT
THE COMPLETION OF LANDSCAPING EACH DAY. AT ALL TIMES THE SIDEWALKS
SHALL BE MAINTAINED CLEAN AND FREE OF DEBRIS. REMOVE SURPLUS SOIL AND

14. LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR SOIL, EROSION AND DUST
CONTROL MEASURES PRIOR TO AND DURING CONSTRUCTION. THE LANDSCAPE
CONTRACTOR SHALL PREVENT EROSION OF SOIL AND ENTRY OF SOIL—BEARING
WATER AND AIRBORNE DUST ONTO ADJACENT PROPERTIES AND INTO THE PUBLIC
STORMWATER FACILITIES. REFER TO EROSION CONTROL PLANS FOR DETAILS.

8. FERTILIZER: JUMP—SHOT ROOT STIMULATOR AS MANUFACTURED BY ACME, OR
APPROVED EQUAL, SHALL BE APPLIED TO THE SOIL BACKFILL OF EACH PLANT
DURING INSTALLATION.

9. PLANT SIZING: MEASURE TREES AND SHRUBS ACCORDING TO ANS| 760.1
STANDARDS. TAKE CALIPER MEASUREMENTS 6 INCHES ABOVE GROUND FOR TREES
UP TO 4" CALIPER AND 12 INCHES ABOVE GROUND FOR LARGER TREES. ALWAYS
HANDLE BALLED AND BURLAPPED MATERIAL BY THE ROOT BALL. PLANT MATERIAL
SHALL BE DELIVERED TO THE SITE AND PLANTED THE SAME DAY.

ACTIVITIES. WHERE SOD/SEED ABUTS PAVED SURFACES, FINISHED GRADE OF FASTEN TREE TO STAKE WITH TREE LLI
MANUFACTURER’S INSTRUCTIONS UNLESS NOTED OTHERWSE SOD/SEED SHALL BE HELD 1" BELOW SURFACE ELEVATION OF TRAIL, SLAB, CURB, RING (DOUBLE STRAND #12 GAUGE >
’ ETC. SOD SHALL BE LAID PARALLEL TO THE CONTOURS AND SHALL HAVE — TWISTED WIRE & TWO PIECES OF 1/2” @ <
. STAGGERED JOINTS. ON SLOPES STEEPER THAN 3:1 OR IN DRAINAGE SWALES, DIA. RUBBER HOSE) Q
4. MULCH MATERIAL: ALL MULCH TO BE 4"—6" ROUNDED RIVER BED GRAVEL.WITH THE SOD SHALL BE STAKED TO THE GROUND. REFER TO PLAN FOR SOD,/SEED O 2 & PRESSURE TREATED _— O
8" MIN. DEPTH WITH WEED PREVENTION FABRIC. MULCH ALL PLANTING BEDS, LOCATIONS ] HARDWOOD STAKES 2
2'—0" STRIP ADJACENT TO LANDSCAPED AREA AROUND BUILDING AND TRASH Z \ O
ENCLOSURE, ALL EVERGREEN AND DECIDUOUS TREES TO RECEIVE 8” DEEP STONE 8. PRUNE, THIN AND SHAPE TREES AND SHRUBS ACCORDING TO STANDARD © —_ CROWN OF ROOTBALL SHALL BEAR BN
MULCH WITH NO STONE IN DIRECT CONTACT WITH TREE TRUNK. EXTENT OF MULCH HORTICULTURAL PRACTICES. APPLY MINIMUM 4" MULCH CUP AT ALL TREES NOT Z SAME RELATION TO FINISH GRADE AS @ D
TO BE 4-0" DIA. AT TREES. PLANTED IN PLANTING BEDS. < IT BORE TO PREVIOUS GRADE <
% H = 7p)]
5. TREE STAKING: IT SHALL BE THE CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY TO STAKE 9. EXISTING LAWN AREAS TO BE SAVED AND AREAS THAT ARE DAMAGED DURING = 4” DEPTH MULCH —
AND/OR GUY THE TREES ACCORDING TO THE DETAILS. IT IS THE CONTRACTOR'S CONSTRUCTION MUST BE INSPECTED TO DETERMINE VIABILITY. IF THE EXISTING ™ % & < z:
RESPONSIBILITY TO TAKE EVERY STEP NECESSARY TO MAINTAIN THE TREES AND LAWN IS FOUND TO BE LEVEL, HEALTHY, DENSE & FREE FROM WEEDS, LAWN MAY MMW @,\MM O — —
SHRUBS IN AN UPRIGHT AND PLUMB CONDITION AT ALL TIMES UNTL THE END OF NOT REQUIRE REPLACEMENT OR RENOVATION. ~IF RENOVATION IS REQUIRED OR IS CREATE SAUCER (6" MIN.) L
THE PLANT GUARANTEE PERIOD ESPECIALLY WHERE VANDALISM, SOIL OR WIND PART OF THE APPROVED PLAN, THEN THE FOLLOWING REQUIREMENTS WILL APPLY: Y INISH GRADE NOTES D
CONDITIONS ARE A PROBLEM. AT END OF GUARANTEE PERIOD ALL STAKES SHALL 1. DASHED LINES ILLUSTRATE BRANCHES AND STUMPS THAT ARE TO BE REMOVED.
BE REMOVED BY LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR. ALL STAKES USED FOR TREE EXISTING LAWN FOUND TO BE IN POOR CONDITION MUST FIRST BE SPRAYED WITH REMOVE 1/3 OF BURLAP, TWINE, ROPE 2. DO NOT REMOVE THE LEADER. I_ Ll
SUPPORTS SHALL POINT AWAY FROM ANY AND ALL CIRCULATION ROUTES. ROUND—UP (OR EQUAL) TO KILL THE EXISTING LAWN AND WEED AREAS. WAIT A AND BASKET FROM ROOTBALL 06 ol
MIN. OF (10) DAYS FOR THE HERBICIDE TO TAKE EFFECT, THEN REMOVE ALL = Z <
. DEAD SOD & WEEDS TO A MIN. DEPTH OF (2) INCHES. ADD A MIN. OF 6 = (_)
6. TREE WRAPPING: WRAPPING MATERIAL SHALL BE QUALITY, HEAVY WATERPROOF INCHES OF NEW TOPSOIL TO ALL LAWN AREAS. BACKFILL AND COMPACT - COMPACTED TOPSOLL M @ REMOVE SUCKERS & SHOOTS ARE BASE OF TREE L1l U)Lu P
CREPE PAPER MANUFACTURED FOR THIS PURPOSE. WRAP ALL DECIDUQUS TREES TOPSOIL TO THE TOP OF ALL CURBS & WALKS PRIOR TO SODDING. REGRADE TO o
PLANTED IN THE FALL PRIOR TO 12—1 AND REMOVE ALL WRAPPING AFTER 5-1. ELIMINATE ALL BUMPS & DEPRESSIONS AND RESOD ALL AREAS.
UNDISTURBED SOIL @ MAKE CLEAN CUTS ON OLD STUBS, IF PRESENT |— =
7. EDGING: EDGING SHALL BE METAL O PADE EDGED. EXISTING LAWN FOUND TO BE IN GOOD CONDITION, BUT WITH BARE, SPARSE OR <
SPECIFICATION SECSTION 339300* " e REFER T0 KM & 60 WEEDY AREAS MUST BE RENOVATED BY FILLING IN LOW AREAS, RAKING, @ REMOVE ENTIRE SUPPLY OF TWIGS & BUDS ON TRUNK ! (D —
OVERSEEDING AND TOP DRESSING ALL SPARSE AND BARE SPOTS AND BY ELEVATE ROOTBALL 2"—4" ABOVE [ER)
© =
O o

10. PLANTING PLAN: ALL PROPOSED PLANTS SHALL BE LOCATED CAREFULLY AS
SHOWN ON THE PLANS. PLAN TAKES PRECEDENCE OVER PLANT SCHEDULE IF
DISCREPANCIES IN QUANTITIES EXIST. SPECIFICATIONS TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER
NOTES. RESPECT STATED DIMENSIONS. DO NOT SCALE DRAWINGS.

MAINTENANCE / WARRANTY

1. MAINTENANCE OF PLANT MATERIALS AND LAWN AREAS SHALL BEGIN IMMEDIATELY
AFTER INSTALLATION AND SHALL CONTINUE UNTIL FINAL ACCEPTANCE, BUT IN NO

CASE, LESS THAN THE PERIOD STATED IN KUM & GO SPECIFICATION SECTION DRAIN SUFFICIENTLY. (REQUIRED IN HEAVY CLAY SOILS)
329200:
12. ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS SHALL HAVE PROPER DRAINAGE THAT PREVENTS EXCESS
2. AFTER REQUIRED MAINTENANCE PERIOD, THE OWNER, UPON REQUEST, WILL MAKE WATER FROM STANDING ON LAWN AREAS OR AROUND TREES & SHRUBS.
AN INSPECTION TO DETERMINE ACCEPTABILITY. UNACCEPTABLE WORK SHALL BE
REPAIRED OR REPLACED AND REINSPECTED BEFORE FINAL ACCEPTANCE IS 13. ALL MULCH RINGS AND SHRUB BEDS IN LAWN AREAS SHALL BE EDGED WITH A
GRANTED. MANICURED EDGE OR WITH MANUFACTURED EDGING AS INDICATED.
pd
3. A WRITTEN WARRANTY SHALL BE PROVIDED TO THE OWNER GUARANTEEING THAT 14. MULCHING AND WATERING OF ALL PLANTS & TREES SHALL BE IMMEDIATELY OR o
ALL PLANT MATERIALS, SOD, AND/OR SEEDED AREAS WILL BE THRIVING FOR THE WITHIN 16 HOURS AFTER INSTALLATION. J,L =
FOLLOWING STATED PERIODS: TREES, SHRUBS, AND GROUND COVERS — ONE YEAR ® DO NOT REMOVE LEADAER(S) ¥
AFTER FINAL ACCEPTANCE. SOD AND SEEDED AREAS — 90 DAYS AFTER FINAL PRUNE BRANCHES IF BROKEN OR (@) n
ACCEPTANCE PERENNIALS — 90 DAYS AFTER FINAL ACCEPTANCE. L AWN INSTALL ATION ‘ ‘ DAMAGE ONLY-SEE DETAIL THIS SHEET @ prd
2-6"R (TP) \\/ PLANT TREES AT SAME GROUND LEVEL @) O
4. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE THE OWNER WITH WRITTEN INSTRUCTIONS 1. LAWN AREAS SHALL BE PREPARED ACCORDING TO THE SECTION BELOW ENTITLED THEY WERE GROWN IN THE NURSERY z —_—
REGARDING MAINTENANCE OF EACH TYPE OF VEGETATION. THE OWNER IS "SEEDBED PREPARATION". —— EARTH/SPADE EDGE WITH 5"—6" 3" ORGANIC MULCH AS SPECIFIED o 7))
RESPONSIBLE FOR PROPER MAINTENANCE OF THE MATERIALS DURING THE MINIMUM OF MULCH AT EDGE o %) S
WARRANTY PERIOD AS OUTLINED IN THE MAINTENANCE INSTRUCTIONS. THE (FLUSH WITH TOP OF LAWN) = >
CONTRACTOR SHALL MAKE PERIODIC INSPECTIONS OF THE SITE AND WILL INFORM 2. LOCALLY-GROWN SOD SHALL BE PROVIDED IN AREAS WHERE SEEDING IS \‘}\v\\w)'./‘w\ _ MIN. w (11|
. NORMALLY UNSUCCESSFUL OR WILL BE UNSUCCESSFUL DUE TO CLIMATE, SEASON, 5;.«',«\«;\,//,';‘0,«\‘,‘7“ S ———— n )(A y 2\ P/ L A&( Idil e oraoe (4
THE OWNER OF ANY LACK OF PROPER MAINTENANCE IN WRITING. OWNER S OR OTHER TEMPORARY CONSTRAINT. SOD SHALL BE STRONGLY ROOTED, FREE OF A e B ) L EACKFILL WITH SOL FROM PLANT PIT e
mkgiﬁTLON%?rPngW{/TSDTHE MAINTENANCE PROGRAM SHALL RENDER THE WEEDS, AND OF UNIFORM THICKNESS WITH NO MORE THAN 1.5 INCHES OR LESS /\\\//\\\/Am SPECIFIED MULCH . 60° / %H (REMOVE ALL DEBRIS, SEE NOTE)
. THAN 1 INCH OF SOIL. e e e s 2 ' '
FINISH GRADE FOR LAWN \\/\\//\\//\\// ® Y RN ,o,:,:.:j Ijj REMOVE 1/3 OF BURLAP, TWINE, ROPE w
5. THE CONTRACTOR IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR ACTS OF NATURE INCLUDING D NN e L e N x ﬂ REIEELA KKK AND BASKET FROM ROOTBALL =
: 3. SOD SHALL BE TIGHTLY—FITTED TOGETHER. ENDS AND EDGES SHALL MEET s S [ H [ = 0 X B ERRIILKS ]
ABNORMAL WEATHER CONDITIONS, EROSION, VANDALISM, NOR DAMAGES BY NS \\ \\ \\ \\ S —— L - %0225 %% %% 4 SCARIFY SIDES OF PLANTING HOLE <
. . . WITHOUT OVERLAP AND JOINTS SHALL BE STAGGERED WITH ADJACENT ROWS. JISTNG. SO DN O N e ===l SPECIFED TOPSOLL ‘l l“ “ il = a
OTHERS. IF ANY CONDITIONS BEYOND THE CONTROL OF THE CONTRACTOR SHOULD AFTER INSTALLATION, SOD SHALL BE THOROUGHLY WATERED. ON SLOPES STEEPER . QAN || H—=r— ECIFIE sl ENEEE== BREAK 6" SUB-SOIL AS NECESSARY
OCCUR, THE MATERIALS AFFECTED WILL NO LONGER BE COVERED BY THE THAN 2:1, SOD SHALL BE HELD IN PLACE WITH WOODEN STAKES MEASURING 1 \///\///\///\/// ‘:‘ﬁ@ﬁ@ﬁ = =HITEN=ET=1TEI
WARRANTY. INCH SQUARE BY 6 INCHES LONG. STAKES SHALL BE DRIVEN FLUSH WITH THE A \\/\\\\\\\\ T
TOP OF THE SOD'S SOIL LAYER. ////\\///\// == 3 x BALL DIAVETER <]
NN ==
NOTES GENERAL NOTES

1. NO PLANTING TO BE INSTALLED UNTIL GRADING AND CONSTRUCTION HAS BEEN
COMPLETED IN THE IMMEDIATE AREA.

2. SEE CIVIL/SITE PLAN FOR ALL SITE DIMENSIONS, SQUARE FOOTAGES, PARKING
CALCULATIONS, AND DETAILS OF ALL SITE IMPROVEMENTS.

3. IF THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR PERCEIVES ANY DEFICIENCIES IN THE PLANT
SELECTIONS, SOIL CONDITIONS, OR ANY OTHER SITE CONDITION WHICH MIGHT
NEGATIVELY AFFECT PLANT MATERIAL ESTABLISHMENT, SURVIVAL, OR GUARANTEE,
THEY SHALL BRING THESE DEFICIENCIES TO THE ATTENTION OF THE LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

4. PRIOR TO ANY LAND CLEARING OR CONSTRUCTION, TREE PROTECTION FENCING IS
TO BE INSTALLED BY THE CONTRACTOR. THIS FENCING SHALL BE INSTALLED AT
THE DRIP LINE OF ALL TREES AND SHRUBS (TO BE PROTECTED) ACCORDING TO
THE TREE PROTECTION DETAIL AND MUST BE MAINTAINED FOR THE DURATION OF
THE PROJECT. NO CUTTING, FILLING OR TRESPASSING SHALL OCCUR INSIDE THE
FENCED AREAS WITHOUT APPROVAL.

5. ALL PLANTS TO BE INSTALLED AS PER PLANTING DETAILS. PLANT MATERIALS ARE
TO BE PLANTED IN THE SAME RELATIONSHIP TO GRADE AS WAS GROWN IN
NURSERY CONDITIONS. IF WET, CLAY SOILS OR POOR DRAINING SOILS ARE

6. ONE SHRUB PER TYPE AND SIZE IN EACH PLANTING BED AND EVERY TREE SHALL
BE CLEARLY IDENTIFIED (COMMON OR LATIN NOMENCLATURE) WITH A PLASTIC TAG
WHICH SHALL NOT BE REMOVED PRIOR TO OWNER ACCEPTANCE.

7. SEED AND/OR SOD ALL AREAS DISTURBED DUE TO GRADING AND CONSTRUCTION

INITIATING A WEED AND FEED PROGRAM.

10. CONVERSION OF ALL ASPHALT AND GRAVEL AREAS TO LANDSCAPE SHALL BE
DONE IN THE FOLLOWMING MANNER:

A. REMOVE ALL ASPHALT, GRAVEL AND COMPACTED EARTH TO A DEPTH OF
24"—-30" DEPENDING ON THE DEPTH OF SUB BASE AND DISPOSE OF OFF SITE.

B. REPLACE EXCAVATED MATERIAL W/ GOOD, MEDIUM TEXTURED PLANTING
SOIL (LOAM OR LIGHT YELLOW CLAY) TO A MIN. OF 2" ABOVE TOP OF CURB
AND SIDEWALK, ADD 4"—6" OF TOPSOIL AND CROWN TO A MIN. OF 6" ABOVE
ADJACENT CURB AND WALK AFTER EARTH SETTLING, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE
ON THE PLANS.

IF CONVERSION TO LANDSCAPE OCCURS IN AN EXISTING (OR BETWEEN)
LANDSCAPE AREAS, REPLACE EXCAVATED MATERIAL TO 4"—6" BELOW ADJACENT
EXISTING GRADE W/ GOOD MEDIUM TEXTURED PLANTING SOIL (LOAM OR LIGHT
YELLOW CLAY) AND ADD 4"-6" OF TOPSOIL TO MEET EXISTING GRADES AFTER
EARTH SETTLING.

11. ALL TREE PITS MUST BE TESTED FOR PROPER DRAINAGE PRIOR TO PLANTING
TREES. A DRAINAGE SYSTEM MUST BE INSTALLED IF PLANTING PIT DOES NOT

TURFGRADE FERTILIZER WITH SLOW RELEASE NITROGEN (E.G. 18—24—10) —

. R R
., .,\\//\\ QY //\\\4

10-10-10 FERTILIZER PER CUBIC YARD OF BACKFILL OR APPROVED SUBSTITUTE

DECIDUOUS CANOPY TREE PLANTING DETAIL

NOT TO SCALE

AN .A\y}’
Y y.(‘(
N
AN

NN R
e o 8,879t

(AN

) N
\ Q,"p\h 7
&N (A

UNDISTURBED SOIL

GENERAL NOTES
1. DO NOT ALLOW AIR PICKETS TO FORM WHEN BACKFILLING.

2. DO NOT DAMAGE MAIN ROOTS OR DESTROY ROOT BALL WHEN INSTALLING TREE STAKE.
3. REMOVE TREE RINGS AND STAKES TWO YEAR AFTER INSTALLATION.
4. WATER TREE THOROUGHLY SUBSEQUENT TO INSTALLATION.

CONIFEROUS TREE PLANTING DETAIL

NOT TO SCALE

SHRUB/PERENNIAL BED DETAIL

NOT TO SCALE

1459 Grand Ave

A S D DEBRS FS'?F%ET:ﬁDS'I_TC';:C:[‘DCC')-SEQ'-"&LDD'SPOSE oF EVIDENT, PLANT HIGHER. REMOVE ALL TWINE, WIRE AND BURLAP FROM TOP 1/3 &\\M Des Moines, IA 50309
' . DINRI .
REGULATIONS. OF ROOT BALL AND FROM TREE TRUNKS 4\\\\\ P: 888-458-6646

SHAPE TREE BY REMOVING DAMAGED & MISSHAPEN
BRANCHES

@ REMOVE CROSS BRANCHES & THOSE DEVELOPING INTO

SECONDARY LEADERS

DECIDUOUS TREE PRUNING DETAIL

NOT TO SCALE

S

KG PROJECT TEAM:
RDM: DAVE LEMONS
SDM: RYAN HALDER

CPM: SCOTT NEWBURY

NOTES IF ROOT BALL IS WRAPPED IN NON-BIODEGRADEABLE BURLAP, REMOVE ENTIRE WRAP AFTER PLACED IN PIT. WHEN DATE:
1. USE WHEREVER MULCHED PLANTINGS TRANSITION TO TURN AREAS, INCLUDING BACKFILLING PLANT PIT, PLACE PLANTING OIL IN TWO LIFTS. AFTER FIRST LIFE, PUDDLE SOIL IN WITH WATER TO REMOVE 05-19-2022
ALL TREE MULCH RINGS, SHRUB BEDS, MASS PLANTING BEDS, ETC. ALL AR POCKETS. PLACE SECOND LIFT AND REPEAT. CONTINUE TO PUDDLE AND FILL AS NECESSARY

EARTH/SPADE EDGE DETAIL MULTI-STEMMED PLANTING DETAIL SHEET NUMBER

NOT TO SCALE NOT TO SCALE 09

09 OF 14

CAD FILE: K:\22000815\DWG\PLAN SETS\SITE—PRELIMINARY\22000815—09—LS-DT



10
10 OF 14



44U IOH4UV Id 145 144HS LUUVA\AAVNINI 138d—4LIS\SLIS NV Id\UMU\YIBUOUCCN\ - -4 11d UV

6180002z # €or VI ‘A8 NMvyd SAN “'IW'd % wzo_m_>mm
23 g STVLIA NDIS <
0086-98/ (985) <0 Q > N ~
518y IN ‘dIHSNMOL AGT3HS o < o E S
00z 3LINS ‘av0d JIN €2 S¥/Zl S 55 2% 8 N -~ W
woo'dnoIB-||aMITMMM  00Z 058998 5 O Y w=3Jm =2 P S

o<2 [AS AV OO0ZVIAVIVM B 4S LS ANCS 40 OMS| - 5z 2 58 2

0 S © ( =28 < 2
" gt IN"JOOMLNIN - v19¢ gEc? NN s

o i == wo |

=) 03235 NOILdI¥0S3a NOISIATY awva | \/ |z £




12
12 OF 14




13
13 OF 14



14
14 OF 14






PUD Statement 52°% and Kalamazoo Avenue
February 6, 2003, revised February 24, 2003
Page 2

Driveways:

All existing driveways on Kalamazoo and 52" Street will be removed. One driveway will
be permitted on Kalamazoo and one driveway will be permitted on 5 2" Street. The
driveway on 52™ Street shall be located on the westernmost side of the development, and
is anticipated to allow both left and right turns in and out of the driveway. The
driveway on Kalamazoo Avenue shall either align with the driveway for the credit union
(or another future use), or shall be located further to the south than the credit union
driveway. A traffic impact analysis will be required in accordance with Section 13.02 of
the Kentwood Zoning Ordinance. This analysis will determine whether the Kalamazoo
driveway will be a full service driveway, or whether access will be restricted. This traffic
analysis shall also take into account the impact of the Southbelt on Kalamazoo Avenue,
shall determine the need for additional intersection improvements, evaluate traffic flow
and final driveway location/alignment on both Kalamazoo Avenue and 52" Street.

Architectural features:

Building roof elevations shall be in a low profile residential style with peaked roof or
another roof style approved by the Planning and City Commissions. The buildings shall
not overpower the residential uses to the south and west. The building shall be primarily
of brick on all sides, with architectural features that create interest and break up large
expanses of wall area, '

Site Design:

The building(s) shall be designed to avoid the appearance of overcrowding on the site and
the adjoining homes. Although the CPUD regulations require 30% green space provided
on the site, less green space will be considered if other site amenities area provided. The
main building shall be limited to approximately 11,000 square feet in area, with an
additional 6,000 square foot office building permitted along the south side of the site.

The Police and Fire Departments must review and approve the building location for the
safety and security of the building occupants and area residents.

The building must be residential is scale and design. Parking shall be held to a minimum
for the planned or potential uses; deferred parking shall be encouraged as long as it can
be shown that the deferred parking can be provided at a later date on site needed without
impacting the total required green space. Servicing/loading within the buildings shall
occur between the hours of 9:00A.M. to 3:00P.M. Circulation around the site shall
ensure separation of pedestrian and service vehicles, and shall provide easy access to
sidewalks on Kalamazoo Avenue and 52™ Street. The site will allow for bicycle access
and parking. Service traffic shall be kept as far away from residential uses as possible.

Sidewalks shall be constructed on the subject property outside the public right-of-way
and public easements will be provided to allow public access to the sidewalks.



PUD Statement 52" and Kalamazoo Avenue

February 6, 2003, revised February 24,2003

Page3

Section 12.05 C 4 g requires that provision be made to accommodate improvements to
public transit service. Section 12.05 C 5 frequires an applicant to make provision for a
pedestrian circulation system.

Sections of the PUD Ordinance that will require a waiver:
The CPUD regulations allow for deviations from certain requirements of the zoning
ordinance. The following ordinance sections may require a waiver:

o Section 12.02 C 3: Waiver from the minimum lot size of 5 acres

e Section 12.05 C 5 a: Waiver from the requirement of an average greenbelt of 30
and no less than 20’ along public streets

e Section 12.05 C 5 h: Waiver from the requirement of 30% open space exclusive
of areas of deferred parking

e Section 12.05 C 5 d: Waiver from the requirement of extensive gathering and
seating plazas, greenways and tree-lined drives within parking lots.

Hours of Operation:
The hours of operation for the businesses within the PUD shall be limited times that are
compatible with residential uses, from approximately 7:00 A.M. to 10:00 P.M.

Lighting Standards:
The site lighting shall be in compliance with Chapter 20 of the Kentwood Zoning

Ordinance. After the businesses are closed daily, the lighting for the site shall be reduced
to serve for security purposes only. -

Landscaping/Parking:

Landscaping shall be designed to provide 2 pleasing, permanent look for this corner.
Parking shall be limited in the front setback area along the 52™ and Kalamazoo rights of
way. Parking shall be screened by landscaping and berming. The landscaping shall be
Jow enough to provide visibility from the street for both customers and employees.
Landscaping shall meet or exceed Zoning Ordinance standards along the western and
southern property lines. Landscaping shall be maintained at all times, including
replacement of dead and damaged plants and regular trimming to maintain proper plant
heights.

Adjacent uses:
The site shall be designed with the clear intention that commercial uses will not be
extended further south and west of the parcel.



101 31ievoMaN

2-id .
. 43NezZ

2-n a3noz
L10-0Rbe IV

30 FOOT LANDSCAPE BUFFER

g5k I
fﬂ\ 5
. i e
I i &
H g . 8 ] N
18| L, s |
: " 30 g5 1|3 E .
Ry §§gi§§§ o8
: [ : ngé —ég‘ﬂh [ ]
: i
| §[R 1 § ;
E 1 : gg
4 , ¥ 33
b R . N
jﬁg(’\\ |
- : — g{aﬁs} i e e o A o
S L
14
§ kALAMAZDoAVENUE o
: T |
!
T—W F( | !
N N |
: ?
| 5 t "
: 7 ! z
| GE ! i ! .
. 5 l r Q L)
|' 4 | 8 T S
| [+ , - W
| P

Wi S-PhYAS

' §§§5§§5§ T
i g% 3 " "Egsag .Eg; ~_;

SZ_H’ ApD KALANMZ,OONA\!,ENUE 5| ' e
COMCEPTUAL PUL 7l y e




April 1, 2003

CITY OF KENTWOOD
ORDINANCE NO. 8-03

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF KENTWOOD ZONING ORDINANCE BEING
ORDINANCE NO. 9-02, AS AMENDED, TO REZONE APPROXIMATELY THREE ACRES
FROM C-2 COMMUNITY COMMERCIAL, C-4 OFFICE AND R-2 TWO FAMILY
RESIDENTIAL TO CPUD COMMERCIAL PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT
(SOUTHWEST CORNER 57ND STREET & KALAMAZOO AVENUE)

THE CITY OF KENTWOOD ORDAINS:

SECTION 1.

The Zoning Ordinance, Ordinance No. 9-02, is hereby amendeci to change the following
described area of land from R1-C Single Family Residential to OS Open Space viz:

Part of the NE ¥% of Section 32, T6N, R11W, City of Kentwood, Kent County, Michigan,
being further described as beginning at the NE corner of said Section; thence South
01933°46” West 379.06 feet along the East Section line; thence North 86°30°28”West
351.26 feet; thence North 01°33°46” East 100.06 feet; thence South 86°30°28” East 9.25
feet; thence North 01°33°46”East 279.00 feet, to the North Section line; thence South
86°30°28”Fast 342.00 feet, along said line, to the Point of Beginning, contaihing 3.00
acres, more or less. ‘

Section 2.
This Ordinance shall be effective ten (10) days following its publication.

The foregoing Ordinance was offered by Commissioner McGookey, supported by Commissioner
Pemning, the vote being as follows:

YEAS: Commissioners: Brinks, Cummings, McGookey, Penning, Vander Laan and Mayor
Root. '

NAYS: Commissioner Clanton.

ABSTAIN: None.

ABSENT: None.
%%z 2nes )

Mary Bremer
Deputy City Clerk

I hereby certify the foregoing to be a true copy of an ordinance adopted at a regular meeting of
the Kentwood City Commission held March 18, 2003.

77%%7 )é@m%)

Mary Bremer
Deputy City Clerk



KENTWOOD CITY COMMISSION

APPROVED
FINDINGS OF FACT
APRIL 15,2003

PROJECT: : 52 Street and Kalamazoo PUD
APPLICATION: 2-03
REQUEST: Rezoning of 3 acres of land from C-2 Community Commercial, C-4

Office, and R-2 Two Family Residential to CPUD Commercial

Planned Unit Development
LOCATION: Southwest corner of 52™ Street and Kalamazoo Avenue
HEARING DATE: April T, 2003
MOTION:

Motion by McGookey, supported by Penning, to approve
Ordinance 8-03 to rezone three acres of land from C-2 Community
Commercial, C-4 Office and R-2 Two Family Residential to CPUD
Commercial Planned Unit Development at the southwest corner of
52nd Street and Kalamazoo Avenue with condition 1 and basis
points 1 through 6 as stated in the Planning Commission Findings
of Fact dated March 11, 2003.

Roll Call Vote: Yeas: Brinks, Cummings, McGookey, Penning, Vander Laan and Mayor Root.
Nays: Clanton. Absent: None

Ordinance Adopted.

CONDITIONS:
1. The development of the 52°¢ Street and Kalamzoo Planned Unit Development
shall be consistent with the PUD Narrative dated February 6, 2003, and
revised February 24, 2003.

BASIS:

1. The property proposed for the rezoning is comprised of three parcels of land
under three different zoning districts. Given the high traffic volumes of the
abutting arteria) streets, it would be difficult to develop these parcels separately.
The use of the Planned Unit Development allows the development of the parcels
with greater flexibility than traditional zoning.

2. The zoning is consistent with the Master Plan, which recommends commercial
and office use for the site. The proposed CPUD permits uses in both the C-4 and
the C-2 zones.



Approved C.C. Findings of Fact
Case No. 2-03 52 and Kalamazoo Rezoning

Page?2

There are residential uses to the west and south. Use of the CPUD zone will

ensure that these residential uses are protected from the impact of the future
commercial use.

The CPUD statement is written to allow maximum flexibility for the future
redevelopment of the property. The PUD statement will also require that the
PUD be tied to specific development requirements that will create a safe and
attractive development that will not have a negative impact on the area.

The proposed rezoning meets the requirements of Section 13.03 C of the
Kentwood Zoning Ordinance.

Discussion during the work session and public hearings.



PROJECT:
APPLICATION:
REQUEST:

LOCATION:

HEARING DATE:

MOTION:

CONDITIONS:
L.

BASIS:

KENTWOOD CITY COMMISSION
APPROVED
FINDINGS OF FACT
APRIL 15, 2003

527 Street and Kalamazoo Commercial Planned Unit Development
2-03

Preliminary Site Plan for a Commercial Planned Unit Development
Southwest corner of 52" Street and Kalamazoo Avenue

April 1, 2003

Motion by McGookey, supported by Cummings, to approve the
Preliminary Site Plan for a Commercial Planned Unit
Development at the southwest corner of 52" Street and
Kalamazoo Avenue with conditions 1 and 2 and basis points 1
through 4 as stated in the Planning Commissien Findings of Fact
dated March 11, 2003.

- Motion Carried.

The development of the Commercial Planned Unit Development shall be
consistent with the PUD Narrative dated February 6, 2003, and revised February
24,2003.

Applicant shall initiate a land division to formally separate the R1-C portion of
the applicant’s property from the proposed CPUD to create a legal lot on
Newcastle Avenue.

The CPUD statement is written to allow maximum flexibility for the future
redevelopment of the property. The PUD statement will also require that the
PUD be tied to specific development requirements that will create a safe and
attractive development that will not have a negative impact on the area.

The PUD statement indicates the general site requirements and design,
architectural features and anticipated waivers from the PUD regulations of the
Kentwood Zoning Ordinance.



Approved C.C. Findings of Fact

Case No. 2-03 52™ and Kalamazoo PUD Plan
Page 2

3. Aland division and combination will be required to formally divide the R-2
parcel and combine it with the adjacent parcel on Newcastle Avenue, If the land
division does not take place the parcel may not have access to a public street.

4. Discussion during work session and public hearings.






PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Golder 10-19-04

PROJECT

APPLICATION:

REQUEST:

HEARING DATE:

RECOMMENDATION:

CONDITIONS:
1.
2.
3
4.
5
6.

Thomson’s Automotive Repair
35-04

Special Land Use Approval for an Automotive Repair
Establishment

October 26, 2004

Recommend conditional approval of the Special Land Use
automotive repair as described in Case No. 35-04.
Approval is conditioned on the following:

Operation shall be consistent with that as described in the
operations description dated September 9, 2004, with the
removal of reference to the rock garden and the split rail fence
around the perimeter of the site.

City and property owner shall enter into a development
agreement incorporating representations made regarding the
operation and the nature of the proposed lease with the
applicant.

. No outside storage of parts of any kind on the site.

All vehicle work shall be done within the existing building.

. All vehicles shall be parked in designated parking spaces as

indicated on the site plan. All vehicles on the site must be
licensed and operable.

Applicant shall complete the restoration work on the building
as described in the Special Land Use application prior to
starting the automotive repair operation on the site.



Planning Staff Recommendation
35-04 Thomson’s Auto Repair - SLU

Page 2

BASIS:

The operation description for the project refers to hours of
operation, types of repairs to be completed, and improvements
to be made to the building and the site. These standards are
necessary to ensure that the property does not become a
nuisance to the neighborhood or create public safety issues.

The proposed use is not consistent with the CPUD statement
for this site or the recommendations of the Planning and City
Commissions with respect to the site. It is an interim use of the
property, and as such is not intended to be located at this site
long term. The proposed lease allows the owners of the
property to terminate the lease with a 90 day notice to
accommodate a use that is more consistent with the standards
set forth in the PUD statement. The city has not received an
executed copy of the lease. The representations made
regarding this lease must be recorded to ensure that it applies to
current and future property owners.

The site for the proposed automotive repair establishment is
small and it is located on a visible corner of two arterial
streets. Automobile parts or inoperable vehicles on the site
will defeat the purpose of keeping the site clean and attractive.

The applicant has committed to the improving the appearance
of the building. The improvement of the building is key to
permitting a use that is otherwise inconsistent with the PUD
statement adopted for the site.

Discussion at work session and public hearing.



PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Golder 10-18-04

PROJECT
APPLICATION:
REQUEST:
HEARING DATE:
RECOMMENDATION:
CONDITIONS:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
BASIS:
1.

Thompson’s Automotive

35-04

Site Plan Review an Automotive Repair establishment
October 26, 2004

Recommend conditional approval of the site plan dated
October 19, 2004 for Thomson Automotive Repair as
described in Case No. 35-04. Approval is based on the
following:

Staff approval of the landscaping plan for the site.

Compliance with the City Engineer’s memo dated October 14,
2004.

Compliance with the Fire Department review memo dated
October 5, 2004.

The applicant shall work with staff on the additional lighting
proposed for the site.

Approval by the Planning Commission of the Special Land Use
Automotive Repair.

The applicant will need to provide additional detail on the
Jandscaping proposed for the site. The landscaping plan shall
include, but not be limited to, information on the types and
quantity of landscape material in the planting strip between the
sidewalk and street pavement, the proposed green area at the
corner of 52" and Kalamazoo, moveable planters, and the
dumpster enclosure.



Planning Staff Recommendation
35-04 Thomson Auto Repair — Site Plan
Page 2
2. The review of the lighting plan will ensure that the lighting
proposed is consistent with the Zoning Ordinance.

3. While the site plan does not meet all the requirements of the
Zoning Ordinance, it is located within a Commercial Planned
Unit Development which gives the city flexibility in applying
the ordinance standards. The plan will bring the building and
site closer to conformance with city ordinances.

4, Discussion at work session and public hearing.






City of Kentwood Master Plan

commercial and office uses—although these uses will be
limited to those that would have low impact on the
neighborhood and generate only a limited amount of traffic.
Heavy screening will be required for the area of the site
adjacent to the Princeton Estates housing development.

40 Street and Kalamazoo Avenue:

There is a potential for a green gateway at the northeast,
comer of the intersection of Kalamazoo and 80m Street. As a
PUD development a landscape greenbelt area is required, as
well as sensitivity to the residential uses to the north and east.

Open space could also be incorporated into the plan for the
development of the northwest corner of the intersection.
Again, sensitivity is required between commercial uses and to
the apartments located to the north,

Principle 2: Mobility
A. Arterial Streets
Kalamazoo Avenue is an arterial street. The city made the
decision to reconstruct Kalamazoo Avenue as a four-lane
boulevard, making the street safer and more livable while
accommodating the volume of traffic in the conidor. In order
to minimize the impact on adjacent property owners, the city
did not acquire much additional right-of-way along the
Kalamazoo corridor. Therefore, there is not room within the
right-of-way for all of the elements of Complete Streets. Bike
paths are only available from the 5000 block north to Pickett
Street. However, sidewalks are available along both sides of
the remaining Kalamazoo Avenue frontage. The city should
strive o make crossing the major arterial streets easier through
the incorporation of better crosswalk demarcation at the four
constructed mid-block refuge island locations as well as at
major intersections along Kalamazoo Avenue,

When Kalamazoo Avenue was developed into a boulevard
street, the construction did not include street trees because
the width of the parkway (between the street pavement and
the sidewalk) is insufficient to plant trees. However, trees have
since been planted within the boulevard medians along
Kalamazoo Avenue from 44 Street through 60t Street.

64

B. Primary Intersections

As previously noted, the Kalamazoo Avenue corridor is very
distinctive given: its interchange with the M-6 limited access
freeway less that one mile south of 40t Street; its classification
as a commercial truck route; the significant presence of
residential neighborhoods along and within the square miles
off the corridor; and little or no allowance for direct left turn
movements within the major arterial intersections at 60%
Street, 52nd Street and 44 Street. Subsequently the
boulevard cross section of Kalamazoo Avenue is designed to
preserve and protect the adjoining residential development
as well as safely optimize the movement of traffic along the
major arterial street while affording reasonable access to
frontage properties. These circumstances place a premium
on cross/shared access between frontage parcels as well as
locating driveways away from the major intersections and
median crossovers. As properties at the primary intersections
redevelop, a traffic analysis will be required to assure the
proposed point of access into the property complements the
boulevard and safely accommodates the nature and
volume of traffic associated with the new use.

Minimizing the number of driveways, locating driveways further
from the 52nd and 60~Kalamazoo intersections and cross
access between all parcels will be critical. At the northeast
corner of 60t and Kalamazoo, access will be limited to one
driveway on the Kalamazoo street frontage. Similar limitations
will be applied to the 52nd and Kalamazoo intersection as it
redevelops, consistent with the adopted PUD concept plan on
the southwest quadrant.

C. Non-Motorized Facilities

Sidewalks are available along both sides of Kalamazoo
Avenue, In order to minimize the impact on adjacent property
owners, the city did not acquire much additional right-of-way
along the Kalamazoo corridor. Bike paths are only available
from the 5000 block north to Pickett Street. The clty should
strive to make crossing the major arterial streets easier through
the incorporation of better crosswalk demarcation at the
constructed mid-block locations as well as at major



intersections along Kalamazoo Avenue. In additian,
connections fo adjacent non-motorized paths should be
made, along with wayfinding signs fo direct people to
attractions, stores, and parks nearby. For example, the hon-
motorized plan identifies existing and future connections to the
Paul Henry Trail, parks, and a historic home. Wayfinding signs
could direct people to these resources,

D. Transit Services
Transit is currently offered within the Kalamazoo Avenue
comidor from 52nd Street to 60 Street and from 44t Street south
to the Kent County Health Department facility at 4700
Kalamazoo Avenue, SE. Although the extent of the service is
limited, there exists opportunity to walk and bike along
‘Kalamazoo Avenue fo the transit stops between 441 Street
and 40 Street on Kalamazoo Avenue.

E. Air, Rall, and Truck Transport

Kalamazoo Avenue is a truck route that will continue to
connect M-6 and other freeways to the community. Traffic
counts from 2018 suggest that there are 24,000 vehicle trips
daily on Kalamazoo Avenue near 60t Sireet and 20,000
vehicle trips near the intersection of Kalamazoo Avenue and
52nd Street.” As commercial properties develop in Kentwood at
these intersections, more truck traffic will be apparent,

Since residences are located along Kalamazoo, median
landscaping and street trees are critical to minimize noise and
impact on adjacent residential properties.

Principle 3: Place Strengthening
A, Gateway:
The Kalamazoo Avenue coridor offers an opportunity for
gateways into Kentwood at the intersections with é0m Street
and 44 Street, A likely location for a significant gateway
would be at the northeast comer of 60 and Kalamazoo. The
gateway feature could be incorporated into the future
commercial development planned for the intersection,
possibly maintained by the owner of the development. This
type of gateway is less likely at the 441 and Kalamazoo
intersection because of limited space for a gateway feature;
welcome signage could be incorporated instead.

65

B. Sense of Place:

The Kalamazoo conidor may also provide some opportunity
to provide a distinct look for the city. At 52nd and Kalamazoo,
the redevelopment of the southeast and southwest corners of
the intersection may provide a revitalization that can provide
a sense of place. At these locations, a PUD zone could be
used ta establish parking, setbacks, and to specify building
materials. The C-5 Neighborhood Commercial zone may also
be utilized by developers as this zone allows reduced
setbacks and parking. Since Kalamazoo Avenue fraffic is
increasing, the redevelopment of the intersection is
inevitable, and demand for the redevelopment of the
intersection is likely.

The opportunity exists for a unique development on the
northeast corner of Kalamazoo and 60 Street. Since the
adoption of the 2012 Master Plan, the City rezoned the
property o PUD and adopted a general pian that sets
standards for a unified development. The overallintent is to
ensure that the uses in the PUD are reasonably compatible
with the adjacent neighbornood and does not have a
negative impact on the function of the street system or
intersection. -

Principle 4; Parinerships and Organization
The redevelopment of the é0mStreet and Kalamazoo Avenue
intersection will require cooperation between Gaines Charter
Township, the Kent County Road Commission and the City of
Kentwoad. In addition, Kentwood and Gaines Township will
need ta cooperate regarding bike trails, school fraffic, event
planning, and traffic issues on the Kalamazoo coridor.

Principle 5: Sustainability
The existence of vacant buildings along Kalamazoo Avenue
detract from the sustainability of the comidor. The city may
want to consider incentives to encourage the
redevelopment of vacant buildings and under-developed
sites before undertaking the development of green fields
such the northeast corner of 60ih and Kalamazoo Avenue. At
various locations along the conidor, properties may exist that
have environmental limitations which must be addressed fo






~
E113148]

Figure 11: Kalomazoo and 52 Sireet development concepts

40 Street and Kalamazoo Avenue

This area is located in a segment of the greater Grand Rapids
market that has enjoyed success for retail development,
especially south of the city of Kentwood. The development of
the South Beltline (M-} and interchange with Kalamazoo
Avenue is a logical location for retail development.

Within Kentwood, at the northwest comer of the Kalamazoo
and é0m Street intersection is an underdeveloped shopping
center. Given the difficulty to develop the site, the city has
considered amendment of the Master Plan to allow
residential use within the undeveloped portion of the
commercial center.

67

The Master Plan recommends commercial use for the
northeast corner of é0in Street and Kalamazoo Avenue,
although sensitivity needs to be employed between
commercial uses and the adjacent residential neighborhood.
The city has rezoned and adopted a PUD plan for this
intersection to address ingress and egress, storm water
detention, cross access, signage, and restricted land uses.

Guiding Development Concepts for 40m and Kalamazoo
Avenue (Northeast Corner)

« The area shall be developed as one integrated planned unit
development, even if properiies within the overall site may
not be in common ownership.

* Development will be sensitive to adjacent residential uses
to the north and northeast.

* Quality architecture and landscaping will be a requirement
for the PUD development at this intersection. Buildings will be
predominantly brick with asphalt shingled sloped roofs,

« A traffic impact study will be required for the site at the time
of the application for the first proposed use. Access to
Kalamazoo will be limited to no more than one full movement
driveway; access onto 40m Street will be limited to no more
than one full movement driveway and one right-turn in, right-
turn out driveway.

* The PUD plan shall integrate vehicular and pedestrian
circulation throughout the overall site including reciprocal
parking, maintenance agreements and cross access.

« An identity feature will be required at the corner of 40 and
Kalamazoo but can be incorporated into the development,
Clear vision will need to be maintained at the intersection.






STAFF REPORT:

June 6, 2022

PREPARED FOR: Kentwood Planning Commission

PREPARED BY: Lisa Golder

CASE NO.: 17-22 Kum and Go SLU and Site Plan Review Vehicle Fuel Station

GENERAL INFORMATION

APPLICANT: Kum & Go L.C. rep by: Michael McPherson, Atwell LLC
Ryan Halder 12745 23 Mile Road Suite 200
1459 Grand Ave Shelby Twp MI 48315
Des Moines IA 50309

STATUS OF

APPLICANT: Owner and owner’s representative

REQUESTED ACTION: Applicant is requesting Special Land Use approval and Site Plan
Review of a vehicle fuel station located at 5215 Kalamazoo
Avenue.

EXISTING ZONING OF

SUBJECT PARCEL.: CPUD Commercial Planned Unit Development

GENERAIL LOCATION:
5215 Kalamazoo Avenue, 1570 52" Street and 1549 Kalamazoo
Avenue

PARCEL SIZE: 2.28 Acres

EXISTING LAND USE

ON THE PARCEL.: Existing automotive repair, two single family residential homes

ADJACENT AREA N: 52" Street and gas station

LAND USES: S: Duplex
E: Kalamazoo Avenue, vacant land
W:Single family homes

ZONING ON ADJOINING

PARCELS: N: C-2 Commercial

S: R-2 Two Family Residential
E: C-4 Office
W:R1-C Single Family Residential



Kum and Go-Kalamazoo and 52™ Street
SLU and Site Plan Review
Page 2

Compatibility With Master Plan

The Master Plan recommends commercial use for this location. The 2010 Master Plan
incorporated a charrette process to obtain neighborhood input into the development of the major
intersections along the Kalamazoo corridor. Neighborhood commercial uses or office uses were
~ recommended. The 2020 Master Plan recommends small-scale development to serve the
immediate residents as well as convenience for commuters. The 2020 Master Plan also
establishes some development concepts for the intersection of 52" Street and Kalamazoo
Avenue, as follows:

e Establish opens space (green or hardscape plaza) at the intersection corners

Provide parking behind buildings, if possible

No expansion of commercial or office

Landscaped buffers/screens for residential uses adjacent to commercial or office uses
Area must be walkable

Shared access must be provided between buildings

Ensure that access to public streets works with boulevard design of Kalamazoo Avenu
e A traffic analysis will be required with the development.

e Commercial uses to serve the immediate area or commuters

e Plan is long term and marketable.

Relevant Zoning Ordinance Sections

Chapter 15.04 D lists the Special Land Use requirements for Vehicle Fuel Stations. General
standards for Special Land Uses are found in Section 15.02. Site plan review standards are found
in Section 14.05.

Zoning History

The site was initially developed as a gas station, and then approved as an automotive repair
establishment called Don and Sons in 1995. At one time the site was also considered for a
pharmacy. In 2003 the Planning and City Commissioners approved a city-sponsored rezoning of
the site to Commercial Planned Unit Development (CPUD). The CPUD approval was based on
a PUD Statement dated February 6, 2003 and February 24, 2003 (See attached PUD Statement
and City Commission approval). The rezoning was for property of approximately 3 acres in size;
this is larger than the acreage proposed for the Kum and Go development because the rezoning
included the 52™ Street and Kalamazoo Avenue rights of way (extended to the centerline).
Excluding the rights of way, the proposed site is 2.28 acres in area.

The 2003 PUD Statement specified a preference for Permitted or Special Land Uses that would
not generate significant traffic in the peak hour of operation for the intersection. The CPUD also

specifies that the hours of operation for any use be compatible with residential uses, from
approximately 7:00AM-10:00PM.

The 2003 PUD statement was intended to be utilized in the review of future proposed plans for
the corner. A plan for Thompsons Auto Repair was approved by the city in 2004. The use was



Kum and Go-Kalamazoo and 52"¢ Street
SLU and Site Plan Review
Page 3

seen as an interim measure prior to a development project that would incorporate all of the land
zoned Commercial Planned Unit Development.

The proposed Kum and Go plan was reviewed by the Land Use and Zoning Subcommittee in
January of 2022; the Committee was generally in favor of the concept.

TECHNICAL INFORMATION

Street and Traffic

The site is located at the southwest corner of 52™ Street and Kalamazoo Avenue. Kalamazoo
Avenue at the 52™ Street intersection is a 4-lane road that includes two northbound and two
southbound lanes and a right turn lane at 52™ Street. Lanes for indirect left turns are located north
and south of the intersection; only the north indirect left crossover is suitable for truck traffic. A
grass median prohibits left turns into and out of the proposed Kum and Go development from
Kalamazoo Avenue. 52" Street is a two-lane road with a center turn lane. At the intersection
with Kalamazoo Avenue, 52" Street allows for direct left hand turns for both northbound and
southbound traffic. There are dual left turns onto Kalamazoo from west-bound 52°¢ Street.

The Kum and Go development proposes two driveways. The Kalamazoo driveway allows right-
in and right-out movements only. The width of the driveway is 50 feet. The applicant shall provide
turning templates to confirm the need for this width. Pavement markings may also be employed
to ensure that vehicles entering and exiting the site remain in their designated lanes; a deceleration
lane may be necessary to allow traffic to get out of the through lanes and make a turn into the site
at a safe speed. Slower speeds are also safer for pedestrians walking through the area.

The 52nd Street driveway allows full movement of traffic in and out of the site. The applicant must
address any issues this may create with left turns into Newcastle Drive. The proposed 52°¢ Street
driveway is also 55 feet in width. Again, the applicants shall provide information to justify the
need for this width.

Trip Generation and Traffic Analysis

Applicant has submitted a Traffic Impact Study as required by the Zoning Ordinance and by the
conditions of the CPUD approval for this site. The traffic analysis was based on 2018 traffic
volumes of 20,065 vehicles per day on Kalamazoo Avenue and 2016 traffic volume of 16,469
vehicle trips per day on 52" Street. The analysis reviewed current conditions, and then estimated
future conditions, given the proposed gas station use. The study concluded that all intersection
approaches continue to operate at an acceptable level of service (LoS D or better). The study also
identified between 16% and 35% of the traffic volume as “pass-by” trips, or trips by vehicles that
were already on the roadway and therefore not created by the new development. In addition, the
study concluded that there were adequate gaps in through traffic to allow turns left into and out of
the 52" Street driveway without excessive queueing. A summary of the traffic analysis is attached.
The city is working with a traffic consultant to review the conclusions of the traffic study and to




Kum and Go-Kalamazoo and 52™ Street
SLU and Site Plan Review
Page 4

determine whether the Commission should require the developer to make additional improvement
or changes to the proposed plan.

Staff Review

1. The Kum and Go development is proposed on a 2.28 acre property on the southwest
corner of 52 Street and Kalamazoo Avenue. The property owned by the applicant also
includes an attached residentially-zoned property with frontage on Newcastle Drive (not
part of the 2.28 acre parcel). The parcel is intended to be split from the CPUD parcel and
developed as single family residential.

2. The proposed Kum and Go store is a gas station with 6 pumps (12 pumping stations).
The proposed floor plan includes food preparation and sales, a seating area, and a retail
area for convenience items. The applicant has indicated their desire to sell beer and wone
at the site. The applicant shall provide a floor plan for city review.

Special Land Use

3. Fuel stations are permitted in the CPUD zone with Special Land Use, meeting the general
requirements and the requirements of Section 15.04D, as follows:

1. A vehicle fuel station building and its accessory uses and buildings shall be located not
less than fifty (50) feet from any right-of-way line or from any side or rear lot line

abutting a Residential District. This setback requirement shall not apply to accessory
parking.

The proposed fuel station is adjacent to a residential district. The convenience
store is located 87’ from the common lot line. The building it set back at least 100’
from the 52fld Street and Kalamazoo Avenue rights of way.

2. Where adjoining a residential use or Residential District, Buffer Zone “B” is required
(see Chapter 19, Landscaping). In addition, the Planning Commission may require a
solid wall or solid fence along the lot line having a maximum height of six (6) feet.

Buffer zone “B” requires a minimum width of 20’ and one canopy tree, 1
evergreen tree, and 5 shrubs per each 40 feet along the property line. There is 620
feet of the property that adjoins a residential use. Therefore, 16 canopy trees, 16
evergreen trees, and 80 shrubs must be provided along these areas that are
adjacent to the residential uses. The applicant shall indicate how these standards
are met by the proposed landscaping plan. It is possible that existing trees may
help to meet the ordinance requirements.

3. The minimum frontage shall be one hundred fifty (150) feet and the minimum lot area
one (1) acre. '

The fuel station meets this requirement.



Kum and Go-Kalamazoo and 52" Street
SLU and Site Plan Review

Page 5

. Accessory auto related facilities located on the premises such as wash facilities,

vehicle rental and vehicle repair are allowed however must obtain separate special land
use permits as provided for in this Chapter.

These accessory uses are not proposed.

. The lot shall be located so that at least one (1) side abuts an arterial street.

The lot abuts two arterial streets.

. The site shall be limited to no more than one (1) driveway for each street on which it

has frontage.

The applicant is proposing one driveway on Kalamazoo Avenue and one on 52"¢
Street. driveways on Kalamazoo Avenue. .

. All storage of material, merchandise and equipment shall be within the building.

The applicant’s statement of operation indicates the desire to sell merchandise
outside of the building. The location of the outdoor sales shall be indicated on the
site plan as the storage of these materials could be considered contrary to this
requirement.

8. Gasoline or other flammable mixtures shall not be used to wash down the premises.

9. In the event that a Vehicle Fuel station has been abandoned or not used as a Vehicle

Fuel station for a period of more than one (1) year, any application to operate the
premises as a Vehicle Fuel station shall be considered as an application for a new

Vehicle fuel station.

10. The applicant shall comply with Michigan Department of Environmental Quality

(EGLE) requirements.

General Special Land Use Standards
3. As a Special Land Use, the proposed fuel station must also comply with the standards of
Section 15.02, as follows:
A. Be designed, constructed, operated and maintained so as to be harmonious and

appropriate in appearance, with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity
and that a use will not change the essential character of the area in which it is proposed.

The area has been rezoned to a CPUD in 2003. The CPUD Statement from that
time set certain specific requirements for the PUD that go beyond the Special Land
Use Standards of the Zoning Ordinance. The City, in its review of the CPUD must
come to terms with these standards: to either waive the 2003 standards, or insist
that the developer comply with the standards. The Special Land Use standards
within Section 15.02 A requires that the development is harmonious and



Kum and Go-Kalamazoo and 52" Street
SL.U and Site Plan Review
Page 6

appropriate with the existing or intended uses of the general vicinity. The
proposed use is a gas station that is low in profile and includes a green buffer
between the gas station and the existing single family homes to the west. Other
commercial buildings and a gas station exist to the north, and commercial/office
are recommended for the property to the east.

B. Be served adequately by essential public facilities and services such as highways, streets,
police and fire protection, drainage structures, refuse disposal, water and sewage facilities
or schools.

The use is adequately served by public facilities

C. Not create excessive additional requirements at public cost for public facilities and
services.

The use will not create additional requirements at public cost.

D. Not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, and equipment or conditions of
operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property, or the general welfare by
reason of excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare, electrical or
electromagnetic interference or odors.

The applicant’s traffic analysis indicates that the level of service projected for the use
would not be impacted by the introduction of the gas station. It is possible that
traffic through the site could be further reduced by eliminating the driveway on the
west side of the gas station, thereby keeping all vehicles east of the proposed building.
In addition, the Commission could also reduce service/loading hours proposed for
the development or reduce operating hours.

The lighting proposed for the site does not meet city ordinances; pump islands for
gasoline stations are limited to a maximum of 22 footcandles; the applicant is
proposing readings in some locations under the canopy in excess of 70 footcandles.
In addition, the average to minimum standard is exceeded. The applicant must also
provide detail regarding the height of the light poles proposed; the maximum height
when adjacent to a residential development is 20°.

E. Be compatible and in accordance with the goals, objectives and policies of the Master Plan
and promote the Intent and Purpose of the zoning district in which it is proposed to locate.

The use is generally consistent with the Master Plan.

F. Be subject to stipulations by the Planning Commission of additional conditions and
safeguards deemed necessary for the general welfare, for the protection of individual
property rights, and for ensuring that the intent and objectives of this Ordinance will be
observed. The breach of any condition, safeguard, or requirement shall automatically
invalidate the granting of the Special Land Use.



Kum and Go-Kalamazoo and 52 Street
SLU and Site Plan Review
Page 7

G. Comply with all applicable licensing ordinances
Site Plan Review

5. Access to the site for fuel trucks will be from Kalamazoo Avenue only. Since 52" Street is
not a truck route, commercial trucks or fuel trucks delivering to the site would have to travel
south to the site from 44™ Street, or north to the site from the M-6 area. A crossover exists
north of the Kalamazoo/52"¢ Street intersection to allow northbound vehicles make an indirect
left to access the Kalamazoo driveway. The crossover south of the proposed gas station is
about 2000 feet to the south.

6: The applicant shall provide information on truck circulation through the site.

!

7. The proposed convenience store building will be 5,620 square feet in area. The use will
require 24 parking spaces, provided as per the proposed plan.

8. The applicant meets the open space requirements for the CPUD zone.

Attributes:

e Meets open space requirements

e Meets parking requirements

Eliminates interim use that has been challenging to keep in line with property maintenance
Low profile building

Issues:

e Lighting standard not met

e Merchandise being sold outside building

e Some inconsistencies with CPUD Plan from 2003—brick fagade, hours of operation
e Driveways too wide

o Traffic study to be reviewed—gaps for left turns in


















Kum & Go
5215 Kalamazoo Avenue
Page 4 of 6

o SILT FENCING IS REQUIRED ALONG ALL DOWNSTREAM EDGES OF THE GRADING LIMITS
AND MUST REMAIN IN PLACE UNTIL VEGETATION IS UNIFORMLY RE-ESTABLISHED. THE
SILT FENCE MUST BE TOED IN A MINIMUM OF 6 INCHES ALONG ITS BASE. (Remember
that silt fences are intended to intercept sheet flow only and must always be installed
parallel with the ground contours. Silt fences must not cross ravines, overland
floodways, ditches, swales, etc. where concentrated flows occur.)

e ALL DISTURBED BANKS EQUAL TO OR GREATER THAN 4:1 AND THE DETENTION BASIN
BANKS AND BOTTOM MUST BE COVERED WITH TOPSOIL, SEED AND NORTH AMERICAN
GREEN S-150 (OR APPROVED EQUAL) EROSION CONTROL BLANKET. THIS BLANKET,
ALONG WITH THE NECESSARY STAPLES OR WOOD PEGS, SHALL BE PLACED PER
MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS. SEAMS SHALL BE PLACED PARALLEL TO THE
DIRECTION OF SURFACE RUNOFF. (Indicate such areas with shading or hatching on
the plan.) :

« ALL SOIL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE INSTALLED PRIOR TO ANY EARTH
MOVING OPERATIONS AND SHALL BE MAINTAINED UNTIL VEGETATION IS UNIFORMLY RE-
ESTABLISHED AND THE SITE IS PERMANENTLY STABILIZED.

« NO SEDIMENT SHALL BE TRACKED ONTO THE ADJACENT PUBLIC STREET AND IF IT DOES
OCCUR, IT SHALL BE CLEANED DAILY.

» THE STORMWATER DETENTION BASIN IS TO BE THE FIRST ITEM OF EARTH MOVING AND
SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE INSTALLATION OF SOIL EROSION
CONTROL MEASURES.

Per the requirements of Part 91 of P.A. 451, place on the soil erosion control plan a bar
graph or chart showing the proposed timing and sequence of each proposed earth
change. It must include the installation of both permanent and temporary soil erosion
and sedimentation controls, as well as the removal of temporary controls. It must also
show the sequence of any construction phases.

A stone construction exit must also be included as part of the soil erosion control plan.
Indicate the location of this exit on the plan, along with a detail. The length of the rock
construction exit shall be at least 50 feet and shall consist of a 6-inch minimum layer
crushed rock or stone on top of non-woven geosynthetic fabric (MDOT “Heavy
Geotextile Liner”). The size of the stone shall be selected so that it cannot get caught
between dual truck tires.

Additional soil erosion and sediment control comments may be made by Kentwood
staff upon further review.

Utilities (Sanitary & Water):

1.

A cleanout will be needed along the sanitary lateral, as the proposed lead is longer than
100 feet (BOCA requirement).

The fire hydrants should be moved so that they are in line with the property lines and
therefore should not interfere with future driveways.

Sanitary sewer, sanitary manhole and watermain construction shall follow the City of
Kentwood specifications. Specify EJIW Type 1040 castings. All main line sanitary
sewer pipe shall be PVC composite pipe (truss pipe). PVC solid wall (SDR-26 or SDR~







Kum & Go
5215 Kalamazoo Avenue
Page 6 of 6

5. Please note that all required bonds and permit applications and fees must be submitted
to, and accepted by, Kentwood Engineering before any permits can be issued! There
will be no “partial” or “conditional” permits issued.

Miscellaneous / Reminders:

1. Please be advised that at the completion of construction, a civil engineer or surveyor
will need to provide an as-built plan to the City of Kentwood with a certification by a
registered engineer stating that the site grading and the stormwater system were
constructed in accordance with the approved plans. A copy of the certification form is
available upon request or on the City’s website.

2. Remember that, for a Building Permit to be issued, other City departments (fire,
assessor, treasurer, water, planning) may have comments regarding this plan. Contact
Kentwood Inspections (Renee Hargrave, 554-0781) regarding building permit
application procedures, fees, plan requirements and approval status.

3. Once final approval by all departments has been granted, make sure the contractor has
the latest approved set of plans before beginning construction!

Should you have any questions regarding this department’s review, please feel free to contact our
office. ‘

cc: Kentwood Engineering Permit Staff
























	Agenda
	Minutes
	Case 7-22 rec
	Case 7-22 Plans
	Case 14-22 Recommendation
	Bretonfield Preserve Ph 6 (1)
	Tentative Preliminary Plat - BFP6 (6-17-22)revised
	Sheets and Views
	PP


	Tree Preservation & Landscape Plan - BFP6 (6-17-22)revised
	Sheets and Views
	TREES


	Units 208 and 226 (open space between east lot line and Breton row)
	Sheets and Views
	SETBACKS


	Case 15-22 Recommendation
	Case 16-22 Report
	Case 16-22 Narrative
	Case 16-22 Site Plan
	Sheets and Views
	01 COVER
	02 LAYOUT PLAN
	03 ALTA SURVEY
	04 ALTA SURVEY
	05 DEMOLITION PLAN
	06 PRELIMNARY GRADING PLAN
	07 PRELIMNARY UTILITY PLAN
	08 PRELIMINARY LANDSCAPE PLAN
	09 LANDSCAPE DETAILS
	10 PHOTOMETRIC PLAN
	11 SIGN DETAILS
	12 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
	13 TRASH ENCLOSURE ELEVATIONS
	14 CANOPY ELEVATIONS


	Case 16-22 PUD Stement
	Case 17-22 Report

